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  ` in Crores
FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19

Profit & Loss A/c
Total Income  1,659.16  1,875.81  1,431.15  995.67  956.02 
Operating Profit (PBIDT)  953.74  1,228.51  885.87  541.88  500.46 
Net Profit/Loss (PAT)  516.94  523.77  154.71  (376.38)  (7.88)
Balance Sheet
What the Company owned
Fixed Assets  6,630.77  5,258.62  4,709.87  4,272.14  4,082.29 
Investments & Net Current Assets (net of long term portion of current liabilities & provisions)  797.27  1,068.87  1,243.81  926.09  1,065.63 
Deferred Taxation (Net)  0.90  12.14  11.18  -    -   
TOTAL ASSETS  7,428.94  6,339.63  5,964.86 5198.23  5,147.92 
What the Company owed
Loans  3,470.28  3,241.24  2,745.21  2,346.93  2,252.83 
Shareholders' Funds
Equity Share Capital  111.35  111.35  111.35  111.35  111.35 
Preference Share Capital *  119.62  -    -    -    -   
Reserves & Surplus 3,727.69 2,987.04 3,108.30 2,739.95 2,783.74 
TOTAL  3,958.66  3,098.39  3,219.65  2,851.30  2,895.09 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  7,428.94  6,339.63  5,964.86  5,198.23  5,147.92 

Key performance indicators (consolidated)
5 years at a glance

FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19
Debt-equity Ratio  1.06  1.05  0.85  0.82  0.78 
Net Debt-equity Ratio  0.86  0.76  0.49  0.46  0.39 
Return On Operating Networth (%) 14.33% 18.61% 4.90% (12.41%) (0.28%)
Return On Operating Capital Employed (%) 9.32% 10.32% 5.05% (4.02%) 3.43%
Earning Per Share (in `)  44.47  47.04  13.89  (33.80)  (0.71)

(US$ in Millions)
IN US DOLLARS FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19
Profit & Loss A/c
Total Income (US$ mn)  271.42  287.26  213.25  154.42  137.42 
Operating Profit (PBIDT)  156.02  188.13  132.00  84.04  71.94 
Net Profit/Loss (PAT)  84.56  80.21  23.05  (58.37)  (1.13)
Balance Sheet
What the Company owned
Fixed Assets  1,060.92  793.75  726.27  655.49  590.35 
Investments & Net Current Assets (net of long term portion of current liabilities & provisions)  127.58  161.34  191.81  142.09  154.10 
Deferred Taxation (Net)  0.14  1.83  1.72  -    -   
Total Assets  1,188.64  956.92  919.79  797.58  744.46 
What the Company owed
Loans  555.25  489.24  423.32  360.10  325.79 
Shareholders' Funds
Equity Share Capital  17.82  16.81  17.17  17.08  16.10 
Preference Share Capital *  19.14  -    -    -    -   
Reserves & Surplus  596.43  450.87  479.31  420.40  402.57 
TOTAL  633.39  467.68  496.48  437.48  418.67 
Total Liabilities  1,188.64  956.92  919.79  797.58  744.46 

* As per IND AS, Preference share capital has been designated as financial liability (Loans) wef  April 1,2015 .
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Dear Stakeholders,

We are in the fifth year of weak markets and, all that can possibly be said about the causes of severity of this downturn in the 
offshore oilfield services sector has already been articulated in our previous reports. 

Unlike main fleet shipping, where short term volatility can surprise even the most experienced of owners, the offshore oilfield 
services business is relatively predictable in the short term. At the start of the financial year, we did not have any great hopes of a 
quick market turn around. We were hoping to see a levelling off in the sharp downturn witnessed over the past years, and market 
indicators now suggest a modest market recovery in the future. 

While market sentiment has improved, the earnings and utilisation levels, even if marginally up, are yet nowhere close to levels 
necessary for the business to generate any kind of return on the invested capital. Yet through this statement we would also like 
to highlight some positive signs that have tentatively begun to emerge over the last one year. Hopefully these positive signs will 
herald the start of a positive feedback loop, eventually resulting in much better market conditions in the years to come.

1)	 Oil price

In last year’s statement, we had mentioned about OPEC’s resolve to discipline production and stop further bloating of global 
inventories. OPEC + did stick to this theme throughout the year. Geopolitical issues in Iran, Libya, Venezuela contributed to 
an over compliance on OPEC targets. As a result, barring the dip in Nov-Dec 18, oil prices stayed firm throughout the year. At 
current price levels, most investments either in existing fields or new fields should provide strong profitability. 

2)	 Offshore E&P spending

While in 2018 offshore E&P spending was lower than in 2017, the drop was only on the margin. The period of year on year 
double digit declines is hopefully behind us. In fact, in 2019 it is expected to register a marginal uptick in E&P spending. Going by 
various research reports, in order to make up for the field decline rates and incremental call needed on offshore, E&P spending 
needs to get into a multiyear growth cycle. While subsea services are expected to be early beneficiary of this recovery, we hope 
to see a gradual trickle-down impact on support vessels and shallow water drilling services as well.

3)	 Supply side adjustments

As the prolonged downturn continues, assets stacked, since the start, are increasingly unlikely to find it easy to come back into 
active service. With ordering activity virtually drying up in the last few years, the order book today doesn’t form a large percentage 
of the working fleet and in addition a significant part may not deliver at all. M&A activity in both drilling and logistics segments 
have increased ownership concentration and has resulted in strategic stacking/scrapping. Impact of such discipline is most 
visible in the North Sea logistics market where PSV owners, in April-May 2019, enjoyed best charter rates since the summer of 
2015. In the previous statements, we had mentioned about the bankruptcies and restructurings of large international players in 
the offshore oilfield services markets. This year, some prominent Indian companies have closed or come close to winding down. 
All these developments have resulted in supply side adjustments moving in a promising direction, though the same needs tobe 
sustained, at the least, over a longer period to be able to make a difference to the significant oversupply situation.

4)	U tilisation upticks

As a result of supply side adjustments and tentative improvements in demand, term utilisation in both logistics and jack up 
drilling space, has kept ticking up throughout the year.

As mentioned at the start, despite all the above positive developments we are yet far away from a return to pricing power and 
consequent profitability in the sector. Moreover, we should bear in mind that there are many factors that can delay the much 
anticipated recovery.
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Higher oil price is an essential but insufficient condition for revival in offshore oilfield services sector. Artificial supply cuts 
have helped the oil price but supply growth from US Shale and other non-OPEC sources remains a challenge and the discipline 
exhibited by the OPEC + can get tested at higher prices. At the end of 2018, concerns on global growth slowdown had gripped the 
markets. While in recent months, the concerns have slightly abated, there are still numerous risk factors. A synchronized global 
slowdown will destroy confidence and slash oil demand growth. Beyond the spot oil price levels, unless the long-term outlook 
improves, the pace of investments in offshore oilfield services is not going to get the required impetus. 

Our actions:

Over the past one year, we have continued to focus on maximizing utilization of our assets and have secured multiple long-term 
contracts. Thanks to these contracts, the average commercial utilization of the Company’s vessels during FY 19 has been in 
excess of 90% which compares very favourably with global averages which are in the region of 50-55%. None of the rigs were 
idling for want of a contract at any time during the year.

We have endeavored to maintain cost discipline without compromising the quality of our operations and this is reflected in the 
vessel and rigs unplanned downtime of less than 2% and 1% respectively.

This year too our focus on safety has resulted in zero fatalities across the entire fleet and good safety statistics with a Lost Time 
Incident frequency rate of 0.62 and 0.00 for the vessels and rigs, respectively.

For the financial year we recorded a topline of INR 956.02 crores (consolidated) which is only a 4% drop compared to the 
previous financial year. Even if we manage to achieve a high utilization level, as legacy high rate contracts roll off, the drop in 
topline is inevitable. For the year, we recorded a net loss of INR 7.88 crores compared to a loss of INR 376.38 crores for FY 18 on 
a consolidated basis. However, FY 18 had an exceptional loss on account of impairment in carrying value of assets and deferred 
tax liability created by transfer of rigs.

Even while profitability margins for the year were under pressure, we continued to improve our balance sheet strength. The 
consolidated gross bank debt came down from USD 309.81 million to USD 277.27 million during the financial year. The 
consolidated cash & cash equivalent increased from USD 160.40 million to USD 163.47 million. As a result, the consolidated net 
debt, including preference capital owed to our Parent Company, came down from USD 199.70 million to USD 162.32 million. 
The net debt to equity ratio reduced from 0.46 to 0.39. 

While we will continue our efforts to secure contract coverage and achieve a high utilization, we also continue to watch the 
market developments closely.

We sincerely thank all the stakeholders for their unwavering support throughout these challenging times.

Warm Regards

Bharat K. Sheth 			    														R              avi K. Sheth
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BOARD’S REPORT
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventeenth Annual Report for the year ended March 31, 2019.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Financial Highlights of the Company for the current year and previous year on a standalone and consolidated basis are as under: 

(` in Crores)

PARTICULARS

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED

Current Year Previous Year* Current Year Previous Year*

Total Revenue 979.20 1,056.35 956.02 995.67

Total Expenses 692.96 586.15 640.90 606.10

Depreciation and amortisation expense 218.75 203.17 263.19 277.17

Impairment loss - 170.59 9.39 206.39

Profit before tax 67.49 96.44 42.54 (93.99)

Less: Provision of tax
- Current tax
- Deferred Tax

38.00
(15.41)

72.50
40.00

54.23
(3.81)

72.39
210.00

Total Tax 22.59 112.50 50.42 282.39

Profit/(Loss) for the year after tax 44.90 (16.06) (7.88) (376.38)

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 449.86 464.84 647.25 989.79

Add:  Profit/(Loss) for the year after tax 44.90 (16.06) (7.88) (376.38)

Add:  Other Comprehensive Income 0.33 2.01 0.33 2.02

Add: Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation - (0.43) - 32.32

Less: Transfer to Tonnage Tax Reserve Account 
under section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(0.50) (0.50) (0.50) (0.50)

Balance at the end of the year 494.59 449.86 639.20 647.25

* restated on account of amalgamation of Company’s wholly owned subsidiary – Greatship Global Holdings Limited with the Company, with the 
appointed date under the Scheme of Amalgamation being April 1, 2017 

The financial statements (standalone and consolidated) have been prepared by your Company in accordance with the requirements 
of Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as may have been amended from time to time. The highlights of the performance/operations 
of the Company are included in detail in the report on ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ which is annexed as Annexure 1 
to this Report.

DIVIDEND

Although the Company has made profits during the financial year ended on March 31, 2019, with a view to conserve resources, 
your directors have not recommended any dividend on equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2019.
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Dividends on the Preference Shares of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 would be payable out of the 
profits of the Company on May 20, 2019, in accordance with the terms of preference shares:

1) 		 ` 10.95 crores (excluding dividend distribution tax) on 44,500,000 fully paid preference shares of face value of ` 10 each at 
the rate of 24.60% p.a. and

2) 		 ` 13.64 crores (excluding dividend distribution tax) on 60,624,000 fully paid preference shares of face value of ` 10 each at 
the rate of 22.50%. p.a. 

			E   ffective FY 19, the dividend rate for Series I preference shares has been increased from 21.75% p.a. to 24.60% p.a.

			   The aggregate outflow of the Company on account of dividend for the year on Preference Shares would be ` 24.59 crores 
(excluding dividend distribution tax).

SHARE CAPITAL 

The total paid up share capital of your Company as on March 31, 2019 is ` 111.35 crores comprising of 111,345,500 equity 
shares of face value of ` 10 each and 105,124,000 preference shares of face value of ` 10 each. The details of the total 
outstanding preference shares under two series as on March 31, 2019 are as under:

i) 		  Series I - 44,500,000 preference shares of face value of ` 10 each with dividend rate of 24.60% p.a. and

ii) 		 Series II - 60,624,000 preference shares of face value of ` 10 each with dividend rate of 22.50% p.a.

During the year, the terms of Series I preference shares were modified, whereby the existing redemption schedule was deferred 
by four years and the rate of dividend was increased from existing 21.75% p.a. to 24.60% p.a., effective from FY 19 as mentioned 
above. The said preference shares under Series I would now be redeemed in four equal annual instalments of 11,125,000 shares 
commencing from April 2025 instead of April 2021. All other terms remain unchanged.

The redemption of Series II preference shares is also scheduled to commence from April 2025 in four equal annual instalments 
of 15,156,000 shares as per its terms.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS 

During the year under review, an opportunity was given to all the ESOP holders for encashment of all their remaining outstanding 
options as on March 31, 2018, aggregating to 151,060 options. With the said encashment, all the Schemes of the Company have 
been closed.

The information on the Schemes as on March 31, 2019 is annexed as Annexure 3 to this Report.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (CONSOLIDATED) 

The audited consolidated financial statements of your Company and its Subsidiaries along with the Auditors’ Report thereon form 
part of the Annual Report. 

The consolidated net worth of the Group for financial year 2018-19 was ` 2895.09 crores as compared to ` 2851.30 crores for 
financial year 2017-18.

SUBSIDIARIES 

As on March 31, 2019, your Company has four (4) wholly owned subsidiaries as under (together referred to as ‘Subsidiaries’):

a)		G  reatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore
b)		G  reatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore
c)		G  reatship (UK) Limited, United Kingdom
d)		G  reatship Oilfield Services Limited, India
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Your Company’s investment in its subsidiaries as on March 31, 2019 stands at ` 493.23 crores. During the year, Greatship 
Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd. undertook capital reduction to the extent of ` 1024.62 crores and repatriated the funds to the 
Company. A statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, containing the salient features of the financial statements of your Company’s subsidiaries has been attached along 
with the financial statements of your Company.

Group Restructuring

As a part of the group restructuring exercise, your Company had acquired full ownership of its Singapore subsidiary, Greatship 
Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd. (GGES), in March 2017 and also acquired four jack-up rigs along with its Plant, Machinery & 
Equipments/Owner Furnished Equipments (the ‘Rigs’) from GGES in June 2017. At the time of acquisition of the Rigs, your 
Company had taken over the outstanding bank borrowings of GGES and the balance consideration of upto USD 131.36 Mn was 
kept outstanding in accordance with the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement (as amended from time to time).

As mentioned above, in March 2019, GGES reduced its share capital by about USD 163.96 Mn and the returned the capital 
proceeds to the Company. The Company utilized part of these proceeds to pay the afore-mentioned balance consideration along 
with applicable interest to GGES towards the purchase of Rigs. With this, the group restructuring exercise has been completed. 

Further, during the year under review, National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench sanctioned the Scheme of Amalgamation 
of Greatship Global Holdings Limited (GGHL) with your Company vide its order issued on July 24, 2018. GGHL was removed 
from the Register of Companies, Mauritius on August 28, 2018. All other necessary formalities with respect to the Scheme of 
Amalgamation were completed and the Scheme became operative from September 1, 2018, with the Appointed Date under the 
Scheme being April 1, 2017. Consequent to the merger, Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd. (erstwhile wholly owned 
subsidiary of GGHL) became the direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 

The summary of performance of wholly owned subsidiaries of your Company is as follows:

a) 		G reatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore (GGES)

			GGE   S has incurred a profit of USD 8.50 Mn for the current financial year as against the profit of USD 8.54 Mn, in the 
previous year. The profit in the current year was attributable to the interest received on the balance consideration paid by 
the parent company in relation to the sale of rigs.

b) 		G reatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore (GGOS)

			   During the year, GGOS sold one 2009 built Anchor Handling Tug Cum Supply Vessel - ‘Greatship Aditi’ to your Company 
on February 15, 2019 and also entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with your Company on February 12, 2019 for 
purchase of one 2010 built R-Class Supply Vessel, ‘Greatship Ramya’. Subsequent to the end of the year, GGOS completed 
the purchase of ‘Greatship Ramya’ from your Company on April 08, 2019.

			   In addition, GGOS owns and operates two Multipurpose Platform Supply and Support Vessels. GGOS, after accounting for 
an impairment of USD 1.35 Mn in asset values, incurred a loss of USD 0.70 Mn for the current financial year as against the 
loss of USD 20.14 Mn in the previous year, after accounting for an impairment of USD 15.62 Mn in asset values.

c)		G  reatship (UK) Limited, United Kingdom (GUK)

			G   UK’s profit for the current financial year amounted to USD 1.92 Mn as against the loss of USD 0.02 Mn in the previous 
year. The profit in the current financial year was majorly on account of reversal of provisions.

d) 		G reatship Oilfield Services Limited., India (GOSL)

			   During the year under review, GOSL has been exploring possible business opportunities and has incurred certain expenses 
resulting into losses of ` 0.01 crores for the current financial year (Previous Year: ` 0.04 crores).
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial control systems commensurate with the nature of its business and the 
size of its operations. The Company has an internal control framework which establishes the essential components of internal 
controls. 

These processes and controls include various activities such as approvals, authorisations, verifications, reconciliations, 
reviews of operating and financial performance, security of assets, segregation of duties, preventive and defective controls. The 
policies and procedures adopted by the Company ensure the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. These systems are tested 
and audited from time to time by the Company and through internal as well as statutory audits to ensure that the systems are 
reinforced on an ongoing basis. 

No reportable material weakness or significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal financial controls were observed 
during the year. 

The internal audit covering the key business processes of the Company is carried out by a firm of external Chartered Accountants. 
The scope of the internal audit exercise including the key business processes and selected risk areas to be audited is finalized in 
consultation with the Audit Committee. The audit reports with significant observations, if any and follow up actions thereon are 
reported to the Audit Committee. Ernst & Young LLP have been appointed as the internal auditors of your Company for a period 
of two years - F.Y. 2018-19 and F.Y. 2019-20.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of Company’s culture and as a responsible corporate citizen, your 
Company operates with careful consideration of its environmental and social impact. Your Company’s CSR efforts are focused 
in the areas of promoting education and knowledge enhancement; eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition; and promoting 
health care and sanitation. A detailed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy has been framed in accordance with the 
recommendations of the CSR Committee and the approval of the Board of Directors, which is available on the Company’s 
website: www.greatshipglobal.com. 

The Company has been undertaking its CSR activities either by making direct contributions to NGOs/implementing agencies or 
through ‘Great Eastern CSR Foundation’, a company which has been incorporated as a subsidiary of The Great Eastern Shipping 
Company Limited under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Annual Report on the CSR activities of the Company is 
annexed herewith as Annexure 4.

DIRECTORS 

Inductions: 

•			  Mrs. Rita Bhagwati has been appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f August 07, 2018 to hold office till the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company;

•			  Mr. Shaleen Sharma was appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f  October 26, 2018 to hold office till the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of the Company; and

•			  Subsequent to the end of the financial year, Mr. Alok Mahajan has been appointed as the Additional Director and the 
Executive Director w.e.f April 01, 2019.

Reappointments:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. P R Naware, shall retire by rotation at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. Necessary 
resolution for re-appointment of Mr. P. R. Naware as aforesaid has been included in the Notice convening the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. The Board recommends his reappointment.
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Term Completion and resignations:

•			  Dr. Swaroop Rawal completed her second term as Independent Director on August 06, 2018 and ceased to be the Director 
of your Company;

•			  Mr. Vineet Nayyar completed his second term as Independent Director on September 19, 2018 and ceased to be the Director 
of your Company; and

•			  Mr. Shashank Singh resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from October 29, 2018 due to 
professional occupancy.

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the significant contributions and valuable guidance given by Dr. Swaroop 
Rawal, Mr. Vineet Nayyar and Mr. Shashank Singh during their tenure as Independent Directors of the Company. 

The Company has received the declarations from all Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria 
of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The various details about the Board of Directors and the Committees are given in Annexure 2 to this Report

Board Meetings

During the year, 5 meetings of the Board were held. The details of Board Meetings as well as Committee meetings are given in 
the Annexure 2 to this Report.

Appointment and Remuneration Policy

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has framed policy for the appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
and Senior Management Personnel and for remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, which 
have been adopted by the Board. The appointment policy including the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of directors and other matters, as required under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed herewith 
as Annexure 5. 

During the year under review, the remuneration policy was amended on October 30, 2018 and February 04, 2019. The revised 
remuneration policy (outlining the amendments) is annexed herewith as Annexure 6.

Evaluation of Board’s Performance

The annual performance evaluation of Board, its Committees (namely, Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and Corporate Social 
Responsibility) and all the Directors individually, including the Chairman of the Board has been done in accordance with the 
Performance Evaluation Framework adopted by the Board on recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 
The Performance Evaluation Framework lays down the performance parameters and the process of performance evaluation to 
be followed.

In accordance with the Performance Evaluation Framework, Performance Evaluation Forms were circulated to all the directors 
to record their evaluation of the Board, its Committees and the Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman for the financial 
year 2018-19. Evaluation of the Executive Directors was based on the evaluation of the Company which was done on the basis 
of the presentation made by the Management. 

At a separate meeting, independent directors reviewed the performance of the Company, the Board and its Committees and 
Non-Independent Directors (including Chairman) of the Company. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee reviewed the 
performance of the Company and every director. The Board of Directors reviewed the performance of the Company, the Board 
and its Committees and every director individually, after considering the recommendations of the independent directors and 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Council of the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India.

DEBT FUND RAISING 

During the current financial year, the amount of debt of the Company both at standalone and consolidated level is `2252.82 

crores as against previous year ` 2346.92 crore at the end of FY 18. The standalone and consolidated debt includes liability 

related to redeemable preference share capital amounting to ` 353.51 crores at the end of FY 19 and ` 352.49 crores at the 

end of FY 18. The gross debt: equity ratio as on March 31, 2019 was 0.89 on standalone basis and 0.78 on consolidated basis.

DEPOSITS 

Your Company has not accepted any deposits, including from the public, and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was 

outstanding, as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

Your Company proposes to transfer ` 0.50 crores to Tonnage Tax Reserve as required under the Provision of The Income Tax 

Act, 1961.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements of clause (c) of sub-section 3 and sub-section 5 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

“Act”), the Board of Directors hereby state that:

1.	 	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed alongwith proper 

explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

2.	 	 they have selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 

year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period; 

3.	 	 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities; 

4.	 	 they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

5.	 	 they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are 

adequate and are operating effectively. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Framework and Risk Control Matrix for effective management 

of the risks faced by your Company. 

The Risk Control Matrix includes comprehensive list of all risks which have any financial impact. The desired controls are 

identified and incorporated in the Risk Control Matrix and tested from time to time. The Risk Control Matrix has been prepared 

based on Departmental Procedural Manual, Authority Matrix and SAP Module. The Risk Control Matrix is reviewed periodically 

to monitor and evaluate its effectiveness and to strengthen the risk management system. 
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism (the whistle blowing policy) which provides an avenue for directors and 
employees to report genuine concerns or grievances. The vigil mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation 
of persons who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
appropriate or exceptional cases.

A copy of Whistle Blowing Policy is available on the Company’s website: www.greatshipglobal.com.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE / INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE 

The Company has formulated and implemented Sexual Harassment (Prevention and Redressal) Policy to provide protection 
against sexual harassment at workplace in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. To resolve the complaints of sexual harassment and matters connected therewith, the 
Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) with an external lady representative with requisite experience 
as a member of the Committee. The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of ICC under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

During the year under review, no complaints with allegation of sexual harassment have been received by the Company. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The extract of Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as Annexure 7.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties in form AOC 2 is annexed herewith as Annexure 8. 

All the related party transactions have been entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length 
basis.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are given in the notes to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and Company’s operations in future.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the audit committee, 
under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or 
employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s Report.

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

In order to contribute to and prepare for a low carbon future, your Company has been undertaking various initiatives with regard 
to enhancing energy efficiency in its business operations.

Energy Saving Devices:

a) 		Y our Company’s fleet of modern vessels has been fitted with the latest series of diesel engines for power generation which 
have the low specific fuel consumption currently available in the market complying with the applicable regulations in force.
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b) 		 All the vessels are fitted with dynamic positioning system for position keeping when working alongside the installations. 
The new range of DP systems delivers higher reliability, efficiency and effectiveness. The systems provide flexibility for 
effective maritime operations using fully integrated system configured for optimum power and propulsion performance. 
Cargo/Project operations using the dynamic position system ensures optimal use of the propulsion equipment resulting 
in calibrated loading of propellers and thrusters appropriate for the environment that the vessels are subjected to thereby 
resulting in the low fuel consumption.

Wetted Surface Maintenance and Improved anti-fouling paints:

Hull coatings are designed to improve vessel performance while withstanding the rigors of commercial use. Tin free paints have 
been introduced to meet the current MARPOL legislations. These coatings use foul-release technology to provide a “green” easy 
to clean surface that will help improve hull longevity and performance and improve speed and fuel economy by up to 10%. On 
our fleet vessels, we have introduced application of premium anti-fouling paints resulting in significant fuel savings.

Regular docking of the vessels to ensure smooth and clean hull and propeller blades is recommended for achieving high speed 
and efficient vessel performance. Your Company’s fleet vessels undergo regular cleaning of hull and propeller blades either in-
water or in the dry dock.

Monitoring of vessel performance:

Considering the growing importance of conservation of energy and its impact on sustainable development, your Company has 
initiated a slew of measures to keep the fuel consumption and emissions optimal. The activities undertaken by the vessels and 
the fuel consumption in each of the modes are closely monitored.

Some of the operational measures implemented for “Lean Fuel Initiative” are as follows:

•		 Cruising outside the 500 meter zone on single engine in deep water locations when not required alongside installations,

•		 Anchoring in shallower waters,

•		 Tying up the vessels to the RIGs when discharging cargo for long durations,

•		 Proper planning of the logistics movements for accurate voyage planning thereby allowing for slow-steaming and higher 
efficiencies,

•		 Vessel voyage planning to make economic and optimal use of the ship’s propulsion, auto-pilot and heading control 
systems to achieve an improvement in open-sea efficiency

During the year, 4 vessels have been dry docked and 3 vessels have undergone under-water examination. There has been a 
significant improvement in the fuel efficiency of these vessels after the dry docking and hull cleaning during the under-water 
examination.

Reduction of Green House Gas Emission from Ships:

Carbon foot print of ships is measured in terms of Energy Efficiency Operational Indicator (EEOI) as per Guideline of International 
Maritime Organization MEPC.1/Circ.684. Your Company has established a Shipboard Energy Efficiency Management Plan 
(SEEMP) and has devised a SEEMP Operational Index Calculator. Each vessel evaluates their Operational Index on a continuous 
basis and the results are reported to the Fleet Management department for monitoring and future planning towards improvement 
in the performance.

Vessels which have not been contracted for operations have been “Cold Stacked” to avoid fuel consumption during the idling 
periods. Greatship Ramya was “Cold Stacked” from May 02, 2018 until November 13, 2018.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as follows:

a) Foreign Exchange earned and saved
(on account of charter hire earnings, etc.) ` 936.48 crores

b) Foreign Exchange used
(including operating expenses, capital repayment, down 
payment for acquisition of assets, interest payment, etc.) ` 557.06 crores

AUDITORS

M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) were appointed as the 
statutory auditors of the Company at the 15th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on August 07, 2017 and shall hold office until 
the conclusion of the 20th AGM of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2022. 

The Report given by the Auditors forms part of the financial statements of the Company. There has been no qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

M/s. Makarand M. Joshi & Co., Company Secretaries, were appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 
F.Y. 2018-19, in accordance with the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

The Secretarial Auditors’ Report for the financial year 2018-19 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
The Secretarial Auditors’ Report is annexed to this report as Annexure 9. 

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company. 

APPRECIATION 

Your Directors express their sincere thanks to the Government of India, particularly the Ministry of Shipping, the Ministry of 
Petroleum & Natural Gas, the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Ministry of Labour and Employment, 
the Ministry of Commerce and Industry the Directorate General of Shipping, Port Authorities, Mercantile Marine Department, 
the Central Board of Direct Taxes, the Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs, GST Council, the Reserve Bank of India 
and various other authorities, all customers, charterers, partners, vendors, bankers, insurance companies, Protection & 
Indemnity Clubs, shipping agents, consultants and advisors for their continued support throughout the year. Your Directors also 
acknowledge and appreciate the significant contributions made by all the employees of the Company. 

Your Directors look forward to the continued support, guidance and fellowship of various authorities and agencies in the years 

to come.	

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Directors

Mumbai, May 02, 2019

Bharat K. Sheth
Chairman

(DIN: 00022102)
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The global offshore services industry continued to be in the doldrums again during the past year. Offshore E&P capex, an 
indicator of demand, continued to drop, albeit at a slower pace than seen previously, since the declines began after 2014. In 
2018, the number of offshore wells drilled, another indicator of overall activity in the space and a direct driver of demand for 
drilling rigs, was estimated to be about 3% lower than the previous year and significantly below the peak in 2014. In this context, 
average global utilisations of the rig fleet and offshore vessels continued to be largely around the nadir, though utilisation levels 
of your Company’s fleet were well above such averages. However, given the minimal dayrate levels that could be achieved in 
present market conditions, further asset impairments and the conclusion of legacy higher rate contracts, the profitability of your 
Company continued to decline during FY19.

Company PERFORMANCE 

In FY19, your Company recorded a total income of ` 979.20 crores (previous year ` 1056.35 crores) on a standalone basis and ` 
956.02 crores (previous year ̀  995.67 crores) on a consolidated basis. The Company earned a profit before interest, depreciation 
(including impairment) and tax of ` 544.61 crores (previous year ` 602.45 crores) and ` 500.46 crores (previous year ` 541.88 
crores) on a standalone and consolidated basis, respectively 

OFFSHORE LOGISTICS 

Market trend and analysis

With the demand declines having stabilized this year, the demand supply balance for AHTSVs (Anchor Handling Tug Supply 
Vessels) and PSVs (Platform Supply Vessels) at the end of FY-19 was similar to that at the beginning given that vessel supply 
was largely static through the year. Around half the vessels that are idle / unemployed currently, have been in this condition 
for about a couple of years now, raising doubts about how easily they could return to the active fleet. Any such permanent 
retrenchment of laid up vessels would assist a market upturn whenever demand growth returns in a substantive manner.

During the year, majority of your Company’s vessels were employed in the Indian market, though we received a material portion 
of this business’ revenue from our contracts executed in Africa, Asia-Pacific and the Middle East too.

Demand in the Indian market continued steadily largely thanks to term requirements from ONGC coming out regularly. The end 
of FY-18 seemed to have marked the low point on dayrates, as rates began to move up, even if haltingly, for both AHTSVs and 
PSVs for term tenders in FY-19. The influx of old, cheap vessels into the Indian market occurred this year too, but at a lower rate 
than previous years.   

In markets outside India, the North Sea market witnessed optimism and healthy rates at both the start and the end of FY-19, 
but had a largely dismal time in earlier months. The optimism at the start of FY-19 was clearly not vindicated, and whether the 
optimism at the end will sustain remains to be seen. The vessel supply in the West African market gets tighter with improvement in 
demand in the North Sea, and thus that market too suffered from intra-year volatility, with a strong spring (Northern hemisphere) 
market but dull otherwise. However, even if not at impressive levels, the term rates in the West African market at the beginning 
of FY-20 were at some of the highest levels seen since the beginning of the downturn, especially for large PSVs.

The South East Asian market witnessed a gradual uptick in demand this year, with the Malaysian demand witnessing some 
recovery from the lows of the past couple of years. While such increasing demand lead to some tightening in the market, again 
most markedly for large PSVs, there continues to a significant supply overhang in this region which has kept a cap on dayrates.

The Middle East market has, like the Indian market, been another market where demand has been relatively steady through the 
downturn as the regional NOCs (National Oil Companies) have worked towards preservation of their market share in the oil and 
gas commodity markets, even when other E&P companies across the globe dropped off their E&P spend. However, with the 
influx of vessels from other regions, the Middle Eastern market too had suffered a significant drop in utilization, and has only 
now started showing some signs of recovery.
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Company Performance 

The Company’s average commercial utilisation level for the vessel fleet, on a percentage basis, improved to low 90s levels for 
FY-19, compared to mid-80s levels for FY-18 (the calculations for such commercial utilisation exclude the downtime incurred 
on account of drydocking and other technical causes). The long term contracts on our fleet, largely in India, shielded us from 
the pervasive non-utilisation experienced within the industry, though such contracts were at low dayrate levels. The unplanned 
technical downtime, at less than 2% for FY 19, continues to be at very good levels. 

At the start of FY-20, the Company has about 80% of all FY-20 days covered on existing contracts.

Fleet Changes

During the year under review, there were no purchases, sales or deletions from the vessel fleet of the Group. In addition, there were 
no newbuilding commitments entered into. As on March 31, 2019, the vessel fleet of the Group continues to stand at nineteen 
vessels which comprises four Platform Supply Vessels (PSVs), eight Anchor Handling Tug cum Supply Vessels (AHTSVs), two 
Multipurpose Platform Supply and Support Vessels (MPSSVs) and five ROV Support Vessels (ROVSVs). Greatship Aditi was 
sold by WOS in Singapore, Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd. (GGOS) to the Company in March -19 and subsequent 
to the end of the year under review, Greatship Ramya was sold by the Company to GGOS.

Outlook for offshore logistics market

After years of dropping offshore E&P capex, it is estimated that offshore E&P capex might rise in the coming year. As 
mentioned earlier, some markets are showing signs of demand stabilization and even sporadic instances of tightness leading 
to expectations of improved markets over the coming year. We have also seen significant improvement in offshore projects 
FIDs (Final Investment Decisions) over this year, which should assist in supporting demand over the medium term in terms of 
offshore field development work. However, any increase in capex needs to be understood in the context of such capex having 
presently dropped to half of peak levels. 

Similarly, any possible optimistic sentiment needs to be tempered with the fact that more than a thousand AHTSVs and PSVs 
continue to be in an idle / laid up state, and about 200-odd such vessels are in newbuilding shipyards waiting to be delivered. 
With client discrimination against vessels that have been in continued idle status for a long time, it is possible that many of such 
long-term idle vessels may never return to active status, which may provide some relief from such prolific supply overhang. 
This situation is further benefited by the fact that its been about four years since any meaningful new build orders have been last 
recorded in the PSV and AHTSV sectors.

Thus, the outlook for our logistics business for the coming year continues to be one where although profitability continues to be 
challenged, utilisations are likely to be high given the existing contract coverage, alongwith a possible slow improvement in the 
overall global market sentiment.

DRILLING SERVICES

Market Trend and Analysis

A year ago, a few optimistic market observers had suggested that this could be the year of turnaround in the offshore rig market. 
Sadly, the market performance through the year did not measure up to such expectations. While there was indeed a marginal 
uptick in the number of rigs on contract globally through the year, dayrates for rigs in most markets were largely static at low 
levels as supply outstripped demand. The exceptions to the above were two, relatively niche, markets: one being the harsh 
weather (high specification) semi-submersible rig market in Norway, where the dayrates increased by about 50% during this 
year, and the second being the jackup rig market in the US Gulf of Mexico, where increasing utilisation of marketed rigs lead to 
some increase in dayrates.

On a global basis though, the overall number of rigs on contract increased during FY-19, but by less than 5%. In line with the 
increasing number of rigs on contract, the utilisations of jackup and drillship rig fleets increased, while the utilisation of the semi-
submersible rig fleet decreased to an extent. The total utilisation of the global rig fleet inched upwards towards the high-50s% 
mark, while the marketed utilisation (i.e. calculated by excluding the rigs no longer being marketed for work by rig owners) crept 
up to the high-60s% levels. However, it would be instructive to note that both these metrics averaged in excess of 80% for a 
decade prior to the start of the present industry downturn.
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The abovementioned improvement in utilisations was, in addition to increased demand, also thanks to continuing attrition of rigs, 
which continued at multi-decade high rate of 50+ rigs in the past year too.

The Indian market had another year of high utilisations for the rig fleet working in this market, but at extremely low rates. The 
principal customer for rigs in this market, the national oil company ONGC, introduced a new system of tender evaluation this year 
called the Quality and Cost Based System (QCBS) which, in effect, gives weightage to relative technical capabilities of the offered 
rigs and does not just award all rigs at the lowest rate (among technically qualified rigs) as used to happen so far. In principle, 
such a development would be welcome as it would provide a premium for the higher capability rigs in the market. However, in 
practice, due to the formula applied, only nominal premiums were obtained in the first tender. 

Company Performance 

The Company continued to operate its four jackup rigs in the Indian market during this year too. All four of these rigs were 
operating on ONGC contracts practically for the entire year, though Greatdrill Chitra came off hire after completion of her 
contract a week prior to end of FY-19. However, this rig won a three year contract with ONGC under the aforementioned tender 
with QCBS evaluation, which would mean we would be again starting this financial year with all four rigs having term contracts. 
We continued to operate the rigs to the highest standards of operational efficiency and safety, with there being nil Lost Time 
Incidents (LTIs) in the drilling business during the year and a technical uptime of more than 99%.   

Fleet Changes

There were no additions or deletions to the rig fleet of the Group during the year. There are no newbuilding rigs presently on 
order.

Outlook for Drilling Market

The outlook for global E&P capex is one of modest growth in the coming year, always subject to sentiments regarding future 
oil prices. Contrary to recent years, there is expectation for spending on shale to slow down while offshore spending growth is 
expected to accelerate. However, on an absolute basis, the growth of spending in shale is not expected to be meaningfully lower 
than in offshore; just that the gap in growth rates is likely to narrow in the coming year. The growth in offshore E&P spend is 
also supported by a slow return to exploration drilling, which was hit hardest during this downturn. It can also be seen that the 
offshore drilling market is entering FY-20 with more rigs on contract than at the start of the last year. 

On the supply side of the equation, there still are more than a hundred drilling rigs on order in various shipyards, with about 
half of these penciled in for delivery in the coming year. However, given that almost none of these rigs in the yards have existing 
contracts, it is unlikely that all of these rig deliveries would happen as scheduled. Considering the order book and the state of 
the market, it would be surprising to see any meaningful ordering activity for offshore rigs in the coming year. It may also be 
pertinent to note that every passing year in this downturn is increasing the level of consolidation in the offshore drilling industry 
driven by continued occurrences of mergers and acquisitions.

While the above demand and supply outlooks may paint an improving picture, it needs to be noted that the offshore drilling 
market, which has been on a downward spiral for the last 4 years, tends to turn slowly like a supertanker, unlike the tanker market 
itself as seen in our parent company’s business. It remains to be seen whether the coming year would indeed mark the start of 
such a turn in the drilling market.

As mentioned earlier, all four of the Company’s rigs are covered on contracts and such contracts should largely cover the 
available operating days in FY-20. While such term contracts shield the business from the brunt of non-utilisation of drilling rigs, 
given the low dayrate levels in such contracts, and that only one rig would be earning legacy high dayrate levels in FY-20, it is 
likely that the profitability in our drilling business would be increasingly affected  in the short to medium term.

QUALITY, HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT 

During the year under review, the compliance towards the Integrated Management System comprising ISO 9001:2015 (Quality 
Management System), ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management System) and OHSAS 18001:2007 (Occupational Health 
and Safety Management System) for office and rigs was maintained. These Certification systems are certified by Indian Register 
Quality Systems, Mumbai and by DNVGL in Singapore respectively.
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Annual Surveillance Audit for verification of compliance towards ISO 9001:2015 (Quality Management System), ISO 14001:2015 
(Environmental Management System) and OHSAS 18001:2007 (Occupational Safety Management System) for office, vessels 
and rigs were completed. These audits were carried out by Indian Register Quality Systems, Mumbai.

During the year under review, the Company completed Annual DOC Audit for verification of compliance towards the ISM 
(International Safety Management) Code. The audit was carried out by Directorate General of Shipping, Mumbai. Greatship 
Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd. (GGOS) completed annual audits for verification of compliance towards the ISM code, ISO 
9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 & OHSAS 18001:2007 standards.  These audits were carried out by DNVGL, Singapore. 

All vessels are in compliance with the International Safety Management (ISM) Code, International Ships and Port Facility Security 
(ISPS) Code and Maritime Labour Convention (MLC) 2006 Code. Rigs are operating in the Indian Exclusive Economic Zone and 
are complying with the applicable Petroleum & Natural Gas (Safety in Offshore Operations) Rules, 2008. 

The safety statistics for our fleet – Vessels and Rigs for the year under consideration is as under:

GIL - Vessels GGOS – Vessels RIGS

Fatality NIL NIL NIL

LTI (Loss Time Incident) 2 0 NIL

LTIF (Loss Time Incident Frequency Rate) 0.77 0 NIL

TRIF (Total Recordable Incident Frequency Rate) 0.77 0 NIL

All Fleet vessels & rigs carry out on board safety, environment and security training in the form of drills, safety movies and 
computer based training modules. 

On board the training is imparted by the Senior officers on the job and by the QST department through various modules prepared 
in-house. Training is also being provided ashore to enhance the capability of the crew and officers in specialized courses such as 
SAP, ISM, ISPS, IMS, DP MAINTENANCE. At the same time the shore staffs are also undergoing various Maritime Management 
courses for enhancement of the capability. The SEP (Seafarer’s Enhancement Program) extended to us by INSA is also being 
utilized for the benefit of the Organization. 

With a focus on LFI (Learning from Incidents) concept the Safety Flashes published by IMCA, MTS and other organizations are 
being circulated to all the vessels.

Offsite event was conducted for the Floating staff from 12th to 14th March 2019. The Floating staff were given training on various 
topics including New Developments of Dynamic Positioning System, Best Practices in DP Operation, Leadership on board, 
Digitalization, and Accident Prevention Mechanism. The event was attended by 28 Floating Staff comprising of Master, Chief 
Engineer, Chief Mate, Second Engineer and ETO. 

As per GIL’s in-house scheme, Greatship Dhriti was adjudged as the recipient of ‘Best Ship Award 2018’ and the ‘Best House-
keeping Award 2018” was awarded to Greatship Roopa. The ongoing scheme of GIL has strict evaluation criteria covering 
various operational, technical and HSE related criteria. The selection is based on calendar year basis.

IT INITIATIVES

During the year under review, your Company has undertaken the following IT activities to effectively meet the business 
requirements:

•			  Work has already started to enhance SAP setup by upgrading to the latest ‘S4’ platform which will bring lot of new features 
and enhance analytical capabilities.

•			  The Information Security framework has been further strengthened by adoption of latest security platform from Microsoft 
in addition to the existing tools and practices.
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•			  Work is in progress to align your company’s Information Security Policies with the upcoming Cyber Security Framework for 
the Maritime Industry.

•			Y  our Company carried out a comprehensive ‘Vulnerability Assessment and Penetration Testing (VAPT)’ towards reducing 
the risks of cyber threats and the recommendations have been acted upon.

•			  Adoption of cloud technologies as well as vulnerable operating systems have been increased so as to minimize the cyber 
threats.

•			E  fforts towards IT penetration and adoption of system based way of working are in progress at a fast pace and during 
the year under review, automation was carried out for many operational requirements which has resulted in improved 
availability and dependability of data and information. 

•			  The data backup strategy has been significantly improved by implementing state of the art Network Storage, in addition to 
existing repositories, thereby reducing the risk of data loss.

HUMAN RESOURCES 

During the year under review, your Company focused on managing costs and retaining talent by filling positions through internal 
promotions, transfers and restructuring profiles. Your Company continued to actively engage and connect with staff through off-
sites attended by offshore employees, office employees and management. Your Company also continued its efforts to increase 
efficiency and controls in HR processes through automation.

As on March 31, 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries employed 132 personnel onshore (including contractual) and around 
757 personnel offshore (including contractual).
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Report

The provisions of the listing agreement to be entered into with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (“Stock Exchanges”) (“Listing Agreement”) with respect to corporate governance are not applicable to 
your Company as your Company is not listed with the Stock Exchanges. However, as a measure of good corporate governance 
practice the following report is presented. The corporate governance framework is based on an effective independent Board, 
separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management team and constitution of the Board Committees, as 
required under law. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Your Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse board in its success. The composition of the Board of the 
Company is an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors to maintain the independence of 
the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as ‘Board’) and to separate the Board functions of governance and management. 
As on March 31, 2019, the Board comprised of eight directors, consisting of one non-executive and non-independent chairman, 
two executive directors and five independent directors including one woman director. Subsequent to the end of the financial 
year, Mr. Alok Mahajan has been inducted on the Board of the Company as an additional executive director w.e.f April 01, 2019, 
thereby making the total strength of the Board as nine directors as on date.

The Board is strengthened with higher number of independent directors which enables separation of the board function of 
governance and management. We believe that Board independence is essential to bring objectivity and transparency in the 
management and in the dealings of the Company. All independent directors are persons of eminence and bring a wide range of 
expertise and experience to the Board. 

Attention is invited to the relevant item of notice of Annual General Meeting seeking approval for re-appointment of the retiring 
director.

Meetings of the Board	

Dates for Board meetings in the ensuing year are decided in advance by the Board. Five Board Meetings were held during the 
year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days, as prescribed in Companies Act, 2013. 
The Board Meetings were held on May 02, 2018, August 07, 2018, October 26, 2018, February 04, 2019 and March 16, 2019. 

Agenda and Notes on Agenda are circulated to the Board of Directors, in advance, in the defined Agenda format generally seven 
days prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors. All material information is incorporated in the Agenda papers for facilitating 
meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting. The Board Members in consultation with the Chairman may bring up any 
matter for the consideration of the Board of Directors. 

The Composition of the Board of Directors and their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year and also number of 

other Directorships and Memberships of Committees as on March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Name of Director Nature of Directorship Number of
Board 

Meetings 
Attended

As on March 31, 2019

Number  
of other 

directorship 
public*

Other
Committee 

Memberships**

Chairperson 
of other 

Committees**

Mr. Bharat K. Sheth
(DIN: 00022102)

Non Executive Chairman 5 1 1 NIL
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Name of Director Nature of Directorship Number of
Board 

Meetings 
Attended

As on March 31, 2019

Number  
of other 

directorship 
public*

Other
Committee 

Memberships**

Chairperson 
of other 

Committees**

Mr. Ravi K. Sheth
(DIN: 00022121)

Managing Director 5 2 NIL NIL

Mr. P. R. Naware
(DIN: 00041519)

Executive Director 5 NIL NIL NIL

Mr. Keki Misty
(DIN: 00008886)

Independent Director 3 8 4 2

Mr. Anil Singhvi
(DIN: 00239589)

Independent Director 4 5 2 1

Mr. Mathew Cyriac
(DIN: 01903606)

Independent Director 4 2 NIL 1

Mrs. Rita Bhagwati 
(DIN:06990589)

Independent Director 3 2 1  NIL

Mr. Shaleen Sharma
(DIN: 00202295)

Independent Director 2  NIL  NIL  NIL

1.			  Mrs. Rita Bhagwati and Mr. Shaleen Sharma were appointed as Additional Independent Directors with effect from August 07, 2018 and October 26, 
2018, respectively

2.			  Mr. Shashank Singh has resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f October 29, 2018 and Dr. Swaroop Rawal and Mr. Vineet Nayyar 
have ceased to be the Directors of the Company on completion of their second term as Independent Director on August 06, 2018 and September 19, 
2018, respectively 

3.		 *Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies.
4.		 **Includes memberships of Audit and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees of other companies (excluding Private, Foreign and Section 8 companies). 

Membership excludes Chairmanship of Committees.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on May 02, 2018 as stipulated by the 
Code of Conduct of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013. Another meeting was held on May 02, 2019, wherein 
the Independent Directors discussed about the performance of Non-independent Directors, Chairman and the Board as whole 
and the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the company management and the Board.

Director’s Induction & Familiarisation

For the new independent directors inducted on the Board of the Company, the Company organises a formal induction program 
which includes presentation on the Company’s business, the group organization structure and other important aspects. The 
induction for Independent Directors also includes interactive sessions with Management. Further, at the time of appointment 
of an independent director, the concerned Director is issued a formal letter of appointment setting out in detail, the terms of 
appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. The format of the letter of appointment is available on our 
website http://greatshipglobal.com/uploads/files/Independent_Directors-Appointment_ Letter.pdf 

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has adopted a ‘Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the Board of Directors and Members of Senior 
Management’. The Code mainly covers amongst other things, the duties and obligations of the officers covered under the Code. 
The Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company.
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All the Board members and senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the code for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2019. A declaration to that effect signed by the Managing Director is attached and forms part of the Annual Report of 
the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters, the Board of Directors have constituted 
several Committees with specific terms of reference/scope. The Committee operates as empowered agents of the Board as per 
their terms of reference. The inputs and details required for their decisions are provide by the executives/management. The 
minutes of the meetings of all Committees of the Board are circulated to the directors or placed before the Board for discussions/
noting.

A) 		 AUDIT COMMITTEE

i. 	 The Committee currently comprises of 4 directors (out of which 3 are Independent Directors), namely, Mr. Keki Mistry 
(Chairman), Mr. Anil Singhvi, Mr. Mathew Cyriac and Mr. P. R. Naware.

ii. 	During the year under review, six meetings of the Audit Committee were held on May 02, 2018, June 21, 2018, August 
07, 2018, October 26, 2018, February 4, 2019, and March 16, 2019.

		  Details of attendance of the members at the Committee meetings held during the year under review are as follows:

Name of the Member Number of meetings attended during FY18

Mr. Keki Mistry (Chairman) 5

Mr. Anil Singhvi 5

Mr. Mathew Cyriac 5

Mr. P. R. Naware 6

iii.	The Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Chief Financial Officer, representatives of Internal Audit Firm and 
Statutory Auditors. Whenever required, the Chairman and other senior officials are requested to attend the meetings. Ms. 
Amisha Ghia, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. 

iv. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as under:

1)		  recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment, removal, remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the company; 

2)		  review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
3)		  examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
4)		  approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
5)		  scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
6)		  valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
7)		  evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
8)		  monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;
9)		  overseeing the vigil mechanism established in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013; and
10)	 such other matters as may from time to time be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory 

requirements to be attended to by such Committee and carry out any other function as may be required in relation 
to the above terms of reference.

B) 	N OMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

i.			  The Committee currently comprises of 3 Independent Directors, namely, Mr. Keki Mistry (Chairman), Mr. Anil Singhvi 
and Mr. Mathew Cyriac. During the year, Mr. Vineet Nayyar ceased to be the member of the Committee as he ceased to 



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE report

25

be the director of your Company w.e.f September 19, 2018 as mentioned hereinabove. Mr. Anil Singhvi, Director was 
appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. August 07, 2018. 

ii.		  During the year under review, four meetings of the Committee were held on May 02, 2018, October 26, 2018, December 
12, 2018 and March 12, 2019 respectively. 

			   Details of attendance of the members at the Committee meetings held during the year under review are as under:

Name of the Member Number of meetings attended during FY19

Mr. Keki Mistry (Chairman) 4

Mr. Anil Singhvi 1

Mr. Mathew Cyriac 4

Mr. Vineet Nayyar 1

iii.		  Ms. Amisha Ghia, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

iv.		  Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are broadly as under: 

1)		  identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and to carry out 
evaluation of every director’s performance;

2)		  formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 
to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees 
and any other compensation related matters and issues; and

3)		  such other matters as may from time to time be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory 
requirements to be attended to by such Committee and carry out any other function as maybe required in relation 
to the above terms of reference.

Directors’ Remuneration:

			R   emuneration to Directors is paid as determined by the Board/Nomination & Remuneration Committee in accordance with 
the Remuneration Policy of the Company, which is disclosed as part of Board’s Report and in accordance with the approval 
of the shareholders of the Company. 

			   Although the Company recorded profits for the current FY, in accordance with the calculations under the section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, based on the standalone financial statements, the Company had inadequate profits for managerial 
remuneration. Therefore, the Company has obtained necessary approval of the shareholder(s) by way of a special resolution 
for payment of remuneration to the managerial personnel for FY 2018-19 as required under the provisions of the Section II 
of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

			   Details of Remuneration paid/to be paid to Whole Time Directors for FY 2018-2019:
     (Amt. in `)

Name of Director Salary Perquisites Other Benefits# Variable Pay

Ravi K. Sheth, Managing Director 25,613,034 2,380,411 285,655 29,700,000

P. R. Naware, Executive Director 13,980,423 876,848 748,896 9,280,000

•	 	 Salary includes contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund and does not include provisions made for Retirement Benefit 
Scheme for Managing Director/Post-Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme for Executive Director

•	 	 Salary also excludes variable pay for previous financial year i.e. F.Y. 2017-18
•	 	 Variable Pay for FY 2018-19 to be paid in FY 2019-20
•	 	 Mr. Ravi K Sheth and Mr. P. R. Naware are also entitled to gratuity in accordance with the Company’s rules

•	 	 #does not form part of calculation of remuneration under section 198 of the Act
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a.	P resently, there are no stock options granted to Mr. Ravi K Sheth and Mr. P. R. Naware 

b.	 The Board has approved a Retirement Benefit Scheme for its Managing Director w.e.f April 1, 2012. The Scheme 
provides for provision of pension, medical reimbursement and other benefits to the retiring Managing Director. On 
the basis of actuarial valuation, in the current year an amount of ` 0.50 crores was provided for pension payable to 
Managing Director on his retirement (in the previous year the provision was reduced by ` 0.21 crores).

c.	 During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company have approved and implemented Post-Retirement Medical 
Benefit Scheme for the Executive Directors and Senior Management Employees of the Company w.e.f February 4, 
2019. The Scheme provides for provision of certain medical benefits and reimbursements, post retirement to selected 
employees, including the Executive Directors. On the basis of actuarial valuation, in the current year a provision for an 
amount of ` 0.30 crores was made for the medical benefits to be provided to the Executive Director post completion 
of his tenure with the Company.

d.	 The Company or Mr. Ravi K. Sheth shall be entitled to terminate his appointment by giving six month’s notice in 
writing

e.	 The Company or Mr P. R. Naware shall be entitled to terminate his appointment by giving three month’s notice in 
writing

Details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Independent Directors during FY 2018-19:

 (Amount in `)
Name of Director Sitting Fees
Anil Singhvi 1,000,000
Keki Mistry 1,200,000
Mathew Cyriac 1,300,000
Swaroop Rawal
(ceased to be director w.e.f. August 06, 2018)

100,000

Rita Bhagwati
(appointed w.e.f August 07, 2018)

300,000

Vineet Nayyar
(ceased to be director w.e.f. September 19, 2018)

300,000

Shaleen Sharma
(appointed w.e.f  October 26, 2018)

200,000

Shashank Singh
(resigned w.e.f. October 29, 2018)

200,000

Total 4,600,000

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197 (3) read with Schedule V, no commission was paid to the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company due to the inadequacy of profits for the FY 18-19.

The Company has no pecuniary relationship or transactions with its Non-Executive Directors other than payment of 
sitting fees.

C) 		 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

i.			  The Committee currently comprises of 3 directors (out of which 2 are Independent Directors), namely, Mr. Mathew 
Cyriac (Chairman), Mr. Shaleen Sharma and Mr. P. R. Naware. 

ii.		  During the year, Dr. Swaroop Rawal and Mr. Shashank Singh ceased to be the members of the CSR Committee as they 
ceased to be the directors of your Company as mentioned hereinabove. Mr. Shaleen Sharma, Director was appointed 
as a member of the CSR Committee w.e.f December 28, 2018. 

			   During the year under review, one meeting of the Committee was held on May 02, 2018 which was attended by Mr. 
Mathew Cyriac, Dr. Swaroop Rawal and Mr. P R Naware. 
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iii.		  Ms. Amisha Ghia, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

iv.		  Terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are broadly as under:

1)		  formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities 
to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 and make any 
modifications or amendments to the policy, as may be required;

2)		  recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a);

3)		  monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time and institute monitoring 
mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken by the Company; and

4)		  carry out such other function as may be required, from time to time, to comply with the section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules prescribed thereunder or in relation to the above terms of reference.

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR 
REGARDING ADHERENCE TO THE Company’S CODE OF CONDUCT

I hereby confirm that, all Directors and Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code 
of Conduct laid down by the Company, as applicable to them for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

For Greatship (India) Limited

Ravi K. Sheth

Managing Director

Date: May 02, 2019
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ANNEXURE 3 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES AS ON MARCH 31, 2019

Particulars Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2007 - II (“ESOP 
2007-II”) 

Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2008 - II (“ESOP 
2008-II”) 

Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2010 (“ESOP 
2010”)

Options granted 99,700 925,900 565,300

The pricing formula These options were 
granted at a price of ` 100, 
which is the price at which 
certain Equity Shares were 
allotted to GESCO#

These options were granted 
at a price of ` 135, which 
is above the price at which 
certain Equity Shares were 
allotted to GESCO#

These options were 
granted at a price of  
` 135, which is above 
the price at which certain 
Equity Shares were 
allotted to GESCO#

Exercise price of options ` 100 ` 135 ` 135

Total Options vested  
(net of forfeited)

89,100 678,900 313,340

Options exercised Nil 12,320* Nil

Options encashed 89,100 678,900 313,340

Total number of Equity Shares 
arising as a result of exercise of 
options

Nil Nil Nil

Options forfeited/lapsed/cancelled 
till date

10,600 234,680 251,960

Variation in terms of options @ Please see Note 2 below Nil Nil

Money realised by exercise of options Nil Nil Nil

Options outstanding (in force) Nil Nil Nil

Person wise details of options 
granted (net of options encashed) 
during the year :

(i)	Senior Managerial Personnel Nil Nil Nil

(ii)	Any other employee who 
received a grant of options 
amounting to 5% or more of the 
options granted during the year 
ended March 31, 2017

Nil Nil Nil
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Particulars Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2007 - II (“ESOP 
2007-II”) 

Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2008 - II (“ESOP 
2008-II”) 

Employee Stock Option 
Scheme 2010 (“ESOP 
2010”)

(iii)Identified employees who are 
granted options, during any one 
year equal to exceeding 1% of 
the issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of our Company at 
the time of grant 

Nil Nil Nil

Fully diluted EPS on exercise of 
options calculated in accordance 
with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 
‘Earning Per Share’

4.03 4.03 4.03

Weighted-average exercise prices 
and weighted-average fair values of 
options shall be disclosed separately 
for options whose exercise price 
either equals or exceeds or is less 
than the market price of the stock

NA NA NA

* 	 were settled by payment of cash in accordance with the Scheme upon resignation by employee
@		  Deputation or interim discontinuation of service of an employee at the discretion of the Company, is to be considered as continued employment 

under the various ESOP Schemes, as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors.
#		  The Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. (Parent Company)

Note 1: Variation in terms of options – ESOP 2007-II:

Under ESOP 2007 – II, vesting conditions relating to continued employment with our Company was modified with effect from 
November 5, 2008, to provide for transfer of employment within the group companies.

Note 2: All the ESOP Schemes stand closed as on March 31, 2019, with the encashment of all the outstanding stock options 
under the existing ESOP schemes of the Company during the year under review.
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ANNEXURE 4 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2018-19

1			  The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company was approved by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
at its meeting held on December 11, 2014 and the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on January 27, 
2015. Copy of the policy is available on the website of the Company: www.greatshipglobal.com. 

			   The policy applies to all CSR projects/programmes undertaken by the Company as per liberal interpretations of activities 
listed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 within the geographical limits of India towards the benefit of marginalized, 
disadvantaged, poor and deprived sections of the community and the environment. 

			   As per the policy, in every financial year, the Company will spend at least 2% of the average profits over the past three 
financial years on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) causes. 

			   The objectives of the Company’s CSR policy are to:

a)		  Demonstrate commitment to the common good through responsible business practices and good governance.

b)		  Actively support the state’s development agenda to ensure sustainable and equitable change.

c)		  Set high standards of quality in the delivery of services in the social sector by creating robust processes and replicable 
models.

d)		E  ngender a sense of empathy and equity among employees of Greatship to motivate them to give back to the society.

The Company’s CSR efforts will be focused in the areas of:

I.			  Promoting education and knowledge enhancement, including but not limited to: 

a.		E  stablishment and management of educational and knowledge enhancement infrastructure.

b.		  Provision of financial or other assistance to the needy and/or deserving students.

c.		  Providing financial assistance to any Agency involved in education, knowledge enhancement and sports

d.		  Contribution to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are approved by the Central 
Government.

II.		  Eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition 

III.		P romoting health care and sanitation

			   The policy may be implemented directly by the Company or through Great Eastern CSR Foundation, a company 
incorporated by The Great Eastern Shipping Co. Ltd. (Parent Company) u/s 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 for undertaking 
CSR Activities. 

2	 		  The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company was constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company at 
its meeting held on April 29, 2014. The CSR Committee currently comprises of Mr. Mathew Cyriac, Chairman (Independent 
Director), Mr. Shaleen Sharma (Independent Director and Mr. P. R. Naware (Executive Director). During the year under 
review, Dr. Swaroop Rawal and Mr. Shashank Singh ceased to be the members of the CSR Committee as they ceased to be 
the directors of the Company and Mr. Shaleen Sharma was inducted as the member of the CSR Committee w.e.f December 
28, 2019.
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3			  Average net profit of the Company calculated as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for last three 
financial years was ` 148 crores.

4			  The prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the average net profits as in point no. 3 above) is ` 2.96 crores.	

5			  Details of CSR spent during the financial year are as follows:

a)		  Total amount to be spent for the financial year 2018-19- ` 2.96 crores

b)		  Amount unspent – NIL

c)		  Manner in which the amount was spent during the financial year - The Company has contributed the entire amount 
of ` 2.96 crores to Great Eastern CSR Foundation. The details of amount spent by Great Eastern CSR Foundation and 
Company’s CSR activities are enclosed as Annexure to this report.

6			  The CSR committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the 
CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Mr. Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director 
(DIN: 00022121)

Mr. Mathew Cyriac
Chairman – CSR Committee
(DIN: 01903606)

Mumbai, May 2, 2019
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ANNEXURE TO THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2018-19

S.
No.

CSR project or activity identified Sector in which 
the project is 
covered

Projects or programs 
(1) Local area or 
other 
(2) Specify the State 
and district  where 
projects or programs 
were undertaken

Amount outlay 
(budget) project 
or program wise 

Amount spent during 
the year on the  
projects or programs
Sub-heads
(1) Direct Expenditure  
on projects or program
(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period

Amount 
spent Direct 
or through 
Implimenting 
agency

1 TEACH FOR INDIA (TEACH TO LEAD)
- a nationwide movement of outstanding college 
graduates and professionals who will commit two-
years to teach full-time in under resourced schools 
and who will become lifelong leaders working 
from within various sectors towards the pursuit of 
equity in education
Donation is being utilised for fully funding 46 
fellows from Teach for India

Promoting 
education

The fellows being 
sponsored are from 
Pune and Delhi

` 6.91 cr  
(contributed over 
a period of 4 
financial years)

Total funds utilized by 
organization: ` 0.88 cr 

` 6.91cr Amount was 
contributed 
through Great 
Eastern CSR 
Foundation to 
Teach-To-Lead

2 TAMARIND TREE TRUST
- A foundation based out of Dahanu that runs a 
school that provides quality English education for 
local tribal children through the utilization of e 
learning and digital technology. 
Donation is going towards the running of the 
Tamarind Tree School. 

Promoting 
education

Dahanu Taluka, 
Maharashtra

` 1.76 cr  
(contributed over 
a period of 5 
financial years)

Total funds utilized by 
organization: `  0.37 cr 

` 1.66 cr Amount was 
contributed 
through Great 
Eastern CSR 
Foundation to 
Tamarind Tree 
Trust

3 LEND-A-HAND-INDIA
- An NGO that complements existing secondary 
school curricula  with skills education, resulting 
in education that is relevant to employment. LAHI 
model is to provide vocational training (multiple 
trades to children giving an all-round exposure) to 
9th to 12th class students
Donation is going topwards helping LAHI to start 
their intervention in 10 new schools and enhance 
the quality of training in another 10 schools across 
Maharashtra.

Promoting 
livelihood 
development 

Different schools 
across Maharashtra 

` 3.66 cr  
(contributed over 
a period of 4 
financial years)

Total funds utilized by 
organization: `  1.26 cr 

` 3.66 cr Amount was 
contributed 
through Great 
Eastern CSR 
Foundation to 
Lend-A-Hand-
India

4 SWAYAM SHIKSHAN PRAYOG (SSP)
- an NGO that works towards promoting 
empowerment of women as leaders and 
entrepreneurs through self-help groups, social 
enterprises and community led initiatives. 
Donation is going towards creating livelihoods 
for 5000 women across 50 villages in Latur in 
Maharashtra in addition to sustainable solutions to 
drought and allied issues.

Promoting 
livelihood 
development

50 villages in Latur in 
Maharashtra

` 3.94 cr  
(contributed over 
a period of 4 
financial years)

Total funds utilized by 
organization: ` 1.31 cr 

` 3.34cr Part of the 
amount was 
contributed 
directly to 
SSP and part 
through the 
Great Eastern 
CSR Foundation

5 MUKTANGAN (PARAGON CHARITABLE TRUST)
- a new model of education providing quality, child-
centred, inclusive English-medium schooling to 
thousands of underprivileged children in Mumbai
- has partnered with BMC to run a number of 
municipal schools in Mumbai, one of which is 
funded through our donations. 
Donation also towards supporting the teacher 
training program through which Muktangan 
transform high school educated slum youth into 
good quality teachers

Promoting 
Education

The Muktangan 
School supported by 
Great Eastern CSR 
Foundation (GECSRF)  
is in Prabhadevi, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra 

` 4.31 cr  
(contributed over 
a period of 3 
financial years)

Total funds utilized by 
organization: NA* 

` 4.31cr Part of the 
amount was 
contributed 
through Great 
Eastern CSR 
Foundation and 
balance was 
contributed 
directly to 
Paragon 
Charitable Trust

Overall Overheads Expenditure incurred by Great 
Eastern CSR Foundation proportionate to the 
contribution made by the Company

` 39,641

* The partnership with Muktangan was completed by end June 2018.

Note : Great Eastern CSR Foundation is evaluating various projects and the balance amount will be spent in due course.
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ANNEXURE 5 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
POLICY FOR APPOINTMENTS

Policy Adoption
This policy has been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company (‘NRC’) at its meeting 
held on January 27, 2015 and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on January 27, 2015 and is 
applicable with effect from the said date.  

Purpose
The primary objective of the Policy is to provide a framework and set standards for the appointment of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel (SMP)

APPOINTMENT POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

1.		  Board Constitution
			   The Company believes that the Board membership should comprise directors with an appropriate balance of skills, 

experience, knowledge and the capacity and ability to lead the Company towards achieving sustainable development to 
enable the directors individually and the Board collectively, to:

• 		 discharge their responsibilities and duties under the law effectively and efficiently;

• 		 understand the business of the Company and the environment in which the Company operates so as to be able to agree 
with management the objectives, goals and strategic direction which will maximise shareholder value; and

• 		 assess the performance of management in meeting those objectives and goals.

			   The requirement for appointment of an Independent Director will be arrived at by the Board in line with the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder and other regulatory requirements. Constitution of Board and 
skill sets may be factored in while considering appointment of Independent Director. 

2.		Q  ualifications and Experience
			   Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company HR policy, NRC shall identify and 

ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director and recommend to 
the Board his / her appointment.

			   NRC has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and experience of such candidate. 

3.		  Attributes
			   The general attributes for Executive Directors and Independent Directors that are desired and adopted as criteria for 

appointment are detailed in Annexure – 1 with the guidelines.

4.		  Appointment process
			   Matching the needs of the Company and enhancing the competencies of the Board are the basis for the NRC to select a 

candidate for appointment to the Board. In case required, the NRC may also take help from external consultants to identify 
potential directors.

			R   ecommendations of the NRC shall be placed before the Board of Directors for its consideration. After considering the 
recommendations of the Committee, the decision on the appointment of the Directors shall be taken by the Board of 
Directors. The appointment so made shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders. 

			   After the Director is appointed, a formal letter of appointment shall be issued to him / her by the Company.

APPOINTMENT POLICY FOR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (SMP)

1.		R  eview of organization structure and Competency Requirements 
			   The appointment of KMP’s and SMP’s will be on the basis of requirements of the organization structure and detailed roles 

of positions within the structure for effective and efficient management of the business.
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			   The management committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and experience for the 
concerned position. The management committee will consider the competency requirements in accordance with the 
Company’s HR policies.

2.		  Appointment of KMP and SMP

			   KMP for appointment will be nominated by the Management Committee, recommended by the NRC to the Board for approval 
and appointed by the Board. 

			   The appointment of personnel to Senior Management positions will be delegated to the Management Committee and their 
appointments will be noted by the Board.

Annexure 1: Criteria for appointment 

I.			  Executive Directors

Attribute Description
Competency requirements for 
Managing Director

 Leads the organization with overall responsibility for business strategy, capital 
allocation, business performance and risk management.

 Ability to formulate and navigate businesss strategy based on the economic 
environment and opportunities

 Ability to understand and mitigate business, operational and financial risks as 
appropriate for the offshore industry

 Ability to lead the organization and manage stakeholder relationships with clients, 
shareholders and personnel

Competency requirements for 
other Executive Director(s)

 Leads business operations with responsibility for functional integration of core 
operating and corporate functions, resource allocation and business policies.

 Ability to formulate and oversee business policies and risk management 
frameworks appropriate the business environment

 Ability to match resource requirements for implementation of business plans
 Ability to lead the organization and manage stakeholder relationships with clients, 

key partners, authorities and personnel

II.		  Independent Directors

Attribute Description
Independence & Commitment  Meets the criteria of independence as laid down in section 149 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, as may be amended or substituted from time to time
 Demonstrates commitment to invest the amount of time required to effectively 

discharge duties as an independent director
Business Values  Identifies with the core values of the company and holds a reputation for integrity 

in running business
 Is committed to establishing and / or maintaining high standards of corporate 

governance in the Company and other organizations associated with
Business Leadership 
experience

 Holds or has held a senior leadership position in an organization of business 
complexity at par or higher than that of the Company

 Has experience of development and execution of business strategies through 
different phases of business or economic cycles

Board experience  Possesses experience of serving on a board of directors as an executive director 
of a reputed company, or

 Has experience of serving as an independent director of a reputed company
Stature in industry  Holds a high degree of credibility in the general industry

 Is professionally networked with a set of relationships across various institutions 
of the economy
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ANNEXURE 6 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
REMUNERATION POLICY

POLICY ADOPTION

This policy has been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at its meeting held on 
January 27, 2015 and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on January 27, 2015, pursuant to 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and is applicable with effect from the said date. 

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS

1.		R  ecommendation & approval authorities

a.	 For Executive Directors: The remuneration of the executive directors is recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’) and approved by the Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) and shareholders of 
the Company within the overall limits as may be prescribed under applicable laws. 

b.	 For Non-Executive Directors: The remuneration of the non-executive directors is approved by the Board of Directors (the 
‘Board’) and shareholders of the Company within the overall limits as may be prescribed under applicable laws.

c.	 Independence of decisions: Decisions regarding remuneration for executive directors is the responsibility of the 
Committee. Executive directors are not consulted directly by the Committee when making policy decisions. 

2.		  Forward looking nature

			   This Policy is a forward-looking document. It is hereby clarified that existing obligations of the Company under existing 
contracts, pension scheme, etc. which are outstanding at the time this Policy is approved shall continue to be honoured by 
the Company. It is the Company’s policy to honour in full any pre-existing obligations that have been entered into prior to 
the effective date of this Policy.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Key Principles

Attracting and retaining requisite talent is a key objective of the Company’s approach to remuneration. The core elements of 
salary, variable pay1, benefits and pension continue to provide an effective, relatively simple, performance-based system that fits 
well with the nature of Company’s business and strategy.

The remuneration policy for executive directors has been consistently guided by the following key principles, which represent the 
underlying approach of the Board and the Committee:

a)		  The remuneration structure of executive directors is designed to reflect the nature of business in which the Company 
operates. The industry has long term business cycles, is capital intensive, highly regulated and has significant safety 
and environmental risks requiring specific entrepreneurial skills and experience, which the Company must attract and 
retain.

b)		  A substantial proportion of executive directors’ remuneration is linked to success in implementing the Company’s 
strategy and varies with performance of the Company.  

c)		  There is quantitative and qualitative assessment of each executive director’s performance.

d)		  Total overall remuneration takes account of both the external market and company conditions to achieve a balanced 
and fair outcome.

e)		E  nsuring that executive directors are remunerated in a way that reflects the Company’s long-term strategy. Consistent 
with this, a high proportion of executive directors’ total remuneration has been, and will always be, strongly linked to 
the Company’s performance.

1 amended w.e.f. October 30, 2018
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Elements of remuneration

Executive directors’ remuneration shall be divided into following elements:

1.		  Consolidated Salary

a.		  Inclusions in consolidated salary: Consolidated Salary shall include basic salary and Company’s contribution to 
Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and all other allowances payable from time to time. Company’s contribution to 
Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund allowances, etc. shall be as per the rules of the Company and determined as per 
the applicable laws, if any, from time to time.

b.		  Industry comparison: While determining Consolidated Salary, salary levels and total remuneration paid by companies 
of similar size and stature engaged in shipping, offshore and other industries shall be considered by the Committee.

c.		  Revision of scales 2: Scale of Consolidated Salary shall be fixed for a period of 5 years or such other period as may be 
decided by the Committee or the Board from time to time and shall be reviewed thereafter.

d.		  Annual review: Actual Consolidated Salary payable every year shall be reviewed annually within the broader scale as 
aforesaid.

			   Salary reviews consider both external competitiveness and internal consistency when determining if any increases 
should be applied. Salaries are compared against other shipping and offshore majors, but the Company also monitors 
market practice among companies of a similar size, geographic spread and business dynamic to the Company.

			   Salary increases are not directly linked to performance. However, a base-line level of personal contribution is needed 
in order to be considered for a salary increase and exceptional sustained contribution may be grounds for accelerated 
salary increases.

2.		  Benefits 

			   There are certain benefits, such as car-related benefits, insurance and medical benefits, etc. which are made available by the 
Company to its employees generally in accordance with its rules / terms of employment. Executive directors are entitled to 
receive those benefits.

			   Annexure - 1 details the benefits applicable for Executive Directors.

3.		R  eimbursements

			R   eimbursement of expenses incurred by the Managing Director(s) during business trips for travelling, boarding and lodging, 
including for their respective spouses will be provided by the Company. 

			R   eimbursement of expenses incurred by other Executive Director(s) during business trips for travelling, boarding and 
lodging will be provided by the Company.

4.		  Variable Pay 3

			   It provides a variable level of remuneration dependent on short-term performance of the individual as well as the Company 
vis a vis industry performance globally. The test of performance by the Company is whether it is able to increase its profits 
when the industry environment is favourable and whether it is able to minimise its losses when the environment is harsh. 
The Company believes that performance of each and every employee of the Company contributes to its overall performance 
and hence should be rewarded suitably. Hence, the Company follows the policy of making payment of variable pay to its 
executive directors annually. 

			   Variable pay is decided based on performance of executive directors as well as the Company. Where possible, the Company 
uses quantifiable, hard targets that can be factually measured and objectively assessed. The Company also reviews the 
underlying performance of the group in light of the annual plan, competitors results, etc.

			   Variable pay may vary from time to time but shall be maximum four times of the annual Consolidated Salary in case of 
Managing Director and one time of the annual Consolidated Salary in case of other Executive Directors. Executive Directors 
with bigger operating responsibilities may be entitled to more variable pay as compared to others.

2 amended w.e.f October 30, 2018
3 amended w.e.f October 30, 2018
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Key Principles

The principle which underpins the board’s policy for the remuneration of NEDs is that the remuneration should be sufficient 
to attract, motivate and retain world-class non-executive talent. The remuneration practice should also be consistent with 
recognized best practice standards for NED remuneration.

Elements of Remuneration

1.		  Sitting fees 4 

			   The NEDs are paid sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and of certain committees of the Board, viz., 
Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Board shall decide the amount of sitting fees payable 
to the NEDs for attending meetings of the Board of Directors or the Committees of the Board of Directors, subject to the 
applicable limits as per the Companies Act, 2013. 

			   Presently, NEDs are paid sitting fees of ` 1 lakh per meeting for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and the 
meetings of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

2.		  Commission 

			   It provides a variable level of remuneration dependent on short-term performance of the Company, i.e. net profits every 
year. 

			   Quantum of Commission is determined by the Board on a year to year basis. Additional commission is paid to the directors 
who hold Memberships/Chairmanships of various committees of Board of Directors as per the decision of the Board, over 
and above the Commission payable as a Director.

3.		R  eimbursements 5

			   All reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred by NEDs in carrying out their duties are reimbursed. 

			   The Company does not provide share options or retirement benefits to NEDs. 
4 amended w.e.f October 30, 2018
5  inserted w.e.f October 30, 2018
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Annexure – 1: Benefits applicable for Executive Directors 6

Managing Director:

The Company shall provide following benefits to Managing Director(s) as per the rules of the Company:

a)		  Transportation/conveyance facilities

b)		  Telecommunication facilities at residence

c)		  Leave encashment 

d)		R  eimbursement of medical expenses incurred for himself and his family

e)		  Insurance cover

f)			  Fees of Clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs

g)		  Leave Travel allowance

h)		G  ratuity

i)			  Other benefits as may be applicable from time to time

Managing Director(s) shall also be entitled to bonafide payment (which shall include providing perquisites) by way of pension in 
accordance with the scheme to be formulated by the Board of Directors or any Committee thereof from time to time, subject to 
the limits prescribed under applicable laws, if any. 

Other Executive Director(s):

The Company shall provide following benefits to other Executive Director(s) as per rules of the Company:

a)		  Transportation/conveyance facilities

b)		  Telecommunication facilities at residence

c)		  Leave encashment 

d)		R  eimbursement of medical expenses incurred for himself and his family

e)		  Insurance cover 

f)			  Leave travel reimbursement/allowance

g)		  Membership Fees of Clubs

h)		G  ratuity

i)			  Other benefits as may be applicable to his grade from time to time

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR EMPLOYEES

1.		  Approving authority

			   The determination of each employee’s remuneration is delegated to the Management Committee. 

2.		  Forward looking nature

			   This Policy is a forward-looking document. It is hereby clarified that existing obligations of the Company under existing 
contracts, pension scheme, etc. which are outstanding at the time this Policy is approved shall continue to be honoured by 
the Company. It is the Company’s policy to honour in full any pre-existing obligations that have been entered into prior to 
the effective date of this Policy.

3.		  Key Principles

			   The following principles are adopted as a framework for remuneration of all employees (including senior management and 
key managerial personnel). 

6 replaced w.e.f October 30, 2018
7 inserted w.e.f February 4, 2019
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a.	 Fixed and variable components: 

		  The proportion of fixed and variable components in remuneration for personnel at different levels will be balanced to 
reflect short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.  

b.	 Benchmarking compensation packages:

		  The overall compensation packages will be benchmarked with salaries paid at similar levels in the industry and calibrated 
to attract and retain the kind of talent the Company requires. 

4.		  Elements of remuneration

			   The overall compensation of an employee shall be divided into the following elements:

a.	 Fixed Pay or the CTC:

		  The Fixed Pay or the CTC of an employee shall broadly comprise of the below listed components:

-		 Basic
-		 HRA
-		 Car Fuel& Maintenance (own car/company car based on the eligibility as per grade)
-		 Conveyance Allowance 
-		 LTA/Medical, 
-		P rovident Fund, 
-		 Superannuation Fund, 
-		 National Pension Scheme, 
-		 Leadership Compensation, 
-		 Savings Allowance, 
-		 Children Education Allowance, 
-		 Self-development, etc.

7 Executive Director(s) shall also be entitled to receive medical benefit after retirement in accordance with the Post-Retirement 
Medical Benefit Scheme dated February 4, 2019 (as may be amended from time to time), if selected for such entitlement by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the said Scheme.

 			   Some of the components mentioned above are optional where employees can choose not to avail them. The sub-limits of 
each of these components as a percentage of Fixed Pay or CTC may differ for each employee based on his grade.

			   The Fixed Pay or the CTC of an employee shall be reviewed and revised annually by the Management Committee.

b.		  Variable Pay or Performance Incentive Pay:

			   Variable pay will be clearly linked to the performance of the Company and that of the employee. Performance of all employees 
shall be reviewed annually and shall be rated on a 5 point scale. Based on the Company’s annual performance and the 
performance rating of the employee, the Variable Pay of the employee shall be determined by the Management Committee 
as a percentage of fixed pay on an annual basis.

c.		  Other Benefits:

			   The various other benefits, over and above the Fixed Pay and the Variable Pay, shall be as per the Company’s HR Policy 
which will be decided by the Management Committee. 

			   8 Senior Management employees of the Company in the grades of ‘Vice President’ and above shall also be entitled to to 
receive medical benefit after retirement in accordance with the Post-Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme dated February 
4, 2019 (as may be amended from time to time), if selected for such entitlement by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee in accordance with the said Scheme.

8 inserted w.e.f February 4, 2019. 
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ANNEXURE 7 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administration) 
Rules, 2014]

I. 	R EGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN U63090MH2002PLC136326

2. Registration Date 26 June 2002

3. Name of the Company Greatship (India) Limited

4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company limited by shares

5. Address of the Registered office  & 
contact details

Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Elphinstone Road (W), Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 013

6. Whether listed company No

7. Name, Address & contact details of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

NA

II. 	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE Company
			   All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S. 
No.

Name and description of main products / 
services

NIC Code of the 
Product/service

%  to total turnover of the Company

1 Offshore Oilfield Services        09101*
       09103* 100

			   *As per National Industrial Classification 2008

III. 	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. 
No.

Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
Shares 

held

Applicable 
Section

1 The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited
Ocean House134/A,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra  - 400018

L35110MH1948 
PLC006472

Holding 
Company

100 2(46)

2 Greatship Oilfield Services Limited+
Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 23rd Floor, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (W), 
Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400 013

U74900MH2015 
PLC266483

Subsidiary 
Company

100 2(87)(ii)

3 Greatship (UK) Limited
10 Queen Street Place, London United 
Kingdom-EC4R 1AG

NA Subsidiary 
Company

100 2(87)(ii)
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S. 
No.

Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of 
Shares 

held

Applicable 
Section

4 Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd. 
15 Hoe Chiang Road,
Tower Fifteen, #06-03,
Singapore 089316

NA Subsidiary 
Company

100 2(87)(ii)

5 Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd.#

15 Hoe Chiang Road,
Tower Fifteen, #06-03,
Singapore 089316

NA Subsidiary 
Company

100 2(87)(ii)

			   Note: During the year, Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Greatship Global Holdings Limited (GGHL) has merged with 
the Company with the appointed date under the Scheme of Amalgamation being April 1, 2017. Consequent to the merger 
of GGHL with the Company. Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd, which was the wholly owned subsidiary of GGHL, 
became the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

			 

IV. 	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 

       	Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity

i.		 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% Change 
during 

the year      Demat Physical Total
% of 
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

a) Individual/ HUF -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

b) Central Govt -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

c) State Govt(s) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

d) Bodies Corp. -  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 -  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 NIL

e) Banks/ FI -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

f) Any other -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Sub-total (A) (1) -  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 -  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 NIL

 

(2) Foreign 

NRIs – Individuals -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Other – Individuals -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Bodies Corp. -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Banks / FI -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Any other -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Sub-total (A) (2) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1) 
+ (A)(2)

-  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 -  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 NIL



annual report 2018-19

Category of 
Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% Change 
during 

the year      Demat Physical Total
% of 
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

B. Public 
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

b) Banks / FI -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

c) Central Govt -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

d) State Govt(s) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

e) Venture Capital 
Funds

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

f) Insurance 
Companies

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

g) FIIs -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

i) Others (specify) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Sub-total (B)(1):- -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

 

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp. -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

i) Indian -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

ii) Overseas -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

b) Individuals -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 lakh

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

c) Others (specify) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Sub-total (B)(2):- -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+ (B)(2)

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

-  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Grand Total (A+B+C) -  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 -  111,345,500 111,345,500 100 NIL
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ii. 	Shareholding of Promoter-

S. 
No.

Shareholder’s 
Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

% change in 
sharehold-
ing during 
the year    No. of 

Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged /  

encumbered to  
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / en-

cumbered to total 
shares

1 The Great 
Eastern Shipping 
Company Limited

111,345,500 100 NIL 111,345,500 100 NIL NIL

iii) 	Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (THE GREAT EASTERN SHIPPING Company LIMITED)

S. 
No. Particulars

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares
% of total

shares of the
Company

No. of shares
% of total

shares of the
Company

1. At the beginning of the year 111,345,500 100 111,345,500 100

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

No Change No Change 111,345,500 100

3. At the end of the year 111,345,500 100 111,345,500 100

iv) 	Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 

    	(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

S. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the

Year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

Company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

Company

1. At the beginning of the year NA

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

 
NA

3. At the end of the year NA
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v) 	Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S. 
No.

Shareholding of each Directors and 
each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year

No. of shares
% of total

shares of the
Company

No. of shares
% of total

shares of the
Company

1. At the beginning of the year NIL

2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

NA

3. At the end of the year NIL

V)	 INDEBTEDNESS
			   Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(` in crores)

 

Secured Loans 
excluding Preference 
& deposits & deferred 

finance charges

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year (recasted as per IND AS)

       

i) Principal Amount 2,019.21 NIL NIL 2,019.21

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due 3.73 NIL NIL 3.73

Total (i+ii+iii) 2,022.94 NIL NIL 2,022.94

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year

       

    Addition (excluding Refinancing) - NIL NIL -

 Reduction (excluding Refinancing) (227.20) NIL NIL (227.20)

 Addition to exchange impact 125.34 NIL NIL 125.34

 Addition in Interest accrued but not 
due

0.40 NIL NIL 0.40

Net Change (101.46) NIL NIL (101.46)

Indebtedness at the end of the  
financial year

       	

i) Principal Amount 1,917.35 NIL NIL 1,917.35

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due 4.13 NIL NIL 4.13

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,921.48 NIL NIL 1,921.48
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VI. 	R EMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

			   A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:                           
(Amount in `)

S. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total Amount
 

   
Mr. Ravi K. 

Sheth, Managing 
Director

Mr. P. R. Naware, 
Executive Director

1 Gross salary      

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (i)

25,613,034/- 13,980,423/- 39,593,457/-

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 (ii) 2,380,411/- 876,848/- 3,257,259/-

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)  
Income- tax Act, 1961

 NIL NIL   NIL

2 Stock Option (granted during the year)  NIL NIL  NIL

3 Sweat Equity  NIL NIL   NIL

4 Commission 
-  as % of profit (iii) 
-  others, specify (variable pay) (iii)

NIL
29,700,000/-

NIL
9,280,000/-

NIL
38,980,000/-

5 Other Benefits# 285,655/- 748,896/- 1,034,551/-

  Total (i) + (ii) + (iii) = (A) 57,693,445/- 24,137,271/- 81,830,716/-
  Ceiling as per the Act (` in crores) In accordance with the special resolution passed by the 

shareholders at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 
held on October 30, 2018

•	 	 Salary includes contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund and does not include provisions made for Retirement Benefit 
Scheme for Managing Director/Post-Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme for Executive Director

•	 	 Salary also excludes variable pay for previous financial year i.e. F.Y. 2017-18
•	 	 Variable Pay for FY 2018-19 to be paid in FY 2019-20
•	 	 Mr. Ravi K Sheth and Mr. P. R. Naware are also entitled to gratuity in accordance with the Company’s rules
•	 	 #does not form part of calculation of remuneration under section 198 of the Act

			   Note: 

a)		  The Board has approved a Retirement Benefit Scheme for its Managing Director w.e.f April 1, 2012. The Scheme 
provides for provision of pension, medical reimbursement and other benefits to the retiring Managing Director. On 
the basis of actuarial valuation, in the current year an amount of ` 0.50 crores was provided for pension payable to 
Managing Director on his retirement (in the previous year the provision was reduced by ` 0.21 crores).

b)		  During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company have approved and implemented Post-Retirement Medical 
Benefit Scheme for the Executive Directors and Senior Management Employees of the Company w.e.f February 4, 
2019. The Scheme provides for provision of certain medical benefits and reimbursement post retirement to selected 
employees, including the Executive Directors. On the basis of actuarial valuation, in the current year a provision for an 
amount of ̀  0.30 crores was made for the medical benefits to be provided to the Executive Director post his retirement.

			   Although the Company recorded profits for the current FY, in accordance with the calculations under the section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, based on the standalone financial statements, the Company had inadequate profits for managerial 
remuneration. Therefore, the Company has obtained necessary approval of the shareholder(s) by way of a special resolution 
for payment of remuneration to the managerial personnel for FY 2018-19 as required under the provisions of the Section II 
of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.
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			   B. Remuneration to other directors
            (Amount in `)

S. 
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration Name of Directors Total 

Amount
    Mr. 

Bharat K. 
Sheth

Mr. Anil 
Singhvi

Mr. Keki 
Mistry

Mr. 
Mathew 
Cyriac

Mrs. Rita 
Bhagwati

Dr. 
Swaroop 
Rawal

Mr. 
Shashank 

Singh

Mr. 
Shaleen 
Sharma

Mr. 
Vineet 
Nayyar

 

1 Independent Directors          

Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

NA 1,000,000 1,200,000 1,300,000 300,000 1,000,000 200,000 200,000 300,000 4,600,000

Commission@  NA NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify  NA NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (1) NA 1,000,000 1,200,000 1,300,000 300,000 1,000,000 200,000 200,000 300,000 4,600,000

2 Other Non-Executive 
Directors

 

Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

NIL  NA  NA  NA  NA  NA  NA   NA  NA NIL 

Commission@ NIL NA NA NA NA NA NA NA  NA  NIL

Others, please specify NIL NA NA NA NA NA NA NA  NA  NIL

  Total (2) NIL NA NA NA NA NA NA NA  NA  NIL

  Total (B)=(1+2) NIL 1,000,000 1,200,000 1,300,000 300,000 1,000,000 200,000 200,000 300,000 4,600,000

  Total Managerial 
Remuneration (A+B)

86,430,716

  Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act (` in crores)

In accordance with the special resolution passed by the shareholders at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 
October 30, 2018

@In accordance with the provisions of Section 197 (3) read with Schedule V, no commission was paid to the Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company due to the inadequacy of profits for the FY 18-19.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
 (Amount in `)

S. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

    CEO
Ms. Amisha 

Ghia, Company 
Secretary

Mr. G. 
Shivakumar, 

Chief Financial 
Officer#

Total

1 Gross salary

NA

     

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961*

5,301,747/- - 5,301,747/-

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 37,860/- - 37,860/-
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

- - -

2 Stock Option (granted during the year) - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission
  -  as % of profit -
  - others, specify
5 Other benefits 244,503/- - 244,503/-
  Total 5,584,110/- - 5,584,110/-

* Salary includes variable pay for previous financial year, i.e. FY 2017-18. Ms. Amisha Ghia is also entitled to gratuity in accordance with 
the Company’s rules
# Draws remuneration from the parent company, The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited
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VII. 	PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type
Section of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty / 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. Company

Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding
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ANNEXURE 8 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to 
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso 
thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis : NIL

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of contracts/arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company for 
the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Relation-
ship

Nature of 
contracts/ar-
rangements/
transactions

Duration 
of the 
contracts 
/ arrange-
ments/
transac-
tions

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions

Date(s) 
of 
approval 
by the 
Board,  
if any.

Amount 
paid as 
advanc-
es,  
if any 
(` in 
crores)

1 Greatship Global 
Offshore Services 
Pte. Ltd. (GGOS)

Wholly 
Owned 
Subsidiary

Memorandum 
of Agreement 
for sale of 
vessel

One-time Agreement dated February 12, 
2019 to sell one 2010 built R-class 
supply vessel to GGOS on mutually 
agreed terms alongwith the nova-
tion of its charter to GGOS with 
additional charge for ROB bunkers

February 
4, 2019

NIL

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of 
contracts/
arrangements/
transactions

Duration of 
the contracts / 
arrangements/
transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions

Amount 
(` in 
crores)

1

The Great Eastern 
Shipping Co. Ltd. 

Parent 
Company

Dividend Annual Preference dividend as per the terms 
of preference shares issued by the 
Company

25.61

2 Allotment of 
Training Slots

1 year Service charges for allotment of 
training slots

1.26

3
Greatship (UK) 
Limited

Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary

Charter Hire 
Income

- Reversal of charter hire income on 
the vessel chartered by the Company

(0.06)

4 Dividend 
Received

- Dividend declared and paid by the 
WOS 

26.94

5

Greatship Global 
Energy Services 
Pte. Ltd.

Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary

Redemption of 
investment

One time Partial disinvestment on account of 
capital reduction undertaken by WOS

1024.62

6 Interest paid One time Interest paid to GGES on the balance 
outstanding consideration towards 
the purchase of four jack-up rigs 
from the date of purchase of rigs 
i.e. June 19, 2017 till the date of 
payment

73.24



BOARD’S REPORT

49

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of 
contracts/
arrangements/
transactions

 Duration of 
the contracts / 
arrangements/
transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions

Amount 
(` in 
crores)

7
Greatship Global 
Offshore Services 
Pte. Ltd. 

Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary

Purchase of 
Vessel

One time Purchase of one 2009 built Anchor 
Handling Tug Cum Supply Vessel

35.69

8 Purchase of 
fuel

One time Payment towards ROB bunkers on 
the vessel purchased

1.44

9 Great Eastern CSR 
Foundation

Fellow 
Subsidiary

Contribution 
towards CSR

Several 
transactions 
during the year

Contriubution towards CSR pursuant 
to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013

2.96

10 Ms. Nirja B. Sheth Daughter of 
Mr. Bharat 
K. Sheth 
(Chairman of 
the Company)

Holding office  
or place of 
profit

With effect 
from December 
1, 2016

Salary up to ` 25,00,000/- p.a  
(including performance incentive 
pays and periodic increments) and 
other benefits applicable to her 
designation/grade. 

0.14

For and on behalf of the 
Board of Director

Mumbai, May 02, 2019

Bharat K. Sheth
Chairman

(DIN: 00022102) 
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ANNEXURE 9 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
FORM NO. MR.3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
Greatship (India) Limited
Indiabulls Finance Centre,
Tower 3, 23rd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400013

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Greatship India Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2019 (hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii)	The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under (Not Applicable to the Company); 

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under (Not Applicable to the Company); 

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Foreign Direct Investment is not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period);

(v)		 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):-

(a) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not 
Applicable to the Company);

(b) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (Not Applicable to the 
Company); 

(c) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 notified on 
11th September, 2018 (Not Applicable during the audit period);

(d) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not Applicable 
during the audit period); 

(e) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable 
during the audit period);
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(f)  	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not Applicable to the Company);

(g) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable during the 
audit period) and

(h) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 and The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 notified on 11th September, 2018 (Not Applicable during the 
audit period).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)		  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)		 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Not 
Applicable to the Company).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof on test check basis, the Company has complied with the following law applicable 
specifically to the Company:

		The Merchant Shipping Act, 1958 and rules made there under.
		 The Coasting Vessels Act, 1838

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review was in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, Company’s wholly owned subsidiary in Mauritius - Greatship Global Holdings 
Limited (GGHL), was merged with the Company under the Scheme of Amalgamation sanctioned by National Company Law 
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench vide its order issued on July 24, 2018. The Scheme has become operative from 1 September 2018 on 
completion of all regulatory formalities, with the appointed date under the said scheme being April 1, 2017. Consequent to the 
said merger, Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd. (erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary of GGHL) became the direct wholly 
owned subsidiary of Company. 

For Makarand M. Joshi & Co.
Practising Company Secretaries

Kumudini Bhalerao
Partner
Membership No. 6667
CP No. 6690 

Place: Mumbai		
Date: May 02, 2019

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure ‘A’ 

To,
Greatship (India) Limited
Indiabulls Finance Centre,
Tower 3, 23rd Floor,
Senapati Bapat Marg,
Elphinstone Road (West),
Mumbai – 400013

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1.		  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2.		  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

3.		  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4.		  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc. 

5.		  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6.		  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For Makarand M. Joshi & Co.
Practising Company Secretaries

Kumudini Bhalerao
Partner
FCS No: 6667 
CP No. 6690

Place: Mumbai		
Date: May 02, 2019
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FLEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2019
Greatship (India) Limited and its Subsidiaries

Category Vessel Name Company# DWT (MT) Year Built Average 
Age (Years)

OFFSHORE SUPPORT VESSELS

Platform Supply Vessels

1 m.v. Greatship Dipti GIL 3,329 2005

2 m.v. Greatship Dhriti GIL 3,329 2008

3 m.v. Greatship Dhwani GIL 3,304 2008

4 m.v. Greatship Prachi GIL 4,194 2015

4 14,156 9.63

Anchor Handling Tug cum Supply Vessels

1 m.v. Greatship Anjali GIL 2,188 2008

2 m.v. Greatship Amrita GIL 2,045 2008

3 m.v. Greatship Asmi GIL 1,634 2009

4 m.v. Greatship Ahalya GIL 1,643 2009

5 m.v. Greatship Aarti GIL 1,650 2009

6 m.v. Greatship Vidya GIL 3,289 2012

7 m.v. Greatship Vimla GIL 3,311 2012

8 m.v. Greatship Aditi  GIL* 2,045 2009

8 17,805 9.47

Multi-purpose Platform Supply and Support Vessels

1 m.v. Greatship Maya GGOS 4,252 2009

2 m.v. Greatship Manisha	 GGOS 4,221 2010

2 	 8,473 8.94

ROV Support Vessels

1 m.v. Greatship Ramya GGOS** 2,242 2010

2 m.v. Greatship Rohini GIL 3,684 2010

3 m.v. Greatship Rashi GIL 3,609 2011

4 m.v. Greatship Roopa GIL 3,656 2012

5 m.v. Greatship Rachna GIL 3,674 2012

5 16,865  7.63

TOTAL OFFSHORE SUPPORT VESSELS

Number 19

Total Tonnage (dwt) 57,299

Average Age (years) 8.96
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Category Vessel Name Company# DWT (MT) Year Built Average 
Age (Years)

DRILLING UNITS

350’ Jack Up Rigs

1 Greatdrill Chitra GIL N.A. 2009

2 Greatdrill Chetna GIL N.A. 2009

3 Greatdrill Chaaya GIL N.A. 2013

4 Greatdrill Chaaru GIL N.A. 2015

4 7.45

TOTAL DRILLING UNITS

Number 4

Average Age (years) 7.45
# GIL stands for ‘Greatship (India) Limited’;
   GGOS stands for ‘Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd.’
* Acquired from GGOS on February 15, 2019
** Acquired from GIL on April 08, 2019

ACQUISITIONS/SALES DURING FY 2018-19 – NIL

TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN APRIL 1, 2019 TO MAY 2, 2019 – NIL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GREATSHIP (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Greatship (India) Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility 
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent  of  the  Company  in  accordance  
with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical  
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the  Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Key Performance Indicators, Management Statement and Board’s Report including annexures to the 
Board’s Reportbut does not include the standalone financial statements, consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section  134(5) of the  Act with  respect  to  the  
preparation  of  these  standalone  financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.This responsibility also includes maintenance of  adequate accounting 
records in accordance  with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds  and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of  appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  
and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
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controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•			  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

•			  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section  143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•			E  valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

•			  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•			E  valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1)		  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable that:

a)		  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b)		  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

c)		  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash 
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 

d)		  In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  standalone  financial  statements  comply  with  the  Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 

e)		  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)			  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over  financial reporting of the Company  and  the  
operating  effectiveness of  such  controls,  refer  to  our  separate  Report  in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting.

g)		  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 of the Act.

h)		  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules,  2014,as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i.			  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial 
statements.

ii.		  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,  for  material  
foreseeable  losses,  if  any,  on  long-term  contracts  including derivative contracts.

iii.		  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.

2. 		 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms 
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order.	

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 			 
Chartered Accountants						   
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Samir R. Shah				  
Partner				   			 
(Membership No. 101708)

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 2, 2019
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Annexure ‘A’
to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Greatship (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
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and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial 
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 			 
Chartered Accountants						   
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Samir R. Shah				  
Partner				   			 
(Membership No. 101708)

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 2, 2019
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Annexure ‘B’ 
to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i)			   In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment: 

			   (a) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
property, plant and equipment.

			   (b)		 The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with 
a regular programme of verification, which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the assets at 
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such physical verification.

			   (c)		 The Company does not have any immovable property and therefore the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are 
not applicable. 

(ii)			  As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii)		  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Therefore, provisions of the clause 3(iii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv)		  The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under section 185 
of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or 
loans or guarantee or security provided to the parties covered under section 186.

(v)			  The Company has not accepted deposit during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2019.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi)		  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act for the 
business activities carried out by the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (vi) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

(vii)		  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

			   (a)		 The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,Customs Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory 
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

			   (b)		 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax,Customs Duty, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

			   (c)		 Details of dues of Income-tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on 
March 31, 2019 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Statute Nature of 
Dues

Period for which the
amount relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Amount (INR 
crore)

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax FY 2009-10 to FY 2013-14 Income Tax  
Appellate Tribunal

22.92

The Finance Act, 1994
(Service tax legislation)

Service Tax FY 2009-10 Supreme Court 21.94

The Finance Act, 1994
(Service tax legislation)

Service Tax FY 2008-09 to 2014-15 CESTAT 31.03*
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Name of Statute Nature of 
Dues

Period for which the
amount relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Amount (INR 
crore)

The Finance Act, 1994
(Service tax legislation)

Service Tax FY 2008-09 to 2014-15 and 
October 2015 to June 2017

Various Forum 352.65*

Customs Act, 1962 Custom Duty FY 2009-10 to 2013-14 Various Forum 0.33

Customs Act, 1962 Custom Duty FY 2009-10 Commissioner of
Customs

14.55

Maharashtra Value 
AddedTax Act, 2002

MVAT FY 2008-09, FY 2013-14 
and FY 2014-15

Various Forum 126.59*

* These amounts are net of duty paid under protest `21.31 crores

(viii)		 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the 
repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has not issued debentures and has not taken any loans or 
borrowings from financial institutions or government. 

(ix)		  The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or 
term loans during the year and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

(x)			  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or 
no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)		  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V 
to the Act.

(xii)		  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xiii)		 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

(xiv)		 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv)		  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding or subsidiary or persons connected with them.
Therefore, the provisions of clause (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)		 The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 			 
Chartered Accountants						   
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Samir R. Shah				  
Partner				   			 
(Membership No. 101708)

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 2, 2019
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Notes
As at  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 7A  3,337.54  3,530.83 
(b) Capital work-in-progress  0.75  5.77 
(c) Intangible assets 8  0.13  0.22 
(d) Financial assets

(i) Non-current investments 9  493.23  1,517.85 
(ii) Deposits with bank 10  2.59  -   
(iii) Other non-current financial assets 11  15.63  31.63 

(e) Non-current tax assets (net) 12C  32.10  30.66 
(f) Other non-current assets 13  22.35  3.28 

 3,904.32  5,120.24 
2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 14  80.77  77.31 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Current investments 15  71.33  33.24 
(ii) Trade receivables 16  92.66  82.82 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 17  302.70  243.55 
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 18  390.75  291.50 
(v) Other current financial assets 19  65.33  65.68 

(c) Other current assets 20  24.06  21.22 
(d) Asset classified as held for sale 7B  69.95  -   

 1,097.55  815.32 
TOTAL ASSETS  5,001.87  5,935.56 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 21  111.35  111.35 
(b) Other equity 22  2,420.42  2,387.35 

 2,531.77  2,498.70 
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Long term borrowings 23  1,889.01  2,137.46 
(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities 24  3.58  0.09 

(b) Provisions 25A  11.18  10.80 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 12D  17.27  37.76 
(d) Other non-current liabilities 26  22.71  22.86 

 1,943.75  2,208.97 
2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 27

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  5.39  3.90 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  67.57  55.85 

(ii) Other current financial liabilities 28  430.34  1,138.04 
(b) Other current liabilities 29  10.83  17.10 
(c) Provisions 25B  0.44  0.76 
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 12C  11.78  12.24 

 526.35  1,227.89 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  5,001.87  5,935.56 
Significant accounting policies 5
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2019

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date 

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019



financial statements

63

Particulars	
Notes

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Income

I Revenue from operations 30  825.26  893.84 

II Other income 31  153.94  162.51 

III Total income  979.20  1,056.35 

IV Expenses
Employee benefits expense 32  203.00  195.34 

Finance costs 33  258.37  132.25 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 34  218.75  203.17 

Impairment loss 35  -    170.59 

Other expenses 36  231.59  258.56 

Total expenses  911.71  959.91 

V Profit before tax  67.49  96.44 
VI Tax expense

Current tax 12A  38.00  72.50 
Deferred tax (net) 12A  (15.41)  40.00 
Total tax expense  22.59  112.50 

VII Profit / (Loss) for the year  44.90  (16.06)

VIII Other Comprehensive Income 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

 - Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  0.47  2.96 
(ii) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss  (0.14)  (0.95)

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
 - Net changes in fair value of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge  (17.39)  25.23 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss  5.23  (8.00)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (A+B)  (11.83)  19.24 

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII)  33.07  3.18 

Earnings per equity share 37
[Nominal value per share ` 10 : previous year ` 10]
Basic & Diluted  4.03  (1.44)
Significant accounting policies 5
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date 

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019
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cash flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Particulars	

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

 ` in Crores 

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

 ` in Crores 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Profit before tax  67.49  96.44 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense  218.75  203.17 
Impairment loss on tangible assets  -    134.60 
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary  -    35.99 
Finance costs  258.37  132.25 
Profit on sale other assets  (0.40)  (0.02)
Reversal for doubtful debts and advances (net)  (1.13)  (0.14)
Interest income  (14.12)  (6.20)
Dividend from foreign subsidiary  (26.94)  (147.44)
Dividend on current investments  (1.06)  (1.92)

Profit on account of capital reduction of subsidiary  (105.37)  -   
Profit on sale of current investments  (0.15)  (0.04)
Corporate guarantee commission  -    (0.88)
Exchange differences on translation / adjustments of foreign currency balances  116.48  (14.12)
Loss on derivatives transactions (net)  1.83  -   
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes :  513.75  431.69 

Adjustments for working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (3.46)  6.04 
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (11.33)  49.53 
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets and other current assets  (21.78)  (72.39)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  13.21  (6.67)
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities, provisions and other current liabilities  (28.32)  0.02 

Cash Generated From Operations :  462.07  408.22 
Taxes paid  (39.89)  (78.34)

Net Cash From Operating Activities :  422.18  329.88 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment  (70.95)  (1,657.97)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment  0.82  0.04 
Investment in subsidiary  -    (0.25)
Proceeds from sale of current investments  296.02  304.81 
Purchase of current investments  (333.96)  (329.32)
Interest received  14.12  4.97 
Dividend received on current investment  1.06  1.92 
Dividend received from foreign subsidiary  26.94  147.44 
Corporate guarantee commission received  -    0.88 
Proceeds from sale of investment  1,129.99  -   
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Bank deposits having original maturity more than three months placed with banks  (803.66)  (374.38)
Bank deposits having original maturity more than three months redeemed with banks  695.52  313.71 
Payments to related party towards purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment  (905.83)  -   

Net Cash From/(Used In) Investing Activities :  50.07  (1,588.15)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Proceeds from long term borrowings  -    3,194.66 
Repayment of long term borrowings  (227.20)  (1,773.17)
Interest paid  (164.39)  (114.34)
Dividend paid  (24.33)  (23.32)

Net Cash From / (Used In) Financing Activities :  (415.92)  1,283.83 

Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents :  56.33  25.56 

Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, 2018  243.55  208.23 
Gain on exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents  2.82  9.76 

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2019  302.70  243.55 

Note :
1 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7 , ‘Statement of 

Cash Flows’.
2 Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

` in Crores

Particulars As at  
March 

31, 2019

Cash 
flows 
(net)

Non-cash changes As at  
March 

31, 2018
Fair 

value 
changes

Foreign 
exchange 

movement

Acquisition Amortised 
cost to 

Profit and 
Loss (net)

Foreign currency term loans from banks 1,899.31  (227.20)  -    125.33  -    6.75 1,994.43 
Redeemable cumulative Preference shares capital  353.51  -    -    -    -    1.02  352.49 
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,252.82 (227.20)  -    125.33  -    7.77 2,346.92 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date 

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019
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B OTHER EQUITY
` in Crores

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Total
Capital 
Reserve 

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Tonnage 
Tax 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Cash flow 
Hedging 
Reserve

Balance as at  
April 1, 2018

 489.32  43.50 1,155.13  82.35  145.50  449.86  21.69 2,387.35 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    44.90  -    44.90 

Other Comprehensive 
Income for the year, net of 
income tax

 -    -    -    -    -    0.33  (12.16)  (11.83)

Transfer from Tonnage tax 
reserve to General reserve

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Transfer from retained 
earnings to Tonnage tax 
reserve

 -    -    -    -    0.50  (0.50)  -    -   

Balance as at  
March 31, 2019

 489.32  43.50 1,155.13  82.35  146.00  494.59  9.53 2,420.42 

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

` in Crores
A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance as at April 1, 2018 Changes in equity share capital 
during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2019

 111.35  -  111.35 

Balance as at April 1, 2017 Changes in equity share capital 
during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2018

 111.35  -  111.35 



financial statements

67

` in Crores

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Total
Capital 
Reserve 

Capital  
Redemption 

Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Tonnage 
Tax 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Cash flow 
Hedging 
Reserve

Balance as at  
April 1, 2017

 2.95  43.50 1,155.13  40.35  187.00  464.84  4.46 1,898.23 

Loss for the year		  -    -    -    -    -    (16.06)  -    (16.06)

Other Comprehensive 
Loss for the year, net of 
income tax

 -    -    -    -    -    2.01  17.23  19.24 

Transfer from tonnage tax 
reserve to general reserve

 -    -    -    42.00  (42.00)  -   -  -   

Pursuant to Scheme of 
Amalgamation as on 
April 1, 2017

 486.37  -    -    -    -    (0.43)  -    485.94 

Transfer from retained 
earnings to tonnage tax 
reserve

 -    -    -    -    0.50  (0.50)  -    -   

Balance As at  
March 31, 2018

 489.32  43.50 1,155.13  82.35  145.50  449.86  21.69 2,387.35 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

1 	 Background

			G   reatship (India) Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated in the year 2002 
under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956. The Companyy is engaged in providing offshore oilfield services with the 
principal activity of offshore logistics and drilling services. The Company presently owns and operates 4 Platform Supply 
Vessels (PSVs), 8 Anchor Handling Tug cum Supply Vessels (AHTSVs) and 5 Remotely Operated Vehicle Support Vessels 
(ROVSVs) in the Indian and International markets. The Company also owns and operates 4 Jack up Drilling Rigs. There have 
been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year. The Company is a subsidiary of The 
Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited (GESCO) which is listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and at Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE).

			   The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 were approved for issue in accordance with the 
resolution of the Board of Directors on May 2, 2019.	

2 		  Statement of Compliance with IND AS

			   The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from 
time to time.															            

3	 Basis of Preparation	

			   The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are 
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period. 

			   During the year, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) had approved the scheme of Amalgamation (“The Scheme”) 
between the Company and  Greatship Global Holdings Limited (GGHL), Mauritius, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. 
The Scheme became effective from September 1, 2018 on completion of all regulatory formalities. In accordance with the 
IND AS 103- business combination, the financial statements of the Company for the previous financial year 2017-2018 have 
been restated with effect from April 1, 2017, being the earliest period presented. (refer note 47)			 

4			  Use of Estimates

			   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires 
management of the Company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities as 
at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which are 
affected.								      

			   Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of property, plant and 
equipment, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, provision and contingent liabilities.	 		

			   Impairment of property, plant and equipment

			   Determining whether a support vessel or a rig is impaired requires an estimation of value in use and fair value less cost of 
disposal. The key estimates made in the value in use calculation are those regarding discount rates, revenue and operating 
profit growth rates. The discount rate is estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time 
value of money. The fair values are estimated based on valuations provided by independent valuers considering latest 
transactions of similar assets. 								      
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			   Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

			   Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each year end based on the best available information. The 
lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events.

			   Provisions & Contingent Liabilities

			   The Company is a party to certain legal disputes, the outcomes of which cannot be assessed with a high degree of certainty. 
A provision is recognised where, based on the legal views and advice, it is considered probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle a present obligation that can be measured reliably. Disclosure of contingent liabilities is made in 
note 45 unless the possibility of a loss arising is considered remote. Management applies its judgement in determining 
whether or not a provision or contingent liability should be recorded.	

5 		  Significant Accounting Policies

(a)		 Property, Plant & Equipment :

			   An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following 
initial recongition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses.								      

			   The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if the 
part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that 
is materially different from that of the remaining item.						    

			   Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenses related to acquisition, installation of the concerned assets and any 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to the condition of its intended use. Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition 
or construction of a qualifying asset is also capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. 			 

(b)		 Intangible Assets :

			   Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any.  An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
use or disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition measured at difference between net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.					   
	

(c)		N on-current assets held for sale :

			   Non-Current Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  A non current asset is classified as such only when the asset is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such 
asset and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify 
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 			 

			   Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost 
to sell. 								     

(d)		D epreciation and Amortisation	

			   Depreciation is provided on straight line method, prorata to the period of use, so as to write off the original cost of 
the asset less its estimated residual value over the estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted on a prospective basis.								      
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			   Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:								     

Particulars Estimated useful life
Property, Plant and Equipment	
Fleet – Offshore Supply Vessels 20 years
Modern Rigs 30 years
Furniture and Fixtures, Office Equipment # 5 years
Computers 3 years
Vehicles # 4 years
Plant and Equipment # 3 to 10 years
Network Servers 6 years
Mobile Phones # 2 years
Leasehold improvements Lease period

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets – Software licenses 5 years

			   Cost relating to Dry dock (special survey) which is mandatorily required to be carried out every five years as per the 
Classification Rules and Regulations is recognised in the carrying amount of the Fleet and Rig as a  component and is 
depreciated over the period from the completion of survey till the estimated date for next special survey.

			   # For these class of assets, based on internal technical assessment, the Management believes that the useful lives as 
given above best represents the period over which the Management expects the use of the assets. Hence, the useful 
lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013.								     

(e)		 Impairment :
			   The carrying amounts of the Company’s intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end 

of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the 
asset’s recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment 
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The impairment loss, if any, is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss in the period in 
which impairment takes place.  								     

			R   ecoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted.								     

			   Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate 
of its recoverable amount, however subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior accounting periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit 
and Loss.								      

(f)		 Inventories  :
			   Inventories of fuel oil on vessels and rigs, stores and spares on rigs and at warehouse are carried at lower of cost and 

net realizable value. Stores and spares delivered on board the vessels are charged to revenue. Stores and spares of Rigs 
are charged to revenue on consumption basis. Cost is ascertained on first-in-first-out basis for fuel oil and on weighted 
average basis for stores and spares on Rigs. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories 
less all costs necessary to make the sale.								     

(g)		 Financial Instruments :
			   Initial Recognition

			   Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instruments.							      	



financial statements

71

			   Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.								      

			   Subsequent measurement

			   Financial Assets

			   All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, 
depending on the classification of the financial assets. The purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at 
trade date.								     

			   Cash and Cash Equivalents

			   Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid financial 
instruments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change 
in value and having original maturities of three months or less.					   

			   Fixed deposit having residual maturity more than three months but less than twelve month from the reporting period 
is considered as part of bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents. Fixed deposit with residual maturity more 
than twelve months from reporting period is classified under non-current financial assets.	

			   Financial Assets at amortised cost

			   Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial assets give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.  								     

			   Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included under the head “Other 
Income”.	

			   Financial Assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

			   On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to 
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are 
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and 
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve 
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.	

			   The Company has not elected to present the changes in fair value of any equity instruments in other comprehensive 
income.								     

			   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

			   Financials Assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair 
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.  The transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.								      

			   Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments which are not held for trading.								    
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			   Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising 
on re-measurement recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

			   Investment in Subsidiaries

			   Investments in subsidiaries are measured at costs less impairment, if any.

			   Impairment of financial assets								     

			   The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured 
at amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset and financial 
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.								     

			   For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset , the Company always measures 
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

			   Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance for trade receivables, the Company 
has used a practical expedient as permitted under IND AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based 
on an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses following a simplified approach.	

			   For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, 
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company again measures impairment loss allowance 
for necessary reversal based on 12-month ECL.								    

			   Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 
12 months after the reporting date.			

			D   erecognition of financial assets

			   The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or 
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
party.			

			   Financial liabilities and equity instruments								    

			   Classification as debt or equity								     

			   Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity 
instrument.								      

			   Equity instruments								      

			   An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

			   Financial liabilities								     

			   All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

			   Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at 
FVTPL.								      

			   Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at 
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part 
of costs of an asset is included in ‘Finance costs’.		
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			   Financial guarantee contracts

			   A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder 
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument.	

			   Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as 
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

			   •  	 the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

•  	 the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance 
with the principles of Ind AS 18.

			D   erecognition of financial liabilities

			   The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or have expired.   A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not 
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial 
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   Effective interest method

			   The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

			   Offsetting financial instruments

			   Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must 
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company 
or the counterparty.								      

			D   erivative financial instruments

			   The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments like foreign exchange forward contracts, interest 
rate collars and interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks. Further 
details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 40.				  

			   Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in 
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the 
nature of the hedged item.

			H   edge accounting

			   The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of 
foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign operations. 
Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

			   At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and 
the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. 
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging 
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the 
hedged risk. Note 40 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes..	
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			   Fair value hedges

			   Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability 
that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument 
and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the line item relating to the hedged item.								      

			   Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it 
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising 
from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

			   Cash flow hedges

			   The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain 
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, and is included 
under the head “Gain /Loss on foreign derivatives transaction (net)”.

			   Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to (effective portion 
as described above) are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects 
profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results 
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are transferred from equity 
(but not as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset 
or non-financial liability.

			   In cases where the designated hedging instruments are options and forward contracts, the Company has an option, for 
each designation, to designate on an instrument only the changes in intrinsic value of the options and spot element of 
forward contracts respectively as hedges. In such cases, the time value of the options is accounted based on the type 
of hedged item which those options hedge.

			   In case of transaction related hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised in 
other comprehensive income to the extent it relates to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component of 
equity i.e. Reserve for time value of options and forward elements of forward contracts in hedging relationship. This 
separate component is removed and directly included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or the 
liability (i.e. not as a reclassification adjustment thus not affecting other comprehensive income) if the hedged item 
subsequently results in recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability. In other cases, the amount 
accumulated is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period in which the hedged 
expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

			   In case of time-period related hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised 
in other comprehensive income to the extent it relates to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component 
of equity i.e. Reserve for time value of options and forward elements of forward contracts in hedging relationship. The 
time value of options at the date of designation of the options in the hedging relationships is amortised on a systematic 
and rational basis over the period during which the options’ intrinsic value could affect profit or loss. This is done as a 
reclassification adjustment and hence affects other comprehensive income.

			   In cases where only the spot element of the forward contracts is designated in a hedging relationship and the forward 
element of the forward contract is not designated, the Group makes the choice for each designation whether to 
recognise the changes in forward element of fair value of the forward contracts in the Statement of Profit and Loss or 
to account for this element similar to the time value of an option (as described above).

			   Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it 
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated 
in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.	
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(h) 	R evenue Recognition :

			   The Company earns revenue primarily from drilling and offshore support services performed by deploying rigs and 
support vessels under contracts with customers. Revenue from drilling services is earned on performance of activity 
which are paid on a day rate basis over the period of the contract as and when specified services are rendered, which 
may vary depending upon the nature of operations of rigs during the day. Such daytime consideration is attributed to 
the distinct time period to which it relates within the contract term, and therefore, is recognised as the services are 
performed. Revenue from offshore support services is earned on a day rate basis as per the terms of the contract and 
is recognised accordingly. 	

			R   evenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled as per in contract with 
a customer. The consideration is determined based on the price specified in the contract, net of liquidated damages, 
offhire and downtime rebates.

			R   evenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. A receivable is recognised on a monthly basis when invoices are raised as per the terms 
of the contract, and therefore, no additional disclosure is given for remaining performance obligation as per practical 
expedient under the standard. Revenue in excess of invoicing is classified as contract assets (unbilled revenue). 
Revenue excludes any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which are levied on such services such as 
goods and services tax.

(i) 		 Leases :	

			   Operating lease

			   Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset vest with the lessor, are 
recognised as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term 
in the statement of profit and loss, unless the lease agreement explicitly provides for future increases to compensate 
general inflation.								      

(j)		 Employee Benefits :

			   Short-Term Employee Benefits

			   All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee 
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, performance incentives, etc., are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted 
amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the employee renders the related service.	

			   Post- Employment Benefits

			   Liability is provided for retirement benefits of Provident Fund, Superannuation, Gratuity and Leave Encashment in 
respect of all eligible employees and for pension benefit to Managing Director of the Company.

i.		 Defined Contribution Plans

		E  mployee benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund and other Seamen’s Welfare Contributions 
are considered as defined contribution plans and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss 
of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.  

ii. 	Defined Benefit Plan

		R  etirement benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as a defined benefit obligation. The Company’s liability in 
respect of gratuity is provided for, on the basis of actuarial valuations, using the projected unit credit method, as 
at the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial losses / gains are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.  	

			   Other Long Term Benefits

			   Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months from the year 
end are treated as short term employee benefits. The expected cost of such absences is measured as the additional 
amount that is expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlements as at the reporting date.
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			   Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond twelve months from the 
year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined using the 
projected unit credit method at the end of each year. Actuarial gains / losses, comprising of experience adjustments 
and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

			   Employee share based payments

			E   quity settled stock options granted under the Company’s Employee stock option (ESOP) schemes are accounted 
as per the accounting treatment prescribed by SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share based payments issued by ICAI. 
Consequent to the introduction of the encashment scheme, the liability in respect of outstanding options is measured 
at fair value as per the scheme and the difference in the fair value and the exercise price is amortized over the vesting 
period as employee compensation with a credit to provisions.	

(k)		 Borrowing Costs :

			   Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are added to the 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing 
costs are recognised in the period in which they are incurred.	

(l)		 Foreign Currency Translation :

			   The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which 
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR). The transactions in currencies 
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items 
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

			E   xchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they 
arise except for:

•  	 exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive 
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs on 
those foreign currency borrowings;	

• 		 exchange difference arising on settlement / restatement of long-term foreign currency monetary items recognized 
in the financial statements upto March 31, 2016 prepared under previous GAAP, are capitalized as a part of the 
depreciable fixed assets to which the monetary item relates and depreciated over the remaining useful life of such 
assets.

• 		 exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (refer hedging 
accounting policies); and

• 		 exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is 
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are 
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of 
the monetary items.

• 		 on complete disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is 
reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss.

(m)	 Income Taxes :

			   Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

			   Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with the 
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Income from shipping activities is assessed on the 
basis of deemed tonnage income of the Company.



financial statements

77

			   Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised 
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amount.

			   Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

			   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and laws, enacted or substantively enacted as of the 
balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognised as an income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date. Deferred 
income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries where it is expected that the earnings 
of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

			   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

			   Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they are related to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

			   Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form 
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company 
will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable 
that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

(n)		 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :

			   Provisions are recognised in the financial statement in respect of present probable obligations (legal or constructive) 
as a result of past events if it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and which can be 
reliably estimated.								      

			   Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote. 
Contingent assets are disclosed where inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(o)		 Earnings Per Share :

			   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events, such as bonus issue, bonus element in 
a rights issue and shares split that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding 
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(p)		 Government Grant :

			G   overnment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the 
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs 
for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants used to acquire non current asset are recognized 
as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over 
the useful lives of the related assets.	

(q)		 Business combination :

			   Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for using the pooling of interests 
method. The assets and liabilities of the transferor are accounted at their respective carrying amounts as on the date of 
the beginning of the preceding period presented after making necessary adjustments to harmonise accounting policies. 
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The identity of the reserves are preserved and they appear in the same form in which they appeared in the financial 
statements of transferor. The amount of stated capital of the transferor is adjusted against the investment held by the 
Company and resultant difference  is recognised as capital reserve under equity.

6 	 Recent Accounting Developments

			   Amendments to Ind AS that are notified and adopted by the Company :	

			   The company has applied the following Ind AS pronouncements pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018. The effect is described below:

a.		  The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers with effect from April 1, 2018, which 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised 
and it is detailed in note 5(h).

b. 		 The Company has elected to recognize cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 retrospectively as an adjustment 
to opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 on the contracts that are not completed contract as at that date and impact 
on implementation of above on the opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 and on the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2019 is immaterial.

c. 		 The Company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration with 
effect from April 1, 2018 prospectively to all assets, expenses and income initially recognized on or after April 1, 2018 
and the impact on implementation of the Appendix is immaterial.

Standards issued but not yet effective :

			   In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying new standards 
and amendments to certain issued standards to bring Ind AS in line with recent amendments made by International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These amendments are applicable to the Company from April 1, 2019. The Company 
will be adopting the below stated new standards and applicable amendments from their respective effective date.

			   The new standard and relevant amendment effective from April 1, 2019, are as under: 

a. 		 Ind AS 116, Leases: 

			   Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17, Leases. Under Ind AS 116, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments 
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., 
the right of use asset) at the commencement date of lease. Lessees will be required to separately recognise interest 
expense on the lease liability and depreciation expense on the right of use asset. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 
remains substantially unchanged from accounting under Ind AS 17. There is a choice on transition to either apply the 
standard retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially 
applying the Standard recognised at the date of initial application. 

b. 		 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes:

			   The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which 
is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax 
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, 
companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of 
tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to 
compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), 
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The Appendix will be applied retrospectively with the 
cumulative effect of its initial application on the opening balance sheet as on April 1, 2019.

				    Applicability and impact, if any, of the above are being evaluated by the Management. 
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8 Intangible Asset
` in Crores

Description Computer 
Software

Gross block
Balance as at April 1, 2018  5.11 
Additions  -   
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2019  5.11 

Accumulated Amortisation 
Balance as at April 1, 2018  4.89 
Amortisation for the year  0.09 
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2019  4.98 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019  0.13 

Description Computer 
Software

Gross block
Balance as at April 1, 2017 4.95
Additions  0.16 
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2018  5.11 

Accumulated amortisation 
Balance as at April 1, 2017 4.82
Amortisation for the year  0.07 
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2018  4.89 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018  0.22 

7B Asset Held for Sale
During the financial year, the Company is committed to sell a vessel in its present condition and classifies the carrying 
amount of the vessel (Refer note 7A) as non current held for sale at that date. A firm purchase commitment is obtained and 
the completion of sale is highly probable within one year.

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment

Gross Block (Refer note 7A)  133.04 

Accumulated depreciation  (63.09)

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019  69.95 

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
Gross Block (Refer note 7A)  -   
Accumulated depreciation  -   
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018  -   
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Information about subsidiaries Proportion of equity 
interest

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Company
Country of 

Incorporation
Principal Activity

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at  
March 31, 

2018

1 Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd. (“GGES”) 
(subsidiary of GGHL up to March 28, 2017 and 
direct  subsidiary of the Company thereafter 
(Incorporated on October 23, 2006)

Singapore

Owning, chartering and 
operating mobile offshore 
drilling units.

100% 100%

2 Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd. 
(“GGOS”) 
“(Subsidiary of GGHL upto April 1, 2017 and direct 
subsidiary of the Company thereafter) 
(Incorporated on May 08, 2007)”

Singapore

Owning and operating 
offshore supply vessels.

100% 100%

3 Greatship (UK) Ltd. (“GUK”)
(Incorporated on October 29, 2010)

UK
Operating offshore supply 
and support vessels.

100% 100%

4 Greatship Oilfield Services Ltd., (“GOSL”)
(Incorporated on July 9, 2015)

INDIA
Offshore oilfield services.

100% 100%

Note :

* 	During the year, Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd. , the subsidiary of the Company has undergone capital reduction 
under which its equity share capital has reduced from 2,640,066 equity shares to 228,829 equity shares. Accordingly equity 
share capital of the subsidiary company has been adjusted against the investment held by the Company. On account of capital 
reduction, the Company has recognised profit as shown under other income to the tune of ` 105.37 crore in its standalone 
books of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019. (Refer note 31)

9 Non Current Investments

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Investment in Equity Instruments - fully paid up

(Unquoted - valued at cost)

Subsidiaries No. of Shares ` in Crores No. of Shares ` in Crores

Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore*  228,829  65.61  2,640,066  1,090.23 

Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd  71,101,378  425.10  71,101,378  425.10 

Greatship (UK) Ltd.  500,000  2.26  500,000  2.26 

Greatship Oilfield Services Limited  260,000  0.26  260,000  0.26 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  493.23  1,517.85 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  493.23  1,517.85 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of 
investments (refer note 35)

 -    35.99 
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10 Deposits With Banks
As at  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Earmarked balances with bank*  2.59 -

 2.59 -

* Earmarked with Customs

12 Income Taxes

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

A. Income tax expense comprise of the following :

Current tax  38.00  72.50 

Deferred tax  (15.41)  40.00 

 22.59  112.50 

B. The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows :

Profit before tax  67.49  96.44 

Statutory income tax rate 34.94% 34.61%

Expected income tax expense  23.58  33.38 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported 
income tax expense :

Loss attributable to tonnage tax activity  31.30  66.19 

Income exempt from income tax  (37.19)  (0.54)

Expense not deductible for tax purpose  15.92  20.54 

Tax on income at different rates  6.87  (10.17)

Impact of earlier years adjustments  (18.47)  -   

Others (net)  0.58  3.10 

Total income tax expense  22.59  112.50 

11 Other Non-Current Financial Assets 
As at  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

(Unsecured, considered good)  1.21  1.21 

Security deposits

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges  14.42  30.42 

- Foreign exchange gain on Interest rate swaps

 15.63  31.63 
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D. Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows :

 (` in Crores) 

Balance as at 
April 1, 2018

Recognised in  
Profit or Loss

Recognised 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Balance as at 
March 31, 2019

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment  (86.09)  (25.69)  -    (111.78)
Allowance for doubtful debts  (0.11)  0.11  -    -   
Defined benefit obligation  (0.95) -  (0.14)  (1.09)
MAT credit entitlement  60.00 -  -    60.00 
Fair value of hedging instruments in a cash 
flow hedge

 (8.00) -  5.23  (2.77)

Unabsorbed depreciation -  38.48  -    38.48 
Others  (2.62)  2.51  -    (0.11)

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (37.76)  15.41  5.09  (17.27)

Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018 are as follows :

 (` in Crores) 
Balance as at 
April 1, 2017

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

Recognised 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

Balance as at 
March 31, 2018

eferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment  10.89  (96.98)  -    (86.09)
Allowance for doubtful debts  0.20  (0.31)  -    (0.11)
Defined benefit obligation  0.09  (0.09)  (0.95)  (0.95)
MAT credit entitlement  -    60.00  -    60.00 
Fair value of hedging instruments in a cash 
flow hedge

 -    -    (8.00)  (8.00)

Others  -    (2.62)  -    (2.62)

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  11.18  (40.00)  (8.95)  (37.76)

Pursuant to the introduction of Section 115VA under the Income tax Act, 1961, the Company has opted for computation 
of its income from shipping activities under the Tonnage Tax Scheme. Thus, income from the business of operating ships 
is assessed on the basis of the Deemed Tonnage Income of the Company and no deferred tax is applicable to such income 
as there are no temporary differences.

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

C. Tax assets and liabilities

Non current tax assets (net)  32.10  30.66 

Current tax liabilities (net)  11.78  12.24 
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13 Other Non Current Assets

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits with government authorities  21.42 2.37

Capital advances  0.93  0.91 

 22.35  3.28 

14 Inventories

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Stores and spares  63.13  62.98 

Fuel oil  17.64  14.33 

 80.77  77.31 

1. Inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value.

2. Inventories of stores and spares on rigs and fuel oil on vessels and rigs are recognised as expense on consumption, 
and stores and spares relating to vessels are recognised as expense when delivered on board the vessels. The cost of 
inventories recognised as an expense is ` 78.55 crores (previous year: ` 85.87 crores).

15 Current Investments

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Investments in mutual funds : Unquoted  71.33  33.24 

(Valued at fair value through Profit and Loss)

 71.33  33.24 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  71.33  33.24 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -  - 
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16 Trade Receivables

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Unsecured

  - Considered good *  92.66  82.82 

  - Considered doubtful  2.25  3.38 

 94.91  86.20 

Less: Allowances for doubtful receivables  (2.25)  (3.38)

 92.66  82.82 

* Includes dues from subsidiary
Greatship (UK) Ltd. -  0.05 

Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. 
Trade receivables are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted. 

Trade receivables are derived from revenue earned from customers having high credit quality and strong financials. In 
determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the company has used a practical expedient by computing the 
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on an amount equal to life time expected credit losses. 

The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows :

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Balances as at the beginning of the year  3.38  3.52 

Add: Current year allowance  1.07  2.01 

Less: Reversal during the year  (2.20)  (2.15)

Balances as at the end of the year  2.25  3.38 

17 Cash And Cash Equivalents

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Balances with banks

-Current accounts**  302.70  210.70 

-Deposits with original maturity less than three months  -    32.85 

Cash in hand *  -    -   

 302.70  243.55 

* Less than ` 1 lakh

** Includes ` 108.08 crore (Previous Year ` 94.76 crore) as Debt Service Reserve Account
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18 Bank Balances Other Than Cash And Cash Equivalents

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Earmarked balances with bank*  -    2.48 

Term deposits with maturity more than three months but less than twelve months  390.75  289.02 

 390.75  291.50 

* Earmarked with Customs

19 Other Current Financial Assets

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

- Foreign exchange gain on forward contract  0.28  -   

Contract asset - Unbilled revenue  65.05  65.68 

 65.33  65.68 

20 Other Current Assets

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Prepayments  3.22  4.35 

Advances to suppliers, masters, agents and others  18.39  8.30 

Unutilised government grants (refer note 44) #  2.45  8.57 

 24.06  21.22 

# represents unutilised amount of duty saved on capital goods imported, including spares, under the Served from India 
Scheme (SFIS).

21 Equity Share Capital

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

No. of Shares ` In Crores No. of Shares ` In Crores

Authorised

Equity Shares of par value `10/- each  135,000,000  135.00 135,000,000  135.00 

 135.00  135.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up

Equity Shares of par value `10/- fully paid 
up

111,345,500  111.35 111,345,500  111.35 

Total  111.35  111.35 
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(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Details No. of Shares ` In Crores No. of Shares ` In Crores

Equity Shares of par value `10/- fully 
paid up
Outstanding at the beginning of the 
year

 111,345,500  111.35 111,345,500  111.35 

Add: Issued during the year  -    -    -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the year  111,345,500  111.35 111,345,500  111.35 

(b)		R ights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

			   Equity Shares :

			   The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote 
per share at meetings of the Company. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, 
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential 
amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

(c) Shares held by the holding company :

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Equity Shares  111.35  111.35 

111,345,500 equity shares (previous year: 111,345,500 equity shares) are held by The Great Eastern Shipping 
Company Limited along with its Nominees.

(d) Details of the Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the shares in the Company:

Name of Shareholder
As at March 31, 2019 As at  March 31, 2018

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares held

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares held

Equity Shares
The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited, the 
holding company along with its Nominees

100% 111,345,500 100% 111,345,500 

		  	 The company’s immediate and ultimate Holding Company is “The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited”, a 
company incorporated in India, as defined under Ind AS-110 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and Ind AS-24 
“Related Party Disclosures”. 	

(e)		 No shares are allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract (s) without payment being received in cash during the 
period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.						   

(f)		 No shares are allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares and no shares have been bought back during five years 
immediately preceding the reporting date.					   

(g)		 Employee Stock Option Scheme :	

			   The employee stock options of the Company were granted under five different Employee Stock Option Schemes 
(‘Scheme/s’) to the employees of the Company, the parent company and the subsidiaries. Out of the five Schemes, two 
Schemes - ESOP 2007 and ESOP 2008 – I were closed post the encashment introduced in 2012 and 2015.	
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			   During the year under review, an opportunity was given to the option grantees under all the existing Schemes for 
encashment of all their remaining outstanding options, aggregating to 151,060 options, at a fair value determined 
under the encashment proposal approved by the Board of Directors in March 2018. The encashment process was 
completed by end of September 2018 with the encashment of all outstanding stock options. With the said encashment, 
all the Schemes of the Company have been closed. 	

			   The particulars of the various Schemes and movements during the year under review are summarized as under:	

Sr. 
No. Particulars ESOP 2007-II ESOP 2008-II ESOP 2010

1. Date of Grant 28/01/08 23/10/08
19/03/09
05/05/09
24/07/09
23/10/09
28/12/09
18/03/10
30/04/10

23/09/10
30/04/11
24/10/11
27/04/12

2. Date of Board Approval 20/11/07 28/01/08 18/03/10
3. Date of Shareholders’ 

Approval
21/11/07 31/01/08 23/04/10

4. Options approved 200,000 1,710,000 1,028,900
5. Options outstanding at 

the beginning of the year
4,600 44,700 101,760

6. Options granted during 
the year

_ _ _

7. Options cancelled/
forfeited during the year

_ _ _

8. Options Exercised during 
the year

_ _ _

9. Options encashed during 
the year

4,600 44,700 101,760

10. Options outstanding at 
the end of the year

_ _ _

11. Exercise Price/Weighted 
Average Exercise Price

100 135 135

12. Exercise period from the 
date of vesting

One year from the date  
of vesting/listing  
whichever is later

One year from the date  
of vesting/listing  
whichever is later

One year from the date  
of vesting/listing  
whichever is later

13. Exercisable at end of the 
year

_ _ _

14. Method of Settlement Equity Equity/Cash Equity
15. Vesting period from the 

date of grant
One year 20% equally over a  

period of five years
20% equally over a  
period of five years

16. Vesting conditions Continued employment 
with the holding 

Company “ The Great 
Eastern Shipping Co. 

Ltd.” (includes transfer 
within group companies)

Continued employment 
with the Company or 
subsidiaries (includes 
transfer within group 

companies)

Continued employment 
with the Company or 
subsidiaries (includes 
transfer within group 

companies)
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22 Other Equity

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Summary of Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Capital reserve  489.32  489.32 

Capital redemption reserve  43.50  43.50 

Securities premium  1,155.13  1,155.13 

General reserve  82.35  82.35 

Tonnage tax reserve  146.00  145.50 

Retained earnings  494.59  449.86 

Other Comprehensive Income

Cash flow hedging reserve  9.53  21.69 

 2,420.42  2,387.35 

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Reserves and Surplus
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning  of the year  489.32  2.95 

Add: Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation  -    486.37 

Balance at the end of the year  489.32  489.32 

Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year  43.50  43.50 

Securities premium reserve
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year  1,155.13  1,155.13 

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  82.35  40.35 

Add: Transfer from tonnage tax reserve  -    42.00 

Balance at the end of the year  82.35  82.35 

Tonnage Tax Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  145.50  187.00 

Add: Transfer from retained earnings  0.50  0.50 

Less: Transfer to general reserve on utilisation  -    (42.00)

Balance at the end of the year  146.00  145.50 
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As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  449.86  464.84 

Add: (Loss) / Profit for the year  44.90  (16.06)

Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year  0.33  2.01 

Add: Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation  -    (0.43)

Less: Transfer to tonnage tax reserve Account under section 115VT of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961

 (0.50)  (0.50)

Balance at the end of the year  494.59  449.86 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Cash flow Hedging Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  21.69  4.46 

Add : Fair value  gain on derivative contracts designated as cash flow hedges (net)  (12.16)  17.23 

Balance at the end of the year  9.53  21.69 

 2,420.42  2,387.35 

Nature of reserves

Capital reserve

The company recognises profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to 
capital reserve.

Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the 
provision of the Companies Act 2013.

General reserve

The General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

Tonnage Tax reserve

Tonnage Tax Reserve created as per the provisions of the Section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961, whereby a minimum of 
20% of book profits from the tonnage tax activities are to be utilised for acquiring new ships within 8 years.

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to reserves and dividend distributions 
to the shareholders.

Cash flow Hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve is the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of 
designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The gains or losses arising thereon are 
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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23 Long Term Borrowings

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Secured - at amortised cost

Foreign currency term loans from banks  1,899.31  1,994.43 

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (included in Note 28)  (359.68)  (205.73)

Less: Interest accrued but not due on long term borrowings (included in Note 28)  (4.13)  (3.73)

 1,535.50  1,784.97 

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Redeemable cumulative Preference shares capital

24.60 %  (Previous Year 21.75%) Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of par value 
`10/- fully paid up

 171.64  170.62 

22.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of par value `10/- fully paid up  181.87  181.87 

 353.51  352.49 

 1,889.01  2,137.46 

a. Foreign currency term loans are secured by mortgage on the vessels and rigs, assignment of earnings, charge on earnings 
account (where applicable) and insurance contracts/policies of respective vessels and rigs (refer note 7A).  The loans carry 
interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 176 to 215 bps (previous year : LIBOR plus 176 to 215 bps) and are repayable in quarterly 
/ half yearly instalments over two to six years.	

The maturity profile of foreign currency term loans from banks is as below:

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

1-2 years  201.36  343.81 

2-3 years  162.47  189.79 

3-4 years  219.17  153.13 

4-5 years  296.37  206.57 

Beyond 5 years  673.21  913.84 

 1,552.58  1,807.14 

Less: Unamortised finance charges  (17.08)  (22.17)

 1,535.50  1,784.97 
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b. Preference Shares :

The total outstanding preference shares include the below: 

(i) 24.60% 44,500,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of face value ` 10/- each issued at a premium of ` 20/- 
per share on preferential basis to the Holding Company, “The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited”, redeemable 
at a premium of ` 30.90/- per share. During the year, the terms of said preference shares were modified deferring the 
redemption, which was scheduled to begin in April 2021, upto April 2025 and thereby increasing the rate of dividend from 
existing 21.75% p.a. to 24.60% p.a., effective from FY 19, in order to maintain the same effective yield of 7% to the Holding 
Company. Thus, the said preference shares would now be redeemed in four equal annual tranches of 11,125,000 shares 
each commencing from April 1, 2025. 

As per the terms, the Company also has an option of early redemption by providing one month’s notice to the Holding 
Company. The redemption can be in part or in full subject to a minimum of 25 lakhs shares at a time. In case of early 
redemption, the premium on redemption would be determined at such time so as to provide an effective yield to maturity 
of 7% to the Holding Company. The cumulative redeemable preference shares do not contain any equity component.

(ii) 22.50% 60,624,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of face value `10/- each, issued at a premium of ` 20/- 
per share on preferential basis to the Holding Company, “The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited” and redeemable 
at a premium of ̀  20 per share in four equal annual tranches of 15,156,000 shares each commencing from April 1, 2025, 
as per the terms of issue (modified from time to time) of these preference shares.

As per the terms, the Company also has an option of early redemption by providing one month’s notice to the Holding 
Company. The redemption can be in part or in full subject to a minimum of 25 lakhs shares at a time.  The cumulative 
redeemable preference shares do not contain any equity component.

25 Provisions

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
A. Non current
Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for compensated absences (refer note 32)  0.33  0.44 
- Director's retirement benefit plan (refer note 32)  10.85  10.36 

 11.18  10.80 

B. Current
Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for compensated absences (refer note 32)  0.44  0.39 
- Employee stock options scheme (refer note 21 (g))  -    0.37 

 0.44  0.76 

24 Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities
As at  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Derivatives designated as Cash flow hedges

- Foreign exchange loss on interest rate collar / interest rate swaps 3.58  0.09 

3.58  0.09 
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26 Other Non-Current Liabilities
As at  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Government grants #  22.71  22.86 

 22.71  22.86 

# represents unamortised amount of duty saved on capital goods imported, including spares, under the Served from India 
Scheme (SFIS).

27 Trade Payables

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Payable to micro, small and medium enterprises  5.39  3.90 

Payable to others  67.57  55.85 

[includes ` 13.13 crores (previous year : ` 12.37 crores) due to a subsidiary]

 72.96  59.75 

Disclosure of amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises is based on information available with the Company 
regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ 
(MSMED). Interest on principal amount overdue as on March 31, 2019 is ` 0.02 crores (previous year : ` 0.05 crores). No 
interest has been paid during the year to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act.

Trade payables are recognised at their original invoices amounts which represents their fair values on initial recognition. 
Trade payables are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to 
approximate their fair values.	

28 Other Current Financial Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Current maturities of long term borrowings  359.68  205.73 

Interest accrued but not due on long term borrowings  4.13  3.73 

Other liabilities of related parties (Refer note below)  -    856.11 

Preference dividend payable including dividend distribution tax  29.65  28.11 

Other payables :

- Employee benefits  18.76  21.07 

- Accrued expenses  4.19  2.84 

- Others  13.93  20.45 

 430.34  1,138.04 

Note :

During the current year, the Company has settled its outstanding liability towards Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. 
Ltd. (GGES) of USD 131.36 million for rig purchase along with interest .



financial statements

95

30 Revenue From Operations

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Sale of services

Charter hire income (refer note 42)  825.12  890.73 

Other operating revenues

Insurance claims  0.14  3.11 

 825.26  893.84 

29 Other Current Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

 - Statutory liabilities  8.38  6.21 

 - Capital creditors  -    2.32 

Government grants (refer note 44) #  2.45  8.57 

 10.83  17.10 

# represents unutilised amount of duty saved on capital goods imported, including spares, under the Served from India 
Scheme (SFIS).

31 Other Income

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

a Interest income

on deposits with banks (at amortised cost)  14.12  6.20 

b Dividend income

Dividend from foreign subsidiary (designated at cost)  26.94  147.44 

Dividend on current investments (at FVTPL)  1.06  1.92 

c Other non-operating income

Profit on account of capital reduction of subsidiary  105.37  -   

Income from Government grants (at amortised cost)  5.64  5.81 

Profit on sale of other assets  0.40  0.02 

Profit on sale of current investments (at FVTPL)  0.15  0.04 

Corporate guarantee commission  -    0.88 

Miscellaneous income  0.26  0.20 

 153.94  162.51 
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32 Employee Benefits Expense

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Salaries and wages  184.49  178.88 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note below)  7.16  7.09 
Share based payments to employees (refer note 21(g))  -    (2.01)
Staff welfare expenses  11.35  11.38 

 203.00  195.34 
a) Defined Contribution Plans :
The Company has recognised the following contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable 
under these plans are at the rates specified in the rules of the respective schemes.

Particulars

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Contribution to Provident Fund  2.31  2.38 
Contribution to Superannuation Fund  0.27  0.30 
Contribution to National Pension Scheme  0.33  0.34 
Contribution to Seamens’ Provident Fund  1.04  0.92 
Contribution to Seamens’ Pension Annuity Fund  0.67  0.64 
Contribution to Seamens’ Gratuity Fund  0.25  0.23 

General Description:				  

i)    	Provident Fund :

			   In accordance with the Indian law, all eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the 
provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and employer (at a determined rate) contribute 
monthly. The Company contributes as specified under the law to the Government administered provident fund plan. 
A part of the company’s contribution is transferred to the Government administered pension fund. This plan is a 
defined contribution plan as the obligation of the employer is limited to the monthly contributions made to the fund. 
The contributions made to the fund are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee 
benefit expenses.

ii)   	Superannuation Fund :	

			   In addition to gratuity benefits, employees have the option to become a member of the Superannuation Fund Trust set 
up by the Company and receive benefits thereunder. It is a defined contribution plan. The Company makes contributions 
to the trust in respect of the said employees until their retirement or resignation. The Company recognises such 
contributions as an expense when incurred. The Company has no further obligation beyond its contribution.

iii)   National Pension Scheme (NPS) :	

			   NPS is an additional option for offering retirement benefits to the employees. NPS is designed on defined contribution 
basis wherein the Company contributes to the employees account. 
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			   There is no defined benefit that would be available at the time of exit from the system and the accumulated wealth 
depends on the contributions made and the income generated from the investment of such wealth. The Company 
recognises such contributions as an expense when incurred. The Company has no further obligation beyond its 
contribution.		

iv)  	Seamen’s Provident Fund :

			   The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund in respect of seamen i.e. crew who sail on Company’s ships is 
paid to the Seamen’s Provident Fund as per the National Maritime Board Agreement.

v)  	 Seamen’s Pension Annuity Fund :	

			   The Company’s contribution towards Annuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seamen’s Annuity Fund as per the 
National Maritime Board Agreement.

vi)  	Seamen’s Gratuity Fund :	

			   The Company’s contribution towards Gratuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seafarer’s Welfare Fund Society as 
per the National Maritime Board Agreement.	

b) 		D efined Benefit Plans and Other Long-Term Employee Benefits :				  

			   Valuations in respect of Gratuity, Pension Plan for whole time director and Compensated Absences have been carried 
out by an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date as per Projected Unit Credit Method. The following table 
sets out the status of the Gratuity provision, Pension plan and Compensated absences :

` in Crores

Actuarial Assumption

Gratuity Pension Plan Compensated Absences

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018
a) Mortality IALM 

(2006-08) 
Ult.

IALM 
(2006-08) 

Ult.

IALM 
(2006-08) 

Ult.

IALM 
(2006-08) 

Ult.

IALM 
(2006-08) 

Ult.

IALM 
(2006-08) 

Ult.
b) Interest / Discount Rate 7.60% 7.65% 7.40% 7.40% 7.65% 7.65%
c) Rate of increase in compensation

Shore Staff 5.00% 5.00% - - 5.00% 5.00%
Rig Staff 5.00% 3.00% - - - -

d) Expected average remaining service
Shore Staff 7.79 7.77 - - 7.79 7.77
Rig Staff 9.27 15.05 - - - -

e) Employee Attrition rate 
Shore Staff 8.00% 8.00% - - 8.00% 8.00%
Rig Staff (Past Service : 0 to 5) 20.00% 1.50%
Rig Staff (Past Service : 6 to 42) 2.00% 1.50% - - - -

f) Weighted average remaining duration of 
Defined Benefit Obligation (in years)
Shore Staff 5.10 4.93 - - 4.52 4.54
Rig Staff 9.13 10.37 - - - -
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` in Crores

Actuarial Assumption

Gratuity Pension Plan Compensated Absences

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

i) Change in Present Value of Obligations :

Present value obligation at the beginning 
of the year

 10.91  10.57  10.36  10.57  0.49  0.51 

Interest Cost  0.81  0.71  0.76  0.74  0.04  0.03 

Current Service Cost    2.28  2.34  -    -    0.09  0.07 

Benefits Paid               (0.62)  (0.66)  -    -    (0.04)  (0.02)

Transfer in  0.11  -    -    -    -    -   

Actuarial (Gain) / loss on Obligation  (0.27)  (2.05)  (0.26)  (0.95)  (0.09)  (0.10)

Present value obligation at the end of 
the year

 13.22  10.91  10.86  10.36  0.49  0.49 

ii) Fair Value of Plan Assets :

Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  11.30  11.24  -    -    -    -   

Return on Plan Assets (excluding 
Interest Income)

 (0.07)  (0.04)  -    -    -    -   

Interest Income  0.92  0.76  -    -    -    -   

Employer's Contribution  2.05  -    -    -    0.04  0.02 

Benefits Paid  (0.62)  (0.66)  -    -    (0.04)  (0.02)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of 
the year

 13.58  11.30  -    -    -    -   

The fair values of the above equity and debt instruments are determined based on quoted market prices in active markets.

iii) Return on plan assets :

Actual Return on Plan Assets  0.85  0.72  -    -    -    -   

Interest Income  0.92  0.76  -    -    -    -   

Return on plan assets excluding interest 
income

 (0.07)  (0.04)  -    -    -    -   

iv) Acturial Gain/Loss on obligation

Due to Demographic Assumption  0.37  -    -    -    -    -   

Due to Financial Assumption  0.59  (0.54)  -    -    0.00  (0.01)

Due to experience  (1.23)  (1.51)  (0.26)  (0.95)  (0.08)  (0.09)

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  (0.27)  (2.05)  (0.26)  (0.95)  (0.08)  (0.10)

v) Amounts Recognised in the Balance 
Sheet:
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` in Crores

Actuarial Assumption

Gratuity Pension Plan Compensated Absences

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Present Value of obligation at the end of 
the Year

 (13.22)  (10.91)  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.33)  (0.44)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at  the end of 
the year

 13.58  11.30  -    -    -    -   

Funded Status  0.36  0.39  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.33)  (0.44)

Short Term Liability  -    -    -    -    (0.44)  (0.39)

Net Assets  / (Liability) recognised in the 
balance sheet

 0.36  0.39  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.77)  (0.83)

vi) Expenses Recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost  2.28  2.34  -    -    0.09  0.07 

Interest Cost (Net)  (0.10)  (0.05)  0.76  0.74  0.04  0.03 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) recognised for the 
period

 -    -    -    -    (0.08)  (0.10)

Expenses recognised in the profit and 
loss account

 2.18  2.29  0.76  0.74  0.05  -   

vii) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for 
the year

 (0.27)  (2.05)  (0.26)  (0.95)  -    -   

Return on Plan Assets excluding net 
interest

 0.07  0.04  -    -    -    -   

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized 
in (OCI)

 (0.20)  (2.01)  (0.26)  (0.95)  -    -   

viii) Investment Details ( % invested )

HDFC Life Defensive Management 
Fund II

100% 100%  -    -    -    -   

ix)  Asset Liability Comparisons

Present Value of Defined benefit 
obligation

 (13.22)  (10.91)  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.50)  (0.50)

Plan assets  13.58  11.30  -    -    -    -   

Surplus or (Deficit) in the plan  0.36  0.39  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.50)  (0.50)

Experience adjustments on plan assets  (0.07)  (0.04)  -    -    -    -   
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x)   Sensitivity Analysis DR : Discount Rate ER : Salary Escalation Rate

PVO DR +1% PVO DR -1% PVO ER +1% PVO ER -1%

Gratuity

Present Value of Obligation  12.58  13.93  13.70  12.74 

Pension Plan

Present Value of Obligation  9.55  12.34  -    -   

Compensated Absences

Present Value of Obligation  0.48  0.52  0.52  0.48 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation 
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may 
be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been 
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in 
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

xi)  Expected Payout First Second Third Fourth Fifth Six to Ten 
years

Gratuity

Present Value of Obligation  2.58  1.60  1.23  1.20  0.75  4.38 

Pension Plan

Present Value of Obligation  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Compensated Absences

Present Value of Obligation  0.17  0.04  0.08  0.04  0.04  0.15 

General Description:					   

i)			G  ratuity :

			G   ratuity is payable to eligible employees on superannuation, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms of the 
provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s Scheme whichever is more beneficial. Benefit would be 
paid at the time of separation based on the last drawn basic salary.

The defined benefit plans are administered by a separate fund that is legally separated from the Company. The Company’s 
investment strategy in respect of its funded plans is implemented within the framework of the applicable statutory 
requirements.

			   The plans expose the Company to a number of actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and 
salary risk. 

			   Investment / Interest Risk					  

			   The Company is exposed to investment/interest risk if the return on the invested fund falls below the discount rate used to 
arrive at present value of the benefit. 	
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			   Longevity Risk

			   The Company is not exposed to risk of the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme ceases on the employee 
separating from the employer for any reason.

			   Salary Risk

			   The Company is exposed to higher liability if the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary escalation.

			   The Company does an Asset - Liability matching study each year in which the consequences of the strategic investment 
policies are analysed in terms of risk and return profiles.

ii)		  Pension Plan :

			   Under the Company’s Retirement Benefit Scheme for the Managing Director, the Managing Director is entitled to the benefits 
of the scheme only after attaining the age of 62 years, except for retirement due to physical disability or death while in office, 
in which case, the benefits shall start on his retirement due to such physical disability or death. The benefits are in the form 
of monthly pension @ 50% of his last drawn monthly salary subject to maximum of ` 1.25 crores p.a. during his lifetime. If 
he predeceases the spouse, she will be paid monthly pension @ 50% of his last drawn pension during her lifetime. Benefits 
include reimbursement of medical expense for self and spouse, overseas medical treatment upto ` 0.50 crores for self/
spouse, office space including office facilities in the Company’s or parent company’s office premises. Benefits also include 
use of Company’s car including reimbursement of driver’s salary during his lifetime and in the event of his demise, his 
spouse will be entitled to avail the said benefit during her lifetime.	

iii)		 Compensated Absences :

			E   ligible employees can carry forward and encash leave upto superannuation, death, permanent disablement and resignation 
subject to maximum accumulation allowed at 15 days. The leave over and above 15 days for all employees is encashed and 
paid to employees, subject to maximum of 20 days on June 30, every year.

iii)		 Post Retirement Benefit Scheme:

			   During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company have approved and implemented Post  Retirement Medical Benefit 
Scheme for the Executive Directors and Senior Management Employees of the Company at their meeting held on February 
4, 2019. Under the said Scheme, certain medical benefits shall be provided post retirement to the selected employees 
(including spouse), subject to a limit of ` 50 lakhs p.a. The medical benefits shall be in the form of reimbursement/payment 
of hospitalisation (including Domiciliary Hospitalisation) expenses incurred in India or abroad for the selected Employee 
and his / her spouse for life, pre and post hospitalisation expenses incurred 30 days before / after hospitalization and annual 
preventive health check-up package (once every year).  The selected Employee, who has been Executive Director of the 
Company, and his / her spouse will also be entitled to reimbursement of all other medical expenses, in the ordinary course. 
The reimbursement of these expenses shall be in addition to the annual limit of expenses mentioned above. If either of the 
Selected Employee or his / her spouse passes away, the limit will continue for the eligible survivor.

			   Under this method, the Post-Retirement Medical Benefit payable to the Executive Director and his spouse is projected till 
their eligibility of payment and is then discounted back to the valuation date. The assumptions considered are:

 - 		  The discount rate is based on the benchmark yield available on Government Bonds , having regard to the term of the 
liabilities which is 7.66% p.a. on 20 year bond. 

 - 		  The severity of the claim is assumed to be 12%, frequency of the claim to be 18.535% and the rate of inflation in 
medical cost to be 6.5% p.a. 

 - 		  Also considered 80% of LIC Annuitant Table (1996-98) for the mortality rate post retirement and no withdrawal rate 
has been considered.
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33 Finance Costs

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Interest expense  164.30  69.45 

Finance charges (upfront fees, agency fees, prepayment fees)  6.84  20.64 

Effective interest cost on redeemable preference shares

Dividend on redeemable preference shares  25.61  25.44 

Dividend distribution tax on redeemable preference shares #  0.26  0.05 

Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost  61.36  16.67 

 258.37  132.25 

# The provision of dividend distribution tax payable on redeemable preference shares of current year amounting to ` 5.05 
crores (previous year ̀  4.75 crore) was adjusted against credit of taxes paid under section 115BBD of Income tax Act, 1961 
on dividend received from foreign subsidiary.

34 Depreciation And Amortisation Expense

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 7A)  218.66  203.10 

Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 8)  0.09  0.07 

 218.75  203.17 

35 Impairment Loss

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Impairment of tangible assets (refer note 7A) -  134.60 

Impairment loss allowance on investment in subsidiary -  35.99 

-  170.59 

The Company carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of fleet and rigs  and recognised impairment loss of ` NIL 
(previous year: ` 134.60 crores on twelve vessels). The recoverable amounts determined on the basis of their value in use 
for previous year: ` 724.39 crores for ten vessels and based on fair value (level 3) for previous year: ` 123.83 crores for two 
vessels respectively. The discount rate used in measuring value in use previous year was 6.50% p.a.

Recoverable amount of investment in Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Limited, a subsidiary, was determined based 
on the recoverable amount determined considering net assets value.
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36 Other Expenses

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Fuel, oil & water  9.14  23.89 

Hire of chartered rigs, vessels and equipments  2.89  79.21 

Consumption of stores and spares  69.41  61.98 

Technical management fees  0.12  1.75 

Agency fees  1.69  1.30 

Port dues  1.68  1.11 

Repairs and maintenance

- Rigs and vessels  30.53  21.70 

- Buildings  0.08  0.08 

- Others  1.64  1.99 

Insurance

- Fleet insurance  12.50  12.69 

- Others  1.44  1.54 

Travelling and conveyance expenses  6.40  6.36 

Communication expenses  8.39  7.12 

Rent  6.05  6.06 

Rates and taxes  0.01  0.01 

Brokerage and commission  -    0.09 

Payment to auditors (refer note 38)  0.43  0.38 

Reversal for doubtful debts and advances (net)  (1.13)  (0.14)

(Gain) /Loss on derivatives transactions (net)  1.83  (0.65)

Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 41)  2.96  5.40 

Loss on foreign currency transactions (net)  56.78  5.05 

Miscellaneous expenses  18.75  21.64 

 231.59  258.56 

37 Earnings Per Share

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

 Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity share holders (` In crores) (A)  44.90  (16.06)

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS (B)  111,345,500  111,345,500 

Face value of per equity share                                                      `  10.00  10.00 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (A / B)                               `  4.03  (1.44)
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38 Payment to Auditors

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

a) Audit fees (including limited review)  0.35  0.35 

b) In Other capacity

- Certification and other services  0.08  0.03 

 0.43  0.38 

39 Related Party Disclosure

I) List of Related Parties

a) Holding Company :

The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd.

b) Subsidiary Companies :

Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore 

Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd., Singapore 

Greatship (UK) Ltd., UK 

Greatship Oilfield Services Limited, India

c) Fellow Subsidiaries :

The Great Eastern Chartering LLC (FZC), Sharjah

The Greatship (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Singapore

The Great Eastern Chartering (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Great Eastern CSR Foundation., India

d) Key Management Personnel :

Executive Directors

Mr. Ravi K. Sheth             

Mr. P.R. Naware               
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Bharat K. Sheth (Chairman)

Mr. Keki Mistry

Mr. Berjis Desai (upto March 12, 2018)

Mr. Vineet Nayyar (upto September 19, 2018)

Mr. Shashank Singh (upto October 29, 2018)

Mr. Anil Chandanmal Singhvi

Mr. Mathew Cyriac

Ms. Swaroop Rawal (upto August 6, 2018)

Ms. Rita Bhagwati (appointed w.e.f August 7, 2018)

Mr. Shaleen Sharma (appointed w.e.f October 26, 2018)

Others

Mr. G. Shivakumar           -  Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Amisha Ghia              -  Company Secretary

e) Relative of Key Management Personnel :

Ms. Nirja B. Sheth                    - Daughter of Chairman 

f) Other Related party

Greatship (India) Limited Employees Gratuity Trust - Post employment benefit plan of Greatship group
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II)   Details of transactions with related parties during the year
( ` in Crores )

Nature of transaction

Holding  
Company

Subsidiary 
Companies

Fellow  
Subsidiaries

Key Management 
Personnel and 

Relatives

Year 
Ended  
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended  
March 

31, 2018

Year 
Ended  
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended  
March 

31, 2018

Year 
Ended  
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended  
March 

31, 2018

Year 
Ended  
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended  
March 

31, 2018

Transactions during the year:

Purchase of rigs  -    -    -   2,451.27  -    -    -    -   

Investment in equity share capital  -    -    -    0.25  -    -    -    -   

Redemption of Investment  -    -   1,024.62  -    -    -    -    -   

Corporate guarantee commission  -    -    -    0.88  -    -    -    -   

Interest on preference share  25.61  23.32  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Contribution paid towards CSR  -    -    -    -    2.96  3.67  -    -   

Inchartering expenses  -    -    -    73.05  -    -    -    -   

Charter hire income  -    -    (0.06)  11.36  -    -    -    -   

Purchase of vessel  -    -    35.69  -    -    -    -    -   

Purchase of fuel  -    -    1.44  -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend received  -    -    26.94  147.44  -    -    -    -   

Interest Paid  -    -    73.24  -    -    -    -    -   

Executive directors

Short term benefits  -    -    -    -    -    -    8.96  8.77 

Post employment benefits  -    -    -    -    -    -    0.81  (0.21)

Non-executive directors

Commission / Variable pay  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1.69 

Sitting fees  -    -    -    -    -    -    0.46  0.29 

Others

Short term benefits  -    -    -    -    -    -    0.68  0.61 

Post employment benefits  -    -    -    -    -    -    0.01  0.01 

Service charges for allotment of 
training slots 

 1.26  1.84  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Re-imbursement of  expenses paid  -    -    -    3.18  -    -    -    -   
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Nature of transaction

Holding Company Subsidiary Companies Key Management 
Personnel and Relatives

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at  
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Outstanding Balances

Receivables  -    -    -    0.05  -    -   

Payables  0.89  0.75  13.13  868.48  -    -   

Dividend Payable  24.59  23.32  -    -    -    -   

Corporate guarantees given  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Remuneration payable

Executive directors  -    -    -    -    15.05  14.25 

Non-executive directors  -    -    -    -    -    1.69 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm’s length basis.

40 Financial Instruments

(a) Capital Management				  

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term 
and short-term goals of the Company.		

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in note 23 and offset by cash and bank 
balances and current investments) and total equity of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company’s risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on a regular basis considering 
the cyclicity of business.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Debt*  2,252.82  2,346.92 

Less : Cash and bank balances including current investments  (767.37)  (568.29)

Net debt  1,485.45  1,778.63 

Total equity  2,531.77  2,498.70 

Net debt to equity ratio  0.59  0.71 

*Debt includes foreign currency term loans from banks and cumulative redeemable preference share capital.
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(b) Financial assets and liabilities				  

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on 
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instru-
ments are disclosed in Note 5 (g) to the financial statements.	

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows :

Carrying value as on
March 31, 2019

` in Crores
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Financial Assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents  302.70  243.55 
Other financial assets  1.21  1.21 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  390.75  291.50 
Deposits with bank  2.59  -   
Trade receivables  92.66  82.82 
Unbilled revenue  65.05  65.68 
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Current investments  71.33  33.24 
Derivative contracts  -    0.66 
Measured at fair value through OCI
Derivative contracts  14.70  29.76 

 940.99  748.42 

Financial Liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Foreign currency term loans from banks  1,899.31  1,994.43 
Preference share capital including redemption premium  353.51  352.49 
Preference dividend payable including dividend distribution tax  29.65  28.11 
Trade payables  72.96  59.75 
Other financial liabilities  36.88  900.47 
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative contracts  1.18  -   
Measured at fair value through OCI
Derivative contracts  2.40  0.09 

 2,395.89  3,335.34 

The management considers that the carrying amounts of above financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their 
fair values.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table present assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by the level of the following fair value 
measurements hierarchy:
(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and
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(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3). 

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Level Valuation technique and key inputs

Financial Assets 
and Liabilities

Investments in 
liquid mutual funds

 71.33  33.24  Level 
2 

The mutual funds are valued at the Net asset 
value of the respective units.

Derivative financial 
instruments (net)

 11.12  30.33  Level 
2 

Discounted cash flows.  Future cash flows  are 
estimated based on forward exchange/ interest 
rates and contract forward/ interest rates 
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk 
of various counterparties.

(c) Derivative financial instrument and risk management				  

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate collars and interest rate swaps  to hedge its exposure 
to movements in foreign exchange rates and variable interest rates. The Company does not use the foreign exchange 
forward contracts, currency & interest swaps and options for trading or speculation purposes. 

The Company has identified certain derivative contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of firm commitments 
and interest swaps as hedge instruments that qualify as effective cash flow hedges. The mark to market gain / (loss) on 
such derivative contracts is recorded in the hedging reserve.

I) 	 Derivative instruments in hedging relationship (Cashflow Hedges) : 
		  (i) Forward exchange contracts:

Details

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total no. of Contracts 6  -    -   12

Notional amount of foreign currency  (USD  Million) 15.98  -    -   3.00

Amount in hedging reserve gain (` in crores) 0.28    -    -   *

Maturity Period  upto  
12 months 

 -    -    upto  
12 months 

* Less than 1 Lakh rupees

		  (ii) Interest rate swap contracts:                     

Details
As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018

Total No. of contracts 14 11

Principal notional amount (USD million) 161.06 170.27

Amount in hedging reserve gain (` in crores) 12.02  29.69   

Maturity Period  upto 66 months  upto 78 months 

		  The above mentioned derivative contracts having been entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of loan installments, 
firm commitments and the interest rate risk, have been designated as hedge instruments that qualify as effective cash 
flow hedges. The mark-to-market  gain on these derivative contracts outstanding as on March 31, 2019 amounting to 
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gain of ` 12.30 crores [ previous year gain : ` 29.69 crores (net) ] has been recorded in the Cash flow hedging reserve 
as on March 31, 2019.

		  ‘The interest rate swaps are entered to hedge quarterly interest payments from variable to fixed on borrowings. Fair 
value gains and losses on the interest rate swaps recognised in Cash flow Hedging Reserve are transferred to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as part of interest expense on settlement.

II) 	Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship :

		  Interest rate collar contracts :

Details
As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018

Total no. of Contracts 3 3

Principal Notional Amount (USD million) 26.56 28.99

Gain/(Loss) recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss during the year (` in crores) 

(1.18) 0.65

Maturity Period  upto 66 months  upto 78 months

 		  The interest rate collar contracts mentioned under “Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship” above,  
economically hedge the underlying exposures but hedge accounting is not opted for the same.

		  The interest rate collar contracts are entered to cap the floating interest rate liability. If interest rate rises above a certain 
level this will start acting as interest rate swap. 

		G  ains / (Losses) on the derivative contracts mentioned under (II) above, are transferred to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The mark-to-market  on these derivative contracts outstanding as on March 31, 2019 amounting to loss ` 1.18 
crores (previous year gain: ` 0.65 crores) has been recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Market risk 				  

i)  Foreign currency risk 

The company uses forward covers to protect against the volatility associated with the foreign currency transactions.

The company exposure to unhedged foreign currency is listed below :

Details

Currency in Millions ` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Foreign currency term loans from banks

USD  261.27  309.81  1,806.71  2,019.21 

Financial liabilities

USD  6.79  138.45  46.98  902.36 

EUR  0.10  0.65  0.79  5.23 

JPY  4.63  11.08  0.29  0.68 
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A 5% strengthening / weakening of Indian Rupee against key currencies to which the company is exposed (net of hedge), 
with all other variables being held constant, would have led to approximately a Gain / Loss of ` 52.91 crores (previous year 
: ` 113.89 crores) in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Details

Currency in Millions ` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

NOK  0.03  0.49  0.02  0.41 

SGD  0.15  0.05  0.77  0.23 

AED  0.01  0.08  0.01  0.15 

GBP  0.07  0.01  0.62  0.14 

ZAR  0.45  -    0.21  -   

Financial assets

USD  23.42  20.05  161.95  130.66 

EUR  0.13  0.20  1.03  1.63 

SGD  0.04  -    0.20  -   

GBP  0.02  -    0.14  -   

Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

USD  91.32  79.06  631.47  515.26 

EUR  0.19  0.21  1.47  1.70 

SGD  0.22  0.15  1.10  0.74 

GBP  0.09  0.05  0.78  0.48 

Net currency exposure

USD  (153.32)  (349.15)  (1,060.27)  (2,275.65)

EUR  0.22  (0.24)  1.71  (1.90)

JPY  (4.63)  (11.08)  (0.29)  (0.68)

NOK  (0.03)  (0.49)  (0.02)  (0.41)

SGD  0.11  0.10  0.53  0.51 

AED  (0.01)  (0.08)  (0.01)  (0.15)

GBP  0.04  0.04  0.30  0.34 

ZAR  (0.45)  -    (0.21)  -   
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ii) 	Interest rate risk

The company generally borrows at variable rates and uses interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges of future 
interest payments, which have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. 
Under the interest rate swaps, the company agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, the 
difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed 
notional principal amounts. 

Interest rate sensitivity

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at 
both fixed and floating interest rates.

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings 
of the Company are principally denominated in Indian rupees and US dollars with a mix of fixed and floating rates 
of interest. The Company hedges its US dollar interest rate risk through interest rate swaps and interest rate 
collars to reduce the floating interest rate risk. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally 
on changes in  LIBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Company by the use of interest rate swap and interest 
rate collar contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk 
appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Fixed rate borrowings (Redeemable preference shares)  353.51  352.49 

Floating rate borrowings (Foreign currency term loans from banks)  1,899.31  1,994.43 

Total borrowings  2,252.82  2,346.92 

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate 
liabilities, after the impact of hedge accounting, assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end 
was outstanding for the whole year.	

As at March 31, 2019, the term loans from banks amounting to ` 619.82 crores (previous year: ` 720.54 crores) 
are exposed to interest risks.		

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the company’s 
profit for the year would increase or decrease by ` 4.53 crores (previous year: ` 4.34 crores). As impact of 
interest rate movement on loan outstanding on undelivered vessel is capitalised, this is mainly attributable to the 
company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings on delivered rigs / vessels.

(e)		 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the company. The credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of credit 
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worthiness as well as concentration risk. The major class of financial asset of the company is trade receivables, cash 
and cash equivalents and derivatives. For credit exposures to customer, management assesses the credit quality of 
the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.	

As the company does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial 
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statement of financial 
position.

Trade receivables :

The trade receivables of the company comprise 1 debtor (previous year: 1 debtor) that individually represented 
81.08% (previous year: 73.70%) of trade receivables. Due to the nature of the Company’s operations, revenue and 
receivable are typically concentrated amongst a relatively niche customer base. The Company has policies in place to 
ensure that contracts are with customers of stable financial standing and appropriate credit history.   

The credit period of receivables ranges from 20 to 90 days generally without security. There has been no significant 
change in the credit  quality of past due receivables.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company and subject to established policy, procedures and control relating 
to customer risk management.

The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored and appropriate action is taken for collection of overdue 
receivables.

The history of trade receivables shows a negligible allowance for bad and doubtful debts.		

Cash and Cash Equivalents, derivatives and mutual fund investments :	

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company invests in deposits with banks with high credit 
ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investments in 
liquid mutual funds units from reputed funds. For derivative and financial instruments, the Company attempts to limit 
the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks and financial institutions having high credit-ratings assigned by 
credit-rating agencies.				  

Exposure to credit risk :

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit 
risk was ` 940.99 crores as at March 31, 2019 and ` 748.42 crores as at March 31, 2018, being the total of the 
carrying amount of balances and deposits with banks, trade receivables, mutual fund investments and other financial 
assets including derivatives instruments.

(i)	 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired	

	 Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are credit worthy debtors with good payment 
record with the company.

	 The company’s trade receivables not past due include receivables amounting to `8.53 crores (previous year:  
` 39.13 crores). 

(ii) 	 Financial assets that are past due and/ or impaired

	 There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or provided for except for trade receivables.  

	 The ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the company that are past due but not provided as doubtful debts 
is as follows:
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As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Overdue 

 - Less than 180 days  82.70  42.78 
 - More than 180 days  1.43  0.90 

 84.13  43.68 

	 The carrying amount of trade receivables provided as doubtful debts are as follows: 

Overdue 
 - More than 365 days  2.25  3.38 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  (2.25)  (3.38)
 -    -   

(f)		 Liquidity risk							     
Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the company may not be able to meet its short-term obligations. In the 
management of liquidity risk, the company monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and current 
investment deemed adequate by the management to finance the company’s operations and mitigate effects of 
fluctuations in cash flows.  			 

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the group’s non derivative financial liabilities (excluding interest 
commitment) based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows :

` in Crores

Payable within  
1 year

Payable within  
2 - 5 years

More than  
5 years Total

As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings  363.81  863.37  672.13  1,899.31 

Trade payables  72.96  -    -    72.96 

Other financial liabilities  36.88  -    -    36.88 

Preference share capital including redemption 
premium

 -    353.51  353.51 

Preference dividend payable including 
dividend distribution tax

29.65  -    -    29.65 

Derivative Contract  -    -    3.58  3.58 

 503.30  863.37  1,029.22  2,395.89 

As at March 31, 2018
Borrowings  209.46  873.38  911.59  1,994.43 

Trade payables  59.75  -    -    59.75 

Other financial liabilities  900.47  -    -    900.47 

Preference share capital including redemption 
premium

 -    127.96  224.53  352.49 

Preference dividend payable including 
dividend distribution tax

 28.11  -    -    28.11 

Derivative Contract  -    -    0.09  0.09 

 1,197.79  1,001.34  1,136.21  3,335.34 
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41 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Consequent to the requirement of section 135 of The Companies Act 2013, the company has contributed ` 2.96 crores 
(previous year: ` 3.67  crores) to Great Eastern CSR Foundation and ` NIL crores (previous year: ` 1.73 crores) to NGOs 
towards CSR expenditure:

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year.  2.96  5.40 

(b) Amount spent in cash for purposes other than for construction / acquisition of 
any asset during the year

 2.96  5.40 

The areas of CSR activities as specified under Schedule III of The Companies Act 2013 are 

1. Promoting education and knowledge enhancement, including but not limited to:

a.  Establishment and management of educational and knowledge enhancement infrastructure.

b.  Provision of financial or other assistance to the needy and/or deserving students.

c.  Providing financial assistance to any Agency involved in education, knowledge enhancement and sports.

d.  Contribution to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are approved by the Central Government.

2. Eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition.

3. Promoting health care and sanitation.

42 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged only in offshore oilfield services segment and there are no separate reportable segments as per 
Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments” .

Revenue from Operations :	

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Revenue from customers outside India  -    11.57 

Revenue from customers within India  825.12  879.16 

Total  825.12  890.73 

Substantial assets of the company are vessels / rigs, which are not identifiable to any geographical location. In view of this, 
geographical segment wise reporting is not applicable.
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43 Operating Lease

Operating Lease Commitments - where the company is a lessee

The Company had taken four rigs on operating lease for periods ranging between 1 to 3 years which were bought in the 
previous year. Premises taken on leave & license basis which is similar in substance to an operating lease are also included 
in the leasing arrangements here under:

Particulars

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

a) Total Future Minimum Lease payments

-   Not later than 1 year  6.99  8.40 

-   Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  4.15  12.27 

b) Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period.  8.96  81.82 

Vessels taken/given on time charter hire are not considered as operating lease.

44 Government Grants

The Company receives government assistance in the form of Served from India Scheme (SFIS) , which are issued to eligible 
Indian service providers having free foreign exchange earnings. It can be utilised for duty-free imports of office & professional 
equipment, spares, furniture and consumables or any other items notified by the Government from time to time.

Following are the balances of SFIS  license held by the Company :

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Balance at the beginning of the year  8.57  1.60 

Licenses received during the year  -    10.78 

Licenses expired during the year  (0.14)

Licenses utilised during the year  (6.12)  (3.67)

Balance at the end of the year  2.45  8.57 

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the above government grants.
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45 Contingent Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

i) Service Tax  418.38  304.23 

Demand pertains to jurisdictional applicability on charter hire, excess utilisation 
of CENVAT Credit, supply of fuel / diesel by the charterers* and non-payment 
of service tax under reverse charge mechanism# on various input services 
received from foreign vendors. 

ii) Customs duty
Demand pertains to wrong classification of Marine Gas Oil/HFHSD and vessels 
imported.

 14.88 14.88

iii) Value Added Tax (‘VAT’) / Central Sales Tax (‘CST’)	
Demand pertains to levy of Maharashtra VAT / CST on Time charter hire of 
Rigs / vessels considering the same to be a ‘deemed sale’ transaction.	

135.14 69.29

iv) Demand for Income tax disputed by the Company.  22.92 22.77

Amounts pertaining to points above are excluding interest and penalty.

* Service tax authorities had issued Show Cause Notices as to why service tax is not payable on value of fuel provided 
by Customers as per the terms of various service contracts. The service tax authorities have issued an Order-in-Original 
confirming service tax demand in part.

# Service tax authorities had issued Show Cause Notices as to why service tax under Reverse Charge Mechanism is not 
payable on payment made to foreign vendors towards Bareboat Charter of rigs and certain other services. The service tax 
authorities have issued an Order-in-Original confirming entire service tax demand for the period from FY 2008-09 to FY 
2014-15. Follow-up Show Cause Notice is issued for the period October 2015 to June 2017.

In both the above matters, appeal has been filed against the said orders before the appropriate Appellate Authorities.

Notes :				  

I)	 It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending 
resolution of the respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with 
various forums / authorities.			 

II)   The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims pertaining to proceedings pending with Income Tax, Custom, 
Sales Tax / VAT, Service Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings 
and has adequately provided for where provisions were required or disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, 
in its financial statements. Considering the merits of cases under dispute, the Company expects that the possibility of 
demands getting confirmed is remote.	

46 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts, net of advances paid thereon, remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for ` 14.72 crores (previous year ` 0.11 crores).
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47	M ERGER OF GREATSHIP GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (GGHL), WITH THE COMPANY

			   During the year, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) had approved the scheme of Amalgamation (“The Scheme”) 
between the Company and  Greatship Global Holdings Limited (GGHL), Mauritius, a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company. The Scheme became effective from September 1, 2018 on completion of all regulatory formalities. In accordance 
with the IND AS 103 - Business Combination - Appendix C, the financial statements of the Company for the previous 
financial year 2017-2018 have been restated with effect from April 1, 2017, being the earliest period presented, as under: 

•  	 all assets and liabilities of GGHL are added at their respective carrying amounts in the same form;

• 	 the balance of profit and loss account of the GGHL has been added to the balance of profit and loss account of the 
Company after eliminating effect of the transaction between GGHL and the Company;

• 	 all outstanding balances/ other obligations between GGHL and the Company have been cancelled;

• 	 the amount of stated capital of GGHL and investment held by the Company have been adjusted against each other;

• 	 the identity and nature of reserves, maintained by GGHL have remain unchanged, and have been continued in the same 
form and at the same values as they appeared in the financial statements of GGHL; 

• 	 the resultant excess from the above, has been presented as Capital Reserve; 

• 	 consequential adjustments including current tax adjustments, as considered necessary have been made.

The details of the assets and liabilities of GGHL transferred to the Company as on April 1, 2017 as per the Scheme are 
detailed as below:

Particulars ` in Crores
Investment - Non-current 461.09

Other financial assets 1032.04

Current assets 2.63

Current liabilities  (1.74)

Total net assets acquired A 1494.02

Retained earning acquired B 53.04

Investments in GGHL appearing in the financial statements of the Company C 954.61

Capital reserve A-B-C 486.37

The impact of scheme on the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 are 
detailed as below:			 

Particulars ` in Crores
Net Loss after tax before merger  (14.86)

Less : Impairment of investment in GGOS  (35.99)

Add : Reversal of impairment of investment in GGES  31.90 

Add : Exchange difference reversed on elimination of inter company outstanding balance  5.17 

Less : Other eliminations  (2.28)

Net Loss after tax post merger  (16.06)

48	 The particulars of guarantees and investments covered under section 186 of The Companies Act 2013 are disclosed under 
Note 9 and Note 39 respectively. 

49	 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

			   There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements.
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STATEMENT PERTAINING TO SUBSIDIARIES
Form AOC - 1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCATE 
COMPANIES / JOINT VENTURES

PART ‘A’: SUBSIDIARIES
(` in Crores)

Sr.
No. Name of the Subsidiary

Greatship Global 
Offshore 

Services Pte. 
Ltd.

Greatship Global 
Energy Services 

Pte. Ltd.

Greatship (UK) 
Limited

Greatship 
Oilfield Services 

Limited

1 Date from which it became a subsidairy 08 May 2007 23 October 2006 29 October 2010 09 July 2015
2 Reporting Period 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
3 Reporting currency  USD  USD  USD  INR 
4 Exchange Rate as on 31.03.2019 ` 69.15 ` 69.15 ` 69.15 NA
5 Share Capital  491.38  34.58  3.46  0.26 
6 Reserves & Surplus  (45.21)  66.50  2.91  (0.05)
7 Total Assets  462.91  115.25  29.09  0.21 
8 Total Liabilities  16.75  14.17  22.71  0 # 

9 Investments (Excludes investment in 
subsidiaries)

 -  -  -  -   

10 Turnover  74.25  74.75  -    -   
11 Profit/(Loss) before taxation  (4.86)  71.28  16.89  (0.01)
12 Provision for taxation  -    12.54  3.60  -   
13 Profit/(Loss) after taxation  (4.86)  58.74  13.28  (0.01)
14 Proposed Dividend - Equity  -    -    -    -   
15 % of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100%

# Amount less than ` 1 lakh
Notes:
1. During the year, Company’s wholly owned subsidiary in Mauritius - Greatship Global Holdings Limited, merged with the Company under the 

Scheme of Amalgamation which has become operative from September 1, 2018 with the appointed date under the Scheme being April 1, 
2017. 

2. During the year, Greatship Oilfield Services Limited has been exploring possible business opportunities to commence operations
3. Figures include foreign currency translation adjustment.

PART ‘B’ : ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES - NOT APPLICABLE

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director
(DIN : 00022121)

P R Naware
Executive Director
(DIN: 00041519)

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha Ghia
Company Secretary
(M. No. A18247)

Mumbai, May 2, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GREATSHIP (INDIA) LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Greatship (India) Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the 
Parent and its subsidiaries  together  referred  to  as “the  Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, 
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports 
of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31 2019, and their consolidated loss,their consolidated total comprehensive income, 
their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent  of  the  Group in  accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics  
issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the  Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us 
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters section below,is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Key Performance Indicators, Management Statement and Board’s Report including annexures to the Board’s Reportdoes 
not include the standalone financial statements, consolidated financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, compare with the 
financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by other auditors to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance 
on the work of the other auditors and, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information 
so far as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditors. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance 
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including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equityof the Group in accordance with the 
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for  maintenance of  adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds  and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of  appropriate 
accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible 
for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

•			   Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•			   Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section  143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent 
Company and its subsidiary company which is company incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•			E   valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the management.

•			   Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

•			E   valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.
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•			   Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within the Group to express an opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.For 
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible 
for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors 

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of 3 subsidiaries, whose financial statements / financial information reflect 
total assets of ` 607.25 crore as at March 31, 2019, total revenues of ` 181.57 crore and net cash inflows amounting to ` 2.03 crore 
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements / financial information 
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms 
of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.		  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the 
separate financial statements/financial information of subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the 
extent applicable that:

a)		  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

b)		  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c)		  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d)		  In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  consolidated  financial  statements  comply  with  the  Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 
Act. 
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e)		  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies 
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act.

f)			  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of  such  
controls,  refer  to  our  separate  Report  in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and its subsidiary 
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

g)		  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) 
of the Act, as amended:

			   In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)		  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

i)			  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of 
the Group.

ii)		  Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards,  for  material  foreseeable  losses,  if  any,  on  long-term  contracts  including derivative contracts. 

iii)		  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent, 
and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 			 
Chartered Accountants						   
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Samir R. Shah				  
Partner				   			 
(Membership No. 101708)

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 2, 2019
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ANNEXURE ‘A’
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Greatship (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Parent Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India,as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in 
India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 
respective Company’spolicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent Company and 
its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India,based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent Company and its subsidiary company, which are 
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
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necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In  our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent Company and its 
subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 			 
Chartered Accountants						   
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Samir R. Shah				  
Partner				   			 
(Membership No. 101708)

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 2, 2019
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Particulars Notes
As at  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 9  4,081.41  4,266.07 
(b) Capital work-in-progress  0.75  5.84 
(c) Intangible assets 10  0.13  0.23 
(d) Financial assets

    (i) Deposits with bank 11  2.59  -   
    (i) Other non-current financial assets 12  15.96  31.94 

(e) Non-current tax assets (net) 13C  32.10  30.66 
(f) Other non-current assets 14  22.35  5.35 

 4,155.29  4,340.09 
2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 15  82.52  79.73 
(b) Financial assets

    (i) Current investments 16  71.33  33.24 
    (ii) Trade receivables 17  101.17  93.28 
    (iii)  Cash and cash equivalents 18  594.86  564.83 
    (iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 19  461.59  447.33 
    (v)  Other current financial assets 20  65.33  65.68 

(c) Other current assets 21  24.66  22.06 
 1,401.46  1,306.15 

TOTAL ASSETS  5,556.75  5,646.24  
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 22  111.35  111.35 
(b) Other equity 23  2,783.74  2,739.95 

 2,895.09  2,851.30 
LIABILITIES

1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

    (i) Long term borrowings 24  1,889.01  2,137.46 
    (ii) Other non-current financial liabilities 25  3.58  0.09 

(b) Provisions 26A  11.80  11.82 
(c) Deferred tax liability (net) 13D  179.86  207.75 
(d) Other non-current liabilities 27  22.71  22.86 

 2,106.96  2,379.98 
2 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
    (i) Trade payables 28

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  5.39  3.90 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  88.25  94.76 

    (ii) Other current financial liabilities 29  432.94  285.50 
(b) Other current liabilities 30  11.09  17.16 
(c) Provisions 26B  0.75  0.82 
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 13C  16.28  12.82 

 554.70  414.96 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  5,556.75   5,646.24 

Significant accounting policies 7
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2019

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date 

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019
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Consolidated statement of profit and loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Particulars Notes
Year Ended  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Income
I Revenue from operations 31  891.68  973.38 
II Other income 32  64.34  22.29 
III Total income  956.02  995.67 

IV Expenses
Employee benefits expense 33  242.17  238.06 
Finance costs 34  185.34  152.31 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 35  263.19  277.17 
Impairment loss 36  9.39  206.39 
Other expenses 37  213.39  215.73 
Total expenses  913.48  1,089.66 

V Profit /(Loss) before tax  42.54  (93.99)

VI Tax Expense
Current tax 13A  54.23  72.39 
Deferred tax (net) 13A  (3.81)  210.00 
Total tax expense  50.42  282.39 

VII Profit / (Loss) for the year  (7.88)  (376.38)

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  0.47  2.96 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss  (0.14)  (0.94)

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
- Exchange difference on transalation of foreign operations  44.47  (7.95)

 - The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge  (17.38)  20.35 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss   

- Exchange difference on transalation of foreign operations  19.02  -   
- The effective portion of gains and loss on hedging instruments in a cash 

flow hedge
 5.23  (8.00)

Total other comprehensive income (A+B)  51.67  6.42 

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII)  43.79  (369.96)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to :

- Owners of the Company  43.79  (369.96)
- Non controlling interests  -    -   

 43.79  (369.96)
Significant accounting policies 7

 Earnings per equity share
[ Nominal value per share ` 10 : previous year ` 10 ]
Basic and Diluted 38  (0.71)  (33.80)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date 

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
for the year ended on 31st March, 2019

Particulars	

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Profit before tax:  42.54  (93.99)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  263.19  277.17 
Impairment loss on tangible assets  9.39  206.39 
Finance costs  185.34  152.31 
Profit on sale of other assets  (0.40)  (0.02)
Reversal of doubtful debt / other provisions of earlier years  (32.35)  10.81 
Interest income  (25.27)  (14.18)
Dividend on current investments  (1.06)  (1.92)
Profit on sale of current investments  (0.15)  (0.04)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency balances  63.18  (25.16)
Loss on derivatives transactions (net)  1.83  -   

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes :  506.24  511.37 

Adjustments for working capital changes
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories  (2.63)  4.63 
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables  2.90  91.02 
(Increase) / Decrease  in other financial assets and other current assets  (16.45)  (71.93)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables  10.12  (11.08)
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities, provisions and other current liabilities  (28.83)  1.33 

Cash Generated From Operations :  471.35  525.34 
Taxes paid  (52.23)  (79.76)
Net Cash From Operating Activities :  419.12  445.58 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment  (44.74)  (61.44)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment  0.82  0.04 
Proceeds from sale of current investments  296.02  304.81 
Purchase of current investments  (333.96)  (329.32)
Interest received  24.01  14.61 
Dividend received on current investment  1.06  1.92 
Deposits in margin account placed with banks  -    (3.91)
Deposits in margin account redeemed with banks  -    21.62 
Bank deposits having original maturity more than three months placed with banks  (1,052.55)  (726.26)
Bank deposits having original maturity more than three months redeemed with banks  1,040.76  687.85 

Net Cash From (Used In) Investing Activities :  (68.58)  (90.08)
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Particulars	

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Cash Flow From Financing Activities  :

Proceeds from long term borrowings  -    1,590.36 

Repayment of long term borrowings  (227.20)  (1,968.14)

Interest paid  (91.37)  (143.12)

Dividend paid  (24.33)  (23.32)

Proceeds from short term borrowings  913.87  -   

Repayment of short term borrowings  (913.87)  -   

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities :  (342.90)  (544.22)

Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents :  7.64  (188.72)

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at April 1, 2018  564.83  741.15 

Gain on exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents  22.39  12.40 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March 31, 2019  594.86  564.83 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our Report attached hereto For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

` in Crores

Particulars As at  
March 

31, 2019

Cash 
flows 
(net)

Non-cash changes As at  
March 

31, 2018
Fair 

value 
changes

Foreign 
exchange 

movement

Acquisition Amortised 
cost to 

Profit and 
Loss (net)

Foreign currency term loans from banks 1,899.31  (227.20)  -   125.33  -   6.75 1,994.43 

Redeemable cumulative Preference shares capital 353.51  -    -    -    -    1.02  352.49 

Total liabilities from financing activities 2,252.82 (227.20)  -   125.33  -   7.77 2,346.92 

Note :
1 The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of 

Cash Flows’.
2 Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date 

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

B OTHER EQUITY

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income

Total

Capital 
Reserve 

Capital Re-
demption 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Tonnage 
Tax 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve

Cash flow 
Hedging 
Reserve

Balance as at  
April 1, 2018

 2.95  43.50 1,155.13  82.35  145.50  647.25  641.59  21.68 2,739.95 

Loss for the year  -    -    -    -    -    (7.88)  -    -    (7.88)

Other comprehensive 
income for the year, net 
of income tax

 -    -    -    -    -    0.33  63.49  (12.15)  51.67 

Transfer from tonnage 
tax reserve to general 
reserve

 -    -    -    -    -   -  -    -    -   

Transfer from retained 
earnings to tonnage tax 
reserve

 -    -    -    -    0.50  (0.50)  -    -    -   

Balance as at  
March 31, 2019

 2.95  43.50 1,155.13  82.35  146.00  639.20  705.08  9.53 2,783.74 

` in Crores

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance as at April 1, 2018 Changes in equity share capital 
during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2019

 111.35  -  111.35 

Balance as at April 1, 2017 Changes in equity share capital 
during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2018

 111.35  -  111.35 
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Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income

Total

Capital 
Reserve 

Capital Re-
demption 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Tonnage 
Tax 

Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve

Cash flow 
Hedging 
Reserve

Balance as at  
April 1, 2017

 2.95  43.50 1,155.13  40.35  187.00  989.79  680.25  9.33 3,108.30 

Loss for the year  -    -    -    -    -    (376.38)  -    -    (376.38)

Other comprehensive 
income for the year, 
net of income tax

 -    -    -    -    -    2.02  (7.95)  12.35  6.42 

Pursuant to scheme of 
amalgmation

 -    -    -    -    -    32.32  (30.71)  -    1.61 

Transfer from tonnage 
tax reserve to general 
reserve

 -    -    -    42.00  (42.00)  -    -    -    -   

Transfer from retained 
earnings to tonnage tax 
reserve

 -    -    -    -    -    (0.50)  -    -    -   

Balance as at  
March 31, 2018

 2.95  43.50 1,155.13  82.35  145.50  647.25  641.59  21.68 2,739.95 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W / W100018)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Samir R. Shah
Partner
(Membership No.: 101708)

Ravi K. Sheth
Managing Director

P.R. Naware
Executive Director

G. Shivakumar
Chief Financial Officer

Amisha M. Ghia
Company Secretary

Place 
Date

:
:

Mumbai
May 2, 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

1 	 Background

			G   reatship (India) Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated in the year 2002 
under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956. Greatship (India) Limited, the holding company and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) is engaged in providing offshore oilfield services with the principal 
activity of offshore logistics and drilling services. The Group presently owns and operates 4 Platform Supply Vessels 
(PSVs), 8 Anchor Handling Tug cum Supply Vessels (AHTSVs), 2 Multipurpose Platform Supply and Support Vessels 
(MPSSVs) and 5 Remotely Operated Vehicle Support Vessels (ROVSVs) in the Indian and International markets. The Group 
also owns and operates 4 Jack up Drilling Rigs. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities 
during the financial year. The company is a subsidiary of The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited (GESCO) which is 
listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE), Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and at the Luxemburg Stock Exchange. 

			   The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2019 were approved for issue in accordance 
with the resolution of the Board of Directors on May 2, 2019.	

2 		  Statement of Compliance with IND AS

			   The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules amended from 
time to time.	

3 		  Basis of Preparation

			   The consolidated financial Statements have been prepared on the going concern and historical cost basis except for certain 
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

4 		  Basis of Consolidation

			   The consolidated financial statements relate to Greatship (India) Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”.			 

			   The consolidation of accounts of the Company with its subsidiaries has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110 
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the 
Company and its subsidiaries.								     

			   Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company 
loses control of the subsidiary. The Company establishes control when; it has power over the entity, is exposed, or has 
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns by 
using its power over the entity.								      

			   The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries are combined on a line by line basis and intra group balances, 
intra group transactions and intra group unrealised profits or losses are fully eliminated.			 

			   In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rates of exchange prevailing during the period. 
All assets and liabilities are converted at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the period. Exchange gain / (loss) arising 
on conversion are recognised under foreign currency translation reserve in the consolidated balance sheet and under other 
comprehensive income under the Statement of Profit and Loss Account.						    
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			   Changes in the Company’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Company’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect 
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed 
to owners of the Company.								     

			   The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the 
Company i.e. March 31, 2019.								     

5 		  Information on subsidiaries

			   The subsidiary companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are;

Sr.
No.

Name of the Company
Country of 

Incorporation

Percentage of voting power

Current Year Previous Year

1. Greatship Global Energy Services Pte. Ltd. (“GGES”) 
(subsidiary of GGHL up to March 28, 2017 and direct  
subsidiary of the Company thereafter)
(incorporated on October 23, 2006)

Singapore 100% 100%

2. Greatship Global Offshore Services Pte. Ltd. (“GGOS”) 
(subsidiary of GGHL up to April 1, 2017 and direct  
subsidiary of the Company thereafter)
(incorporated on May 08, 2007)

Singapore 100% 100%

3. Greatship (UK) Ltd. (“GUK”)
(incorporated on October 29, 2010)

UK 100% 100%

4. Greatship Oilfield Services Ltd., (“GOSL”)
(Incorporated on July 9, 2015)

India 100% 100%

6 	U se of Estimates 										        

			   The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of 
Ind AS requires management of the Group to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods 
which are affected.								     

			   Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of property, plant and 
equipment, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, provision and contingent liabilities.

			   Impairment of property, plant and equipment									      

			   Determining whether a support vessel or a rig is impaired requires an estimation of value in use and fair value less cost of 
disposal. The key estimates made in the value in use calculation are those regarding discount rates, revenue and operating 
profit growth rates. The discount rate is estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time 
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value of money. The fair values are estimated based on valuations provided by independent valuers considering latest 
transactions of similar assets.

			   Useful lives of property, plant and equipment										       

			   Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each year end based on the best available information. The 
lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events.

			   Provisions and Contingent Liabilities										       

			   The Group is a party to certain legal disputes, the outcomes of which cannot be assessed with a high degree of certainty. A 
provision is recognised where, based on the legal views and advice, it is considered probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle a present obligation that can be measured reliably. Disclosure of contingent liabilities is made in 
Note 45 unless the possibility of a loss arising is considered remote. Management applies its judgement in determining 
whether or not a provision or contingent liability should be recorded.

7 	 Significant Accounting Policies

(a)		 Property, Plant & Equipment :										        

			   Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenses related to acquisition, installation of the concerned assets and 
any attributable cost of bringing the asset to the condition of its intended use. Borrowing costs attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset is also capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.  

			   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.	

(b)		 Intangible Assets :

			   Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition measured at difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c)		N on-current assets held for sale :										       

			   Non-Current Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  A non current asset is classified as such only when the asset is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such 
asset and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify 
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.  

			   Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost 
to sell.  

(d)		D epreciation and Amortisation										       

			   Depreciation is provided on straight line method, prorata to the period of use, so as to write off the original cost of 
the asset less its estimated residual value over the estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted on a prospective basis.
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			   Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Particulars Estimated useful life
Property, Plant & Equipment
Fleet – Offshore Supply Vessels 20 years

Modern Rigs 30 years

Furniture and Fixtures, Office Equipment # 5 years

Computers 3 years

Vehicles # 4 years

Plant and Equipment # 3 to 10 years

Network Servers 6 years

Mobile Phones # 2 years

Leasehold improvements Lease period

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets – Software licenses 5 years

			   Cost relating to Dry dock (special survey) which is mandatorily required to be carried out every five years as per the 
Classification Rules and Regulations is recognised in the carrying amount of the Fleet and Rig as a  component and is 
depreciated over the period from the completion of survey till the estimated date for next special survey.

			   # For these class of assets, based on internal technical assessment, the Management believes that the useful lives as 
given above best represents the period over which the Management expects the use of the assets. Hence, the useful 
lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013.	

(e)		 Impairment :								      

			   The carrying amounts of the Group’s intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the 
asset’s recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment 
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The impairment loss, if any, is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which impairment takes place.    

			R   ecoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted.								     

			   Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate 
of its recoverable amount, however subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior accounting periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.		

(f)		 Inventories  :										        

			   Inventories of fuel oil on vessels and rigs, stores and spares on rigs and at warehouse are carried at lower of cost and 
net realizable value. Stores and spares delivered on board the vessels are charged to revenue. Stores and spares of Rigs 



annual report 2018-19

are charged to revenue on consumption basis. Cost is ascertained on first-in-first-out basis for fuel oil and on weighted 
average basis for stores and spares on Rigs. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories 
less all costs necessary to make the sale.

(g)		 Financial Instruments :	

			   Initial Recognition

			   Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instruments.

			   Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.	

			   Subsequent measurement

			   Financial Assets

			   All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, 
depending on the classification of the financial assets. The purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at 
trade date.	

			   Cash and Cash Equivalents

			   Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid financial 
instruments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change 
in value and having original maturities of three months or less.

			   Fixed deposit having residual maturity more than three months but less than twelve month from the reporting period 
is considered as part of bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents. Fixed deposit with residual maturity more 
than twelve months from reporting period is classified under non-current financial assets.

			   Financial Assets at amortised cost

			   Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.   

			   Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included under the head “Other 
Income”.	

			   Financial Assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

			   On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present 
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. 
This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially 
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for 
equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or 
loss on disposal of the investments.	

			   The Group has not elected to present the changes in fair value of any equity instruments in other comprehensive 
income.	
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			   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

			   Financials Assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair 

value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.  The transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss.								      

			   Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition 

to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments 

which are not held for trading.								     

			   Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising 

on re-measurement recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

			   Impairment of financial assets								     

			   The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at 

amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset and financial 

guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.								     

			   For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset, the Group always measures the 

loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.					   

			   Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance for trade receivables, the Group 

has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based 

on an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses following a simplified approach.

			   For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there 

has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 

12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL 

is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Group again measures impairment loss allowance for necessary 

reversal based on 12-month ECL.								     

			   Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 

instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 

12 months after the reporting date.	

			D   erecognition of financial assets								      

			   The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when 

it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

			   Financial liabilities and equity instruments								    
			   Classification as debt or equity								     

			   Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance 

with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity 

instrument.	
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			   Equity instruments								      

			   An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

			   Financial liabilities								     

			   All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

			   Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at 
FVTPL.								      

			   Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at 
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part 
of costs of an asset is included in ‘Finance costs’.								    

	 		  Financial guarantee contracts

			   A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder 
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument.

			   Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at 
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

			   •  the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of IND AS 109; and

			  •  the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance 
with the principles of Ind AS 18.

			D   erecognition of financial liabilities								      

			   The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or have expired. A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable 
to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the 
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised 
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   Effective interest method								      

			   The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

			   Offsetting financial instruments								      

			   Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must 
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or 
the counterparty.	
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			D   erivative financial instruments								     

			   The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments like foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate 
collars and interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks. Further details 
of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 40.

			   Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in 
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the 
nature of the hedged item.	

			H   edge accounting								     

			   The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of foreign 
currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations. Hedges 
of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

			   At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and 
the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. 
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging 
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the 
hedged risk. Note 40 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

			   Fair value hedges								     

			   Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability 
that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument 
and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the line item relating to the hedged item.								      

			   Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it 
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising 
from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

			   Cash flow hedges								      

			   The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain 
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, and is included 
under the head “Gain / Loss on foreign derivatives transactions (net)”.					   

			   Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to (effective portion 
as described above) are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects 
profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results 
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are transferred from equity 
(but not as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset 
or non-financial liability.						    

			   In cases where the designated hedging instruments are options and forward contracts, the Group has an option, for 
each designation, to designate on an instrument only the changes in intrinsic value of the options and spot element of 
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forward contracts respectively as hedges. In such cases, the time value of the options is accounted based on the type 
of hedged item which those options hedge.							    

			   In case of transaction related hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised in 
other comprehensive income to the extent it relates to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component of 
equity i.e. Reserve for time value of options and forward elements of forward contracts in hedging relationship. This 
separate component is removed and directly included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or the 
liability (i.e. not as a reclassification adjustment thus not affecting other comprehensive income) if the hedged item 
subsequently results in recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability. In other cases, the amount 
accumulated is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period in 
which the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.	

			   In case of time-period related hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised 
in other comprehensive income to the extent it relates to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component 
of equity i.e. Reserve for time value of options and forward elements of forward contracts in hedging relationship. The 
time value of options at the date of designation of the options in the hedging relationships is amortised on a systematic 
and rational basis over the period during which the options’ intrinsic value could affect profit or loss. This is done as a 
reclassification adjustment and hence affects other comprehensive income.

			   In cases where only the spot element of the forward contracts is designated in a hedging relationship and the forward 
element of the forward contract is not designated, the Group makes the choice for each designation whether to 
recognise the changes in forward element of fair value of the forward contracts in the Statement of Profit and Loss or 
to account for this element similar to the time value of an option (as described above).

			   Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it 
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated 
in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.	

			H   edges of net investments in foreign operations

			   Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on 
the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective 
portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, and is included under the head “Gain / Loss on 
foreign currency transactions (net)”.	

			G   ains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in the foreign 
currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

(h)		R evenue Recognition:

			   The Company earns revenue primarily from oil drilling and offshore support services performed by deploying rigs and 
support vessels under contracts with customers. Revenue from oil drilling services is earned on performance of activity 
which are paid on a day rate basis over the period of the contract as and when specified services are rendered, which 
may vary depending upon the nature of operations of rigs during the day. Such daytime consideration is attributed to 
the distinct time period to which it relates within the contract term, and therefore, is recognised as the services are 
performed. Revenue from offshore support services is earned on a day rate basis as per the terms of the contract and 
is recognised accordingly. 
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			   Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled as per in contract with 
a customer. The consideration is determined based on the price specified in the contract, net of liquidated damages, 
offhire and downtime rebates.

			R   evenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. A receivable is recognised on a monthly basis when invoices are raised as per the terms 
of the contract, and therefore, no additional disclosure is given for remaining performance obligation as per practical 
expedient under the standard. Revenue in excess of invoicing is classified as contract assets (unbilled revenue).

Revenue excludes any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which are levied on such services such 
as goods and services tax.

(i)		 Leases:			 

Operating Lease	
			   Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset vest with the lessor, are 

recognised as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term 
in the statement of profit and loss, unless the lease agreement explicitly provides for future increases to compensate 
general inflation.	

(j)		 Employee Benefits:

			   Short-Term Employee Benefits 

			   All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee 
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, performance incentives, etc., are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted 
amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the employee renders the related service.

			   Post- Employment Benefits

			   Liability is provided for retirement benefits of Provident Fund, Superannuation, Gratuity and Leave Encashment in 
respect of all eligible employees and for pension benefit to Managing Director of the Company.

			   i. 	 Defined Contribution Plans

		E  mployee benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund and other Seamen’s Welfare Contributions 
are considered as defined contribution plans and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss 
of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due.  

ii. 	Defined Benefit Plan

		R  etirement benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as a defined benefit obligation. The Group’s liability in 
respect of gratuity is provided for, on the basis of actuarial valuations, using the projected unit credit method, as at 
the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial losses / gains are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.  	

Other Long Term Benefits 

			   Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months from the year 
end are treated as short term employee benefits. The expected cost of such absences is measured as the additional 
amount that is expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlements as at the reporting date.

			   Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond twelve months from the 
year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Group’s liability is actuarially determined using the 
projected unit credit method at the end of each year. Actuarial gains / losses, comprising of experience adjustments 
and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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			   Employee share based payments

			E   quity settled stock options granted under the Company’s Employee stock option (ESOP) schemes are accounted 
as per the accounting treatment prescribed by SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share based payments issued by ICAI. 
Consequent to the introduction of the encashment scheme, the liability in respect of outstanding options is measured 
at fair value as per the scheme and the difference in the fair value and the exercise price is amortized over the vesting 
period as employee compensation with a credit to provisions.	

(k)		 Borrowing Costs:

			   Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are added to the 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing 
costs are recognised in the period in which they are incurred.	

(l)		 Foreign currency translation:

			   The functional currency of the Group is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which it 
operates. The functional currency of the Holding Company is Indian National Rupee (INR). The transactions in currencies 
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items 
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

			E   xchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they 
arise except for:	

• 		exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, 
which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs on those 
foreign currency borrowings;

• 		exchange difference arising on settlement / restatement of long-term foreign currency monetary items recognized 
in the financial statements upto March 31, 2016 prepared under previous GAAP, are capitalized as a part of the 
depreciable fixed assets to which the monetary item relates and depreciated over the remaining useful life of such 
assets. 

• 		exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (refer hedging 
accounting policies);	

• 		exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is 
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are 
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the 
monetary items; and

• 		on complete disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is 
reclassified to Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss.

(m) 	Income taxes:

			   Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.	

			   Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with the 
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Income from shipping activities is assessed on the 
basis of deemed tonnage income of the Group.	
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			   Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised 
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amount.

			   Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

			   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and laws, enacted or substantively enacted as of the 
balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is 
recognised as an income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date. Deferred 
income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries where it is expected that the earnings 
of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

			   Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

			   Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they are relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

			   Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form 
of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Group will 
pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that 
future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Group.

(n)		 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :

			   Provisions are recognised in the consolidated financial statement in respect of present probable obligations (legal or 
constructive) as a result of past events if it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and which 
can be reliably estimated.								     

			   Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote. 
Contingent assets are disclosed where inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(o)		 Earnings per share:

			   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events, such as bonus issue, bonus element in 
a rights issue and shares split that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding 
change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.	

(p)		G overnment Grant:

			G   overnment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions 
attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the 
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grants are intended to compensate. Government grants used to acquire non current asset are recognized as deferred 
revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful 
lives of the related assets.

8 		R  ecent Accounting Developments

			   Amendments to Ind AS that are notified and adopted by the Group :

			   The company has applied the following Ind AS pronouncements pursuant to issuance of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018. The effect is described below:

a. 		 The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers with effect from April 1, 2018, which 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised 
and it is detailed in note 7(h). 

b. 		 The Company has elected to recognize cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 retrospectively as an adjustment 
to opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 on the contracts that are not completed contract as at that date and impact 
on implementation of above on the opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 and on the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2019 is immaterial.

c. 		 The Company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration with 
effect from April 1, 2018 prospectively to all assets, expenses and income initially recognized on or after April 1, 2018 
and the impact on implementation of the Appendix is immaterial.

			   Standards issued but not yet effective :

			   In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying new standards 
and amendments to certain issued standards to bring Ind AS in line with recent amendments made by International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These amendments are applicable to the Company from April 1, 2019. The Company 
will be adopting the below stated new standards and applicable amendments from their respective effective date.

The new standard and relevant amendment effective from April 1, 2019 are as under:

a. 		 Ind AS 116, Leases: 

			   Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17, Leases. Under Ind AS 116, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments 
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., 
the right of use asset) at the commencement date of lease. Lessees will be required to separately recognise interest 
expense on the lease liability and depreciation expense on the right of use asset. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 
remains substantially unchanged from accounting under Ind AS 17. There is a choice on transition to either apply 
the standard retrospectively  to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of 
initially applying the standard recoginsed at the date of initial application. 

b. 		 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes:

			   The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which 
is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax 
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, 
companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of 
tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to 
compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), 
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The Appendix will be applied retrospectively with the 
cumulative effect of its initial application on the opening balance sheet as on April 1, 2019.

			   Applicability and impact, if any, of the above are being evaluated by the Management.
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9 Property, Plant and Equipment

` in Crores

Description Fleet Rigs Leasehold 
Improvements

Plant & 
equipment

Furniture 
& fixtures Vehicles Office 

equipment Computers Total

Gross block
Balance as at April 1, 2018  2,675.92  3,230.82  5.30  55.03  1.98  8.46  2.14  4.40  5,984.05 
Additions  47.64  -    -    0.54  -    1.14  -    0.27  49.59 

Disposals  (32.83)  -    -    (1.17)  -    (1.14)  -    -    (35.14)

Effect of foreign currency differences  21.90  -    -    -    -    -    -    21.90 

Translation exchange difference  29.75  -    -    -    0.06  -    -    0.01  29.82 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  2,742.38  3,230.82  5.30  54.40  2.04  8.46  2.14  4.68  6,050.22 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at April 1, 2018  824.95  385.01  5.30  20.20  1.91  6.99  2.02  4.02  1,250.40 
Depreciation for the year  129.43  124.91  -    7.33  0.02  1.18  0.05  0.18  263.10 

Disposals  (33.39)  -    -    (0.79)  -    (1.10)  -    -    (35.28)

Effect of foreign currency differences  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Translation exchange difference  7.43  -    -    -    0.05  -    -    0.01  7.49 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  928.42  509.92  5.30  26.74  1.98  7.07  2.07  4.21  1,485.71 

Impairment

Balance as at April 1, 2018
 467.58  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    467.58 

Impairment loss for the year (refer 
note 36)

 9.39  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    9.39 

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Translation exchange difference  6.13  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    6.13 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  483.10  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    483.10 

Net Carrying amount as at  
March 31, 2019

1330.86 2720.90  -   27.66 0.06  1.39  0.07  0.47  4081.41 

Description Fleet Rigs Leasehold 
Improvements

Plant & 
equipment

Furniture 
& fixtures Vehicles Office 

equipment Computers Total

Gross block
Balance as at April 1, 2017  2,688.24  3,242.50  5.30  48.75  1.96  8.59  2.12  4.17  6,001.63 
Additions  37.34  10.57  -    6.43  0.02  0.26  0.02  0.23  54.87 

Disposals  (53.36)  (3.75)  -    -    -    (0.39)  -    -    (57.50)

Effect of foreign currency differences  1.39  (18.50)  -    (0.15)  -    -    -    -    (17.26)

Translation exchange difference  2.31  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    2.31 

Balance as at March 31, 2018  2,675.92  3,230.82  5.30  55.03  1.98  8.46  2.14  4.40  5,984.05 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at April 1, 2017  738.59  261.20  5.04  13.48  1.85  5.90  1.88  3.61  1,031.55 

Depreciation for the year  138.94  129.05  0.26  6.77  0.06  1.47  0.14  0.41  277.10 

Disposals  (53.36)  (3.75)  -    -    -    (0.38)  -    -    (57.49)

Effect of foreign currency 
differences

 -    (1.49)  -    (0.05)  -    -    -    -    (1.54)

Translation exchange difference  0.78  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    0.78 

Balance as at March 31, 2018  824.95  385.01  5.30  20.20  1.91  6.99  2.02  4.02  1,250.40 
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Description Fleet Rigs Leasehold 
Improvements

Plant & 
equipment

Furniture 
& fixtures Vehicles Office 

equipment Computers Total

Impairment 
Impairment as at April 1, 2017 260.34  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   260.34
Impairment loss for the year (refer 
note 36)

 206.39  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    206.39 

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Translation exchange difference  0.85  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    0.85 

Impairment as at March 31, 2018  467.58  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    467.58 

Net carrying amount as at  
March 31, 2018

 1,383.39  2,845.81  -    34.83  0.07  1.47  0.12  0.38  4,266.07 

Fleet and Rigs with carrying amount of ` 3,112.25 crores (previous year : ` 3,228.46 crores) have been mortgaged/hypothecated against borrowings, the 
details relating to which have been described in Note 24.

10 Intangible Asset
` in Crores

Description Computer 
Software

Gross block
Balance as at April 1, 2018  5.11 
Additions  -   
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2019  5.11 

Accumulated amortisation 
Balance as at April 1, 2018  4.89 
Amortisation for the year  0.09 
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2019  4.98 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019  0.13 

Description Computer 
Software

Gross block
Balance as at April 1, 2017 4.95
Additions  0.17 
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2018 5.12

Accumulated amortisation 
Balance as at April 1, 2017 4.82
Amortisation for the year  0.07 
Disposals  -   
Balance as at March 31, 2018 4.89
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 0.23
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11 Deposits with Bank

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Earmarked balances with bank*  2.59 -

 2.59 -
* Earmarked with customs

13 Income Taxes

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

A. Income tax expense comprise of the following :

Current tax  54.23  72.39 

Deferred tax  (3.81)  210.00 

 50.42  282.39 

B. The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows :
Profit before tax  42.54  (93.99)

Statutory income tax rate 34.94% 34.61%

Expected income tax expense  14.87  (32.53)

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to 
reported income tax expense :
Loss attributable to tonnage tax activity  31.30  66.19 

Income exempt from income tax  2.53  64.76 

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  27.52  189.22 

Tax on income at different rates  (8.32)  (10.17)

Impact of earlier years adjustments  (18.47)  -   

Others (net)  0.99  4.92 

Total income tax expense  50.42  282.39 

12 Other Non-Current Financial Assets

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits  1.54 1.52
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

- Foreign exchange gain on Interest rate swaps  14.42  30.42 

15.96 31.94



annual report 2018-19

D. Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:

 (` in Crores) 

Balance as at 
April 1, 2018 

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

Recognised 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Balance as at 
March 31, 2019

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment  (255.73)  (37.76)  19.02  (274.47)
Allowance for doubtful debts  (0.11)  0.11  -    -   
Defined benefit obligation  (0.94) -  (0.14)  (1.08)
MAT credit entitlement  60.00 -  -    60.00 
Fair value of hedging instruments in a 
cash flow hedge  (8.00) -  5.23  (2.77)

Unabsorbed depreciation  38.48  -    38.48 
Others  (2.98)  2.98  -    -   
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  (207.75)  3.81  24.11  (179.86)

Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018 are as follows :
 (` in Crores) 

Balance as at 
April 1, 2017

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss

Recognised 
in Other 

Comprehensive 
Income

Balance as at 
March 31, 2018 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment  10.89  (266.62)  -    (255.73)
Allowance for doubtful debts  0.20  (0.31)  -    (0.11)
Defined benefit obligation  0.09  (0.09)  (0.94)  (0.94)
MAT credit entitlement  -    60.00  -    60.00 
Fair value of hedging instruments in a 
cash flow hedge  -    -    (8.00)  (8.00)

Others  -    (2.98)  -    (2.98)
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)  11.18  (210.00)  (8.94)  (207.75)

Pursuant to the introduction of Section 115VA under the Income tax Act, 1961, the Group in India has opted for computation 
of its income from shipping activities under the Tonnage Tax Scheme. Thus, income from the business of operating ships 
is assessed on the basis of the Deemed Tonnage Income of the Group and no deferred tax is applicable to such income as 
there are no temporary differences.

Income from operation of vessels operating outside the limits of the port of Singapore is also exempt under section 13A 
of the Singapore Income tax act.

Deferred income tax are not provided on undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries amounting to `24.59 crores as it is 
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

C. Tax assets and liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Non current tax assets (net)  32.10  30.66 

Current tax liabilities (net)  16.28  12.82 
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15 Inventories

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Stores and spares  63.13  62.98 

Fuel Oil  19.39  16.75 

 82.52  79.73 

a. Inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value.

b. Inventories of stores and spares on rigs and fuel oil on vessels and rigs are recognised as expense on consumption, 
and stores and spares relating to vessels are recognised as expense when delivered on board the vessels. The cost of 
inventories recognised as an expense is ` 86.49 crores (previous year: ` 93.67 crores).

16 Current Investments

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Investments in mutual funds : Unquoted 71.33 33.24

(Valued at fair value through Profit and Loss)

71.33  33.24 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  71.33  33.24 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -    -   

17 Trade Receivables

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Unsecured

- Considered good  101.17  93.28 

- Considered doubtful  2.50  14.45 

 103.67  107.73 

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables  (2.50)  (14.45)

 101.17  93.28 

14 Other Non Current Assets

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits with Government Authorities  21.42  2.50 

Capital advances  0.93  2.85 

22.35 5.35
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Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoiced amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. 
Trade receivables are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted.	

Trade receivables are derived from revenue earned from customers having high credit quality and strong financials. In 
determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the company has used a practical expedient by computing the 
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on an amount equal to life time expected credit losses. 

The movement in expected credit loss during the year is as follows:

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Balances as at the beginning of the year  14.45  3.52 

Add: Current year allowance  1.32  13.08 

Less: Reversal during the year  (13.27)  (2.15)

Balances as at the end of the year  2.50  14.45 

18 Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Balances with banks

-Current accounts*  594.83 521.79

-Deposits with original maturity less than three months  -    43.00 

Cash in hand  0.03 0.04

 594.86  564.83 

*Includes ` 108.08 crore (Previous Year ` 94.76 crore) as Debt Service Reserve Account

19 Bank Balances Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Earmarked balances with bank*  -    6.39 

Term deposits with maturity more than three months but less than twelve months  461.59  440.94 

 461.59  447.33 

* Earmarked with customs

20 Other Current Financial Assets

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

- Foreign exchange gain on forward contract  0.28 -

Contract asset - Unbilled revenue  65.05  65.68 

 65.33  65.68 
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21 Other Current Assets

As at 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Prepayments  3.50  4.82 

Advances to suppliers, masters, agents and others  18.71  8.67 

Unutilised government grants (refer note 43) #  2.45  8.57 

 24.66  22.06 

# represents unutilised amount of duty saved on capital goods imported, including spares, under the Served from India Scheme (SFIS).

22 	 Equity Share Capital

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

No. of 
Shares ` In Crores No. of 

Shares ` In Crores

Authorised

Equity shares of par value `10/- each 135,000,000  135.00 135,000,000  135.00 

 135.00  135.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up

Equity shares of par value `10/- fully paid up 111,345,500  111.35 111,345,500  111.35 

Total  111.35  111.35 

(a) 	R econciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Details No. of 
Shares ` In Crores No. of 

Shares ` In Crores

Equity shares of par value `10/- fully paid up

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 111,345,500  111.35 111,345,500  111.35 

Add: Issued during the year  -  -  -  - 

Outstanding at the end of the year 111,345,500  111.35 111,345,500  111.35 

(b)		R ights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

			   Equity Shares:	

			   The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote 
per share at meetings of the Company. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 
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the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, 

the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential 

amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.	

(c) 	 Shares held by the holding company :					      

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Equity Shares  111.35  111.35 

111,345,500 equity shares (previous year : 111,345,500 equity shares) are 
held by The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited along with its nominees.

(d) 	D etails of the Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the shares in the Company:

Name of Shareholder

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares held

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares held

Equity shares

The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited, the 
holding company along with its Nominees

100% 111,345,500 100% 111,345,500 

			   The company’s immediate and ultimate Holding Company is “The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited”, a 

company incorporated in India, as defined under Ind AS-110 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and Ind AS-24 

“Related Party Disclosures”.								     

(e)		 No shares are allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract (s) without payment being received in cash during the 

period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.	

(f)		 No shares are allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares and no shares have been bought back during five years 

immediately preceding the reporting date.

(g)		 Employee Stock Option Scheme:

			   The employee stock options of the Company were granted under five different Employee Stock Option Schemes 

(‘Scheme/s’) to the employees of the Company, the parent company and the subsidiaries. Out of the five Schemes, two 

Schemes - ESOP 2007 and ESOP 2008 – I were closed post the encashment introduced in 2012 and 2015.	

			   During the year under review, an opportunity was given to the option grantees under all the existing Schemes for 

encashment of all their remaining outstanding options, aggregating to 151,060 options, at a fair value determined 

under the encashment proposal approved by the Board of Directors in March 2018. The encashment process was 

completed by end of September 2018 with the encashment of all outstanding stock options. With the said encashment, 

all the Schemes of the Company have been closed.								    
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 			   The particulars of the various Schemes and movements during the year under review are summarized as under:	

Sr. 
No. Particulars ESOP 2007-II ESOP 2008-II ESOP 2010

1. Date of Grant 28/01/08 23/10/08
19/03/09
5/5/2009
24/07/09
23/10/09
28/12/09
18/03/10
30/04/10

23/09/10
30/04/11
24/10/11
27/04/12

2. Date of Board Approval 20/11/07 28/01/08 18/03/10

3. Date of Shareholders’ 
Approval

21/11/07 31/01/08 23/04/10

4. Options approved 200,000 1,710,000 1,028,900

5. Options outstanding at 
the beginning of the year

4,600 44,700 101,760

6. Options granted during 
the year

_ _ _

7. Options cancelled/
forfeited during the year

_ _ _

8. Options Exercised during 
the year

_ _ _

9. Options encashed during 
the year

4,600 44,700 101,760

10. Options outstanding at 
the end of the year

_ _ _

11. Exercise Price/Weighted 
Average Exercise Price

100 135 135

12. Exercise period from the 
date of vesting

One year from the date  
of vesting/listing  
whichever is later

One year from the date  
of vesting/listing  
whichever is later

One year from the date  
of vesting/listing  
whichever is later

13. Exercisable at end of the 
year

_ _ _

14. Method of Settlement Equity Equity/Cash Equity

15. Vesting period from the 
date of grant

One year 20% equally over a  
period of five years

20% equally over a  
period of five years

16. Vesting conditions Continued employment 
with the holding 

Company “ The Great 
Eastern Shipping Co. 

Ltd.” (includes transfer 
within group companies)

Continued employment 
with the holding 

Company or subsidiaries 
(includes transfer within 

group companies)

Continued employment 
with the holding 

Company or subsidiaries 
(includes transfer within 

group companies)
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23 Other Equity

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Summary of Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Capital reserve  2.95  2.95 

Capital redemption reserve  43.50  43.50 

Securities premium  1,155.13  1,155.13 

General reserve  82.35  82.35 

Tonnage tax reserve  146.00  145.50 

Retained earnings  639.20  647.25 

Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign currency translation reserve  705.08  641.59 

Cash flow hedging reserve  9.53  21.68 

 2,783.74  2,739.95 

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Reserves and Surplus
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning  of the year  2.95  2.95 

Add: Pursuant to scheme of amalgamation  -    -   

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year  2.95  2.95 

Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year  43.50 43.50

Securities premium reserve
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year  1,155.13  1,155.13 

General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year  82.35  40.35 

Add: Transfer from tonnage tax reserve  -    42.00 

Balance at the end of the year  82.35  82.35 

Tonnage Tax reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  145.50  187.00 

Add: Transfer from retained earnings  0.50  0.50 

Less: Transfer to general reserve on utilisation  -    (42.00)

Balance at the end of the year  146.00  145.50 
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As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year  647.25  989.79 

Add: (Loss) / Profit for the year  (7.88)  (376.38)

Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year  0.33  2.02 

Others  -    32.32 

Less: Transfer to Tonnage Tax Reserve Account under section 115VT of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

 (0.50)  (0.50)

Balance at the end of the year  639.20  647.25 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  641.59 680.25

Add: Pursuant to scheme of amalgamation  -   (30.71)

Add / (Less): Exchange differences on net investments in subsidiaries  63.49 (7.95)

Balance at the end of the year  705.08 641.59

Cash flow Hedging reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  21.68  9.33 

Add : Fair value gain on derivative contracts designated as cash flow hedges (net)  (12.15)  12.35 

Balance at the end of the year  9.53  21.68 

 2,783.74  2,739.95 

Nature of reserves

Capital reserve

The company recognises profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments 
to capital reserve.						   

Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.						    

General reserve

The General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.  

Tonnage Tax reserve

Tonnage Tax Reserve created as per the provisions of the Section 115VT of the Income-tax Act, 1961, whereby a minimum 
of 20% of book profits from the tonnage tax activities are to be utilised for acquiring new ships within 8 years.
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24 Long Term Borrowings

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Secured - at amortised cost

Foreign currency term loans from banks  1,899.31  1,994.43 

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (included in note 29)  (359.68)  (205.73)

Less: Interest accrued but not due on long term borrowings (included in note 29)  (4.13)  (3.73)

 1,535.50  1,784.97 

Unsecured - at amortised cost

Redeemable Cumulative Preference share capital 

24.60% (Previous Year 21.75%) Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 
par value `10/- fully paid up

 171.64  170.62 

22.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of par value `10/- fully paid 
up

 181.87  181.87 

 353.51  352.49 

 1,889.01  2,137.46 

Foreign currency translation reserve

This reserve represents balances of Exchange differences on monetary items considered as part of net investment in 
foreign operations. All resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve until the 
disposal of the net investment.	

Retained earnings

Retained Earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date, less any transfers to reserves and dividend distributions 
to the shareholders.						      

Cash flow hedging reserve

The Cash Flow Hedging Reserve is the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of 
designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The gains or losses arising thereon are 
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on settlement.

a. Foreign currency term loans are secured by mortgage on the vessels and rigs, assignment of earnings, charge on earnings 
account (where applicable) and insurance contracts/policies of respective vessels and rigs (refer note 9). The loans carry 
interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 176 to 215 bps (previous year : LIBOR plus 176 to 215 bps) and are repayable in 
quarterly / half yearly instalments over two to six years.



consolidated financial STATEMENTs

157

b. Preference Shares :

The total outstanding preference shares include the below:

(i)  24.60% 44,500,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of face value ` 10/- each issued at a premium of ` 20/- 
per share on preferential basis to the Holding Company, “The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited”, redeemable 
at a premium of ` 30.90/- per share. During the year, the terms of said preference shares were modified deferring the 
redemption, which was scheduled to begin in April 2021, upto April 2025 and thereby increasing the rate of dividend 
from existing 21.75% p.a. to 24.60% p.a., effective from FY 19, in order to maintain the same effective yield of 7% 
to the Holding Company. Thus, the said preference shares would now be redeemed in four equal annual tranches 
of 11,125,000 shares each commencing from April 1, 2025. As per the terms, the Company also has an option of 
early redemption by providing one month’s notice to the Holding Company. The redemption can be in part or in full 
subject to a minimum of 25 lakhs shares at a time. In case of early redemption, the premium on redemption would be 
determined at such time so as to provide an effective yield to maturity of 7% to the Holding Company. The cumulative 
redeemable preference shares do not contain any equity component.	

(ii) 22.50% 60,624,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of face value `10/- each, issued at a premium of  
` 20/- per share on preferential basis to the Holding Company, “The Great Eastern Shipping Company Limited” and 
redeemable at a premium of ` 20 per share in four equal annual tranches of 15,156,000 shares each commencing 
from April 1, 2025, as per the terms of issue (modified from time to time) of these preference shares. As per the terms, 
the Company also has an option of early redemption by providing one month’s notice to the Holding Company. The 
redemption can be in part or in full subject to a minimum of 25 lakhs shares at a time.  The cumulative redeemable 
preference shares do not contain any equity component.			 

The maturity profile of foreign currency term loans from banks is as below:

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

1-2 years  201.36  343.81 

2-3 years  162.47  189.79 

3-4 years  219.17  153.13 

4-5 years  296.37  206.57 

Beyond 5 years  673.21  913.84 

 1,552.58  1,807.14 

Less: Unamortised finance charges  (17.08)  (22.17)

 1,535.50  1,784.97 

25 Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Derivatives designated as Cash flow hedges

- Foreign exchange loss on Interest rate collar / Interest rate swaps 3.58 0.09

3.58 0.09
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27 Other Non-Current Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Government grants #  22.71  22.86 

 22.71  22.86 

# represents unamortised amount of duty saved on capital goods imported, including spares, under the Served from 
India Scheme (SFIS).

28 Trade Payables

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Payable to micro, small and medium enterprises  5.39 3.90

Payable to others  88.25 94.76

 93.64  98.66 

Trade payables are recognised at their original invoices amounts which represents their fair values on initial recognition. 
Trade payables are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to 
approximate their fair values.

26 Provisions

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

A. Non-current

Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for gratuity (refer note 33)  0.50  0.85 

- Provision for compensated absences (refer note 33)  0.45  0.61 

- Director's Retirement Benefit Plan (refer note 33)  10.85  10.36 

 11.80 11.82

B. Current

Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for compensated absences (refer note 33)  0.50  0.45 

- Provision for gratuity (refer note 33)  0.25  -   

- Employee Stock Options Scheme (refer note 22 (g) )  -    0.37 

 0.75  0.82 
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29 Other Financial Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Current maturities of long term borrowings  359.68  205.73 

Interest accrued but not due on long term borrowings  4.13  3.73 

Preference dividend payable including dividend distribution tax  29.65  28.11 

Other payables :

 - Employee benefits  21.06  24.19 

 - Accrued expenses  4.49  3.29 

 - Others  13.93  20.45 

 432.94  285.50 

30 Other Current Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Other payables :

 - Statutory liabilities  8.37  6.20 

 - Capital creditors  -    2.32 

Government grants (refer note 43) #  2.45  8.57 

Income received in advance  0.27  0.07 

 11.09  17.16 

# represents unutilised amount of duty saved on capital goods imported, including spares, under the Served from India 
Scheme (SFIS).

31 Revenue From Operations

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Sale of services

Charter hire income (refer note 42 )  891.38  970.24 

Other operating revenues

Insurance claims  0.30  3.14 

 891.68  973.38 
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32 Other Income

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

a Interest income

 on deposits with banks (at amortised cost)  25.27  14.18 

b Dividend income

Dividend on current investments (designated at FVTPL)  1.06  1.92 

c Other non-operating income

Profit on sale of other assets  0.40  0.02 

Reversal of doubtful debt / other provisions of earlier years  31.49  -   

Income from Government grants (amortised)  5.64  5.81 

Profit on sale of current investments (at FVTPL)  0.15  0.04 

Miscellaneous income  0.33  0.32 

 64.34  22.29 

33 Employee Benefits Expenses

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Salaries, wages and allowances  219.36  216.94 

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note below)  7.84  7.73 

Share based payments to employees (refer note 22(g))  -    (2.01)

Staff welfare expenses  14.97  15.40 

 242.17  238.06 

a) Defined Contribution Plans :

The Group has recognised the following contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable 
under these plans are at the rates specified in the rules of the respective schemes.

Contribution to  Provident Fund  2.31  2.38 

Contribution to  Central Provident Fund  0.68  0.63 

Contribution to  Superannuation Fund  0.27  0.30 

Contribution to  National Pension Scheme  0.33  0.34 

Contribution to Seamens’ Provident Fund  1.04  0.92 

Contribution to Seamens’ Pension Annuity Fund  0.67  0.64 

Contribution to Seamens’ Gratuity Fund  0.25  0.23 
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General Description:

i)  Provident Fund :

In accordance with the Indian law, all eligible employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the provident 
fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and employer (at a determined rate) contribute monthly. 
The Group contributes as specified under the law to the Government administered provident fund plan. A part of the 
Group’s contribution is transferred to the Government administered pension fund. This plan is a defined contribution 
plan as the obligation of the employer is limited to the monthly contributions made to the fund. The contributions 
made to the fund are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefit expenses.

In accordance with the Singapore law, all eligible employees (Singapore citizens and Permanent Residents in Singapore) 
of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the Central provident fund, a defined contribution plan, based on age 
brackets,  in which both the employee and employer (at a determined rate) contribute monthly. The Group contributes 
as specified under the law to the Government administered provident fund plan. This plan is a defined contribution plan 
as the obligation of the employer is limited to the monthly contributions made to the fund. The contributions made to 
the fund are recognised as an expense in profit and loss under employee benefit expenses.

ii) Superannuation Fund :

In addition to gratuity benefits, employees have the option to become a member of the Superannuation Fund Trust set 
up by the Group and receive benefits thereunder. It is a defined contribution plan. The Group makes contributions to the 
trust in respect of the said employees until their retirement or resignation. The Group recognises such contributions as 
an expense when incurred. The Group has no further obligation beyond its contribution.

iii) National Pension Scheme (NPS) :

NPS is an additional option for offering retirement benefits to the employees. NPS is designed on defined contribution 
basis wherein the Group contributes to the employees account. 

There is no defined benefit that would be available at the time of exit from the system and the accumulated wealth 
depends on the contributions made and the income generated from the investment of such wealth. The Group recognises 
such contributions as an expense when incurred. The Group has no further obligation beyond its contribution.

iv) Seamen’s Provident Fund :

The Group’s contribution towards Annuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seamen’s Annuity Fund as per the 
National Maritime Board Agreement.

v)  Seamen’s Pension Annuity Fund :

The Group’s contribution towards Annuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seamen’s Annuity Fund as per the 
National Maritime Board Agreement.

vi) Seamen’s Gratuity Fund :

The Group’s contribution towards Gratuity in respect of seamen is paid to the Seafarer’s Welfare Fund Society as per 
the National Maritime Board Agreement.
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(` in Crores)

Actuarial Assumption

Gratuity Pension Plan Compensated Absences

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

a) Mortality IALM (2006-
08) Ult.

IALM (2006-
08) Ult.

IALM (2006-
08) Ult.

IALM (2006-
08) Ult.

IALM (2006-
08) Ult.

IALM (2006-
08) Ult.

b) Interest / Discount Rate 7.60% 7.65% 7.40% 7.40% 7.65% 7.65%

c) Rate of increase in compensation

Shore & Subsidiary Shore Staff 5.00% 5.00% - - 5.00% 5.00%

Rig Staff 5.00% 3.00% - - - -

d) Expected average remaining service

Shore Staff 7.79 7.77 - - 7.79 7.77

Rig Staff 9.27 15.05 - - - -

Subsidiary Shore Staff 5.18 5.91 - - - -

e) Employee Attrition rate 

Shore Staff & Subsidiary Shore Staff 8.00% 8.00% - - 8.00% 8.00%

Rig Staff (Past Service : 0 to 5) 20.00% 1.50% - - - -

Rig Staff (Past Service : 6 to 42) 2.00% 1.50%

f) Weighted average remaining duration of 
Defined Benefit Obligation  
(in years)

Shore Staff 5.10 4.93 - - 4.52 4.54

Subsidiary Shore Staff 3.71 4.72 - - - -

Rig Staff 9.13 10.37 - - - -

Gratuity Pension Plan Compensated Absences

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

i)  Change in Present Value of Obligations:

Present value obligation at the beginning 
of the year

 11.86  11.44  10.36  10.57  0.49  0.51 

Interest Cost  0.89  0.77  0.76  0.74  0.04  0.03 

Current Service Cost    2.36  2.42  -    -    0.09  0.07 

b) Defined Benefit Plans & Other Long-Term Employee Benefits :

Valuations in respect of Gratuity, Pension Plan for whole time director and Compensated Absences have been carried 
out by an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date as per the Projected Unit Credit Method. The following table 
sets out the status of the Gratuity provision, Pension Plan and Compensated absences:
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(` in Crores)

Gratuity Pension Plan Compensated Absences

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Benefits Paid               (0.62)  (0.66)  -    -    (0.04)  (0.02)

Transfer in  0.11  -    -    -    -    -   

Actuarial (Gain) / loss on Obligation  (0.44)  (2.11)  (0.26)  (0.95)  (0.08)  (0.10)

Present value obligation at the end of 
the year

 14.16  11.86  10.86  10.36  0.50  0.49 

ii) Fair Value of Plan Assets :

Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  11.30  11.24  -    -    -    -   

Return on Plan Assets (excluding 
Interest Income)

 (0.07)  (0.04)  -    -    -    -   

Interest Income  0.92  0.76  -    -    -    -   

Employer's Contribution  2.05  -    -    -    0.04  0.02 

Benefits Paid  (0.62)  (0.66)  -    -    (0.04)  (0.02)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of 
the year

 13.58  11.30  -    -    -    -   

The fair values of the above equity and debt instruments are determined based on quoted market prices in active 
markets.

iii) Return on plan assets :

Actual Return on Plan Assets  0.85  0.72  -    -    -    -   

Interest Income  0.92  0.76  -    -    -    -   

Return on plan assets excluding interest 
income

 (0.07)  (0.04)  -    -    -    -   

iv) Actuarial Gain/Loss on obligation

Due to Demographic Assumption  0.37  -    -    -    -    -   

Due to Financial Assumption  0.59  (0.56)  -    -    0.00  (0.01)

Due to experience  (1.40)  (1.55)  (0.26)  (0.95)  (0.08)  (0.09)

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  (0.44)  (2.11)  (0.26)  (0.95)  (0.08)  (0.10)

v) Amounts Recognised in the Balance
Sheet:

Present Value of obligation at the end of 
the Year

 (14.16)  (11.86)  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.33)  (0.44)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at  the end of 
the year

 13.58  11.30  -    -    -    -   

Funded Status  (0.58)  (0.56)  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.33)  (0.44)

Short Term Liability  -    -    -    -    (0.44)  (0.39)

Net Assets  / (Liability) recognised in the 
balance sheet

 (0.58)  (0.56)  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.77)  (0.83)
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(` in Crores)

Actuarial Assumption

Gratuity Pension Plan Compensated Absences

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

vi) Expenses Recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost  2.36  2.42  -    -    0.09  0.07 

Interest Cost (Net)  (0.20)  0.01  0.76  0.74  0.04  0.03 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) recognised for the 
period

 -    -    -    -    (0.08)  (0.10)

Expenses recognised in the profit and 
loss account

 2.16  2.43  0.76  0.74  0.05  -   

vii) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for 
the year

 (0.44)  (2.11)  (0.26)  (0.95)  -    -   

Return on Plan Assets excluding net 
interest

 0.07  0.04  -    -    -    -   

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized 
in (OCI)

 (0.37)  (2.07)  (0.26)  (0.95)  -    -   

viii) Investment Details ( % invested )

HDFC Life Defensive Management  
Fund II

93% 92%  -    -    -    -   

ix) Asset Liability Comparisons

Present Value of Defined benefit 
obligation

 (14.16)  (11.86)  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.50)  (0.50)

Plan assets  13.58  11.30  -    -    -    -   

Surplus or (Deficit) in the plan  (0.58)  (0.56)  (10.86)  (10.36)  (0.50)  (0.50)

Experience adjustments on plan assets  (0.07)  (0.04)  -    -    -    -   

x) Sensitivity Analysis DR : Discount Rate ER : Salary Escalation 
Rate

PVO DR + 
1%

PVO DR - 
1%

PVO ER + 
1%

PVO ER - 
1%

Gratuity
Present Value of Obligation  13.50  14.91  14.65  13.68 

Pension Plan
Present Value of Obligation  9.55  12.34  -    -   

Compensated Absences
Present Value of Obligation  0.48  0.52  0.52  0.48 
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			G   eneral Description:	

i) 		G  ratuity :

			G   ratuity is payable to eligible employees on superannuation, death, permanent disablement and resignation in terms 
of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s Scheme whichever is more beneficial. Benefit 
would be paid at the time of separation based on the last drawn basic salary. This benefit is applicable only to the 
employees of the parent company and the figures given above are in respect of the parent company only.

			   The defined benefit plans are administered by a separate fund that is legally separated from the Group. The Group’s 
investment strategy in respect of its funded plans is implemented within the framework of the applicable statutory 
requirements.

			   The plans expose the Group to a number of actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and 
salary risk.

			   Investment / Interest Risk				 

			   The Group is exposed to investment/interest risk if the return on the invested fund falls below the discount rate used to 
arrive at present value of the benefit.	

			   Longevity Risk				 

			   The Group is not exposed to risk of the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme ceases on the 
employee separating from the employer for any reason.

			   Salary Risk				  

			   The Group is exposed to higher liability if the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary escalation.	

			   The Group does an Asset - Liability matching study each year in which the consequences of the strategic investment 
policies are analysed in terms of risk and return profiles.

xi) Expected Payout First Second Third Fourth Fifth Six to Ten 
years

Gratuity

Present Value of Obligation  2.90  1.87  1.28  1.25  0.79  4.67 

Pension Plan

Present Value of Obligation  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Compensated Absences

Present Value of Obligation  0.17  0.04  0.08  0.04  0.04  0.15 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated 
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the 
defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.



annual report 2018-19

ii) 		 Pension Plan :

			   Under the Company’s Retirement Benefit Scheme for the Managing Director, the Managing Director is entitled to 
the benefits of the scheme only after attaining the age of 62 years, except for retirement due to physical disability or 
death while in office, in which case, the benefits shall start on his retirement due to such physical disability or death. 
The benefits are in the form of monthly pension @ 50% of his last drawn monthly salary subject to maximum of  
` 1.25 crores p.a. during his lifetime. If he predeceases the spouse, she will be paid monthly pension @ 50% of 
his last drawn pension during her lifetime. Benefits include reimbursement of medical expense for self and spouse, 
overseas medical treatment upto ` 0.50 crores for self/spouse, office space including office facilities in the Company’s 
or parent company’s office premises. Benefits also include use of Company’s car including reimbursement of driver’s 
salary during his lifetime and in the event of his demise, his spouse will be entitled to avail the said benefit during her 
lifetime.				 

iii) 	 Compensated Absences :	

			E   ligible employees can carry forward and encash leave upto superannuation, death, permanent disablement and 
resignation subject to maximum accumulation allowed at 15 days. The leave over and above 15 days for all employees 
is encashed and paid to employees, subject to maximum of 20 days on June 30, every year.	

iv) 	 Post Retirement Benefit Scheme :	

			   During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company have approved and implemented Post  Retirement Medical 
Benefit Scheme for the Executive Directors and Senior Management Employees of the Company at their meeting 
held on February 4, 2019. Under the said Scheme, certain medical benefits shall be provided post retirement to the 
selected employees (including spouse), subject to a limit of ` 50 lakhs p.a. The medical benefits shall be in the form of 
reimbursement/payment of hospitalisation (including Domiciliary Hospitalisation) expenses incurred in India or abroad 
for the Selected Employee and his / her spouse for life, pre and post hospitalisation expenses incurred 30 days before 
/ after hospitalization and annual preventive health check-up package (once every year).  The Selected Employee, who 
has been Executive Director of the Company, and his / her spouse will also be entitled to reimbursement of all other 
medical expenses, in the ordinary course. The reimbursement of these expenses shall be in addition to the annual limit 
of expenses mentioned above. If either of the Selected Employee or his / her spouse passes away, the limit will continue 
for the eligible survivor.

			   Under this method, the Post-Retirement Medical Benefit payable to the Executive Director and his spouse is projected 
till their eligibility of payment and is then discounted back to the valuation date. The assumptions considered are:

- 		 The discount rate is based on the benchmark yield available on Government Bonds, having regard to the term of the 
liabilities which is 7.66% p.a. on 20 year bond.

- 		 The severity of the claim is assumed to be 12%, frequency of the claim to be 18.535% and the rate of inflation in 
medical cost to be 6.5% p.a. 

- 		 Also considered 80% of LIC Annuitant Table (1996-98) for the mortality rate post retirement and no withdrawal rate 
has been considered.
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34 Finance Costs

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Interest expense  91.27  89.04 

Finance charges (upfront fees, agency fees, prepayment fees)  6.84  21.11 

Effective interest cost on redeemable preference shares

Dividend on redeemable preference shares  25.61  25.44 

Dividend distribution tax on redeemable preference shares #  0.26  0.05 

Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost  61.36  16.67 

 185.34  152.31 

# The provision of dividend distribution tax payable on redeemable preference shares of current year amounting to ` 5.05 
crores (Previous year ̀  4.75 crore) was adjusted against credit of taxes paid under section 115BBD of Income tax Act, 1961 
on dividend received from foreign subsidiary.

35 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 9)  263.10  277.10 

Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 10)  0.09  0.07 

 263.19  277.17 

36 Impairment Loss

Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Impairment of tangible assets (refer note 9)  9.39  206.39 

 9.39  206.39 

The Group carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of fleet and rigs, and recognised impairment loss of ` 9.39 
crores on  one vessel  (Previous Year: ` 206.39 crores on fifteen vessels). The recoverable amounts determined on the 
basis of their value in use [(` 43.40 crores for a vessel  (Previous Year: ` 724.39 crores for ten vessels)] and based on fair 
value  (level 3) [(` NIL crores  (Previous Year: ` 364.98 crores for five vessels)]. The discount rate used in measuring value 
in use was 6.50% p.a. (Previous Year: 6.50% p.a.).				 

The group also estimated  the fair value of the fleet and rigs, which is based on the recent market prices of assets with 
similar age, obsolescence, transactions in the market, general market trends, quotes from owners. The fair value is less 
than the value in use and hence the recoverable amount of the relevant assets has been determined on the basis of their 
value in use.

The discount rate used in measuring value in use was 6.50% (Previous year: 6.50%) per annum. 	



annual report 2018-19

37 Other Expenses

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Fuel, oil and water  12.28  25.66 
Hire of chartered rigs, vessels and equipments  2.89  8.04 
Consumption of stores and spares  74.21  68.01 
Technical management fees  0.12  2.21 
Agency fees  3.00  3.23 
Port dues  1.72  1.33 
Repairs and maintenance

- Rigs and vessels  31.97  24.79 
- Buildings  0.08  0.16 
- Others  1.66  2.03 

Insurance
- Fleet insurance  13.70  13.90 
- Others  1.62  1.73 

Travelling and conveyance expenses  8.90  8.90 
Communication expenses  9.69  8.51 
Rent  7.15  7.06 
Rates and taxes  0.01  0.03 
Brokerage and commission  0.69  1.10 
Payment to auditors  1.04  0.69 
(Reversal) / Allowance for doubtful debts and advances (net)  (0.87)  10.81 
(Gain) / Loss on foreign currency transactions (net)  16.95  (5.22)
(Gain) / Loss on derivatives transactions (net)  1.83  (0.65)
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility  (refer note 41)  2.96  5.40 
Miscellaneous expenses  21.79  28.01 

 213.39  215.73 

38 Earnings Per Share
Year Ended  

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Profit / (Loss)  attributable to equity share holders (` in crores) (A)  (7.88)  (376.38)

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted EPS (B)  111,345,500  111,345,500 

Face value of per equity share                                                       `  10.00  10.00 
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (A/B)                             `  (0.71)  (33.80)
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39 Related Party Disclosure

(i) List of Related Parties

a) Holding Company :

The Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd.

b) Fellow Subsidiaries :

The Great Eastern Chartering LLC (FZC), Sharjah

The Greatship (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Singapore

The Great Eastern Chartering (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Great Eastern CSR Foundation., India

c) Key Management Personnel :

Executive Directors

Mr. Ravi K. Sheth             

Mr. P.R. Naware               

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Bharat K. Sheth (Chairman)

Mr. Keki Mistry

Mr. Berjis Desai (upto March 12, 2018)

Mr. Vineet Nayyar (upto September 19, 2018)

Mr. Shashank Singh (upto October 29, 2018)

Mr. Anil Chandanmal Singhvi

Mr. Mathew Cyriac

Ms. Swaroop Rawal (upto August 6, 2018)

Ms. Rita Bhagwati (appointed w.e.f August 7, 2018)

Mr. Shaleen Sharma (appointed w.e.f October 26, 2018)

Other

Mr. G. Shivakumar          -  Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Amisha Ghia              -  Company Secretary

d) Relative of Key Management Personnel :

Ms. Nirja B. Sheth -  Daughter of Chairman

e) Other related party:

Greatship (India) Limited  Employees Gratuity Trust - Post employment benefit plan of Greatship group
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(ii) Transactions with related parties

( ` in Crores )

Nature of transaction

Holding
Company Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Management 
Personnel and  

Relatives

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Transactions during the year:

Interest on preference share  25.61  23.32  -    -    -    -   

Contribution paid towards CSR  -    -    2.96  3.67  -    -   

Executive Directors

Short term benefits  -    -    -    -    8.96  8.77 

Post employment benefits  -    -    -    -    0.81  (0.21)

Non-executive directors

Commission / Variable pay  -    -    -    -    -    1.69 

Sitting fees  -    -    -    -    0.46  0.29 

Others

Short term benefits  -    -    -    -    0.68  0.61 

Post employment benefits  -    -    -    -    0.01  0.01 

Rent Received  -    -    0.20  0.18  -    -   

Service charges for allotment of 
training slots 

 1.26  1.84  -    -    -    -   
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Nature of transaction

Holding Company Key Management 
Personnel and Relatives

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

Outstanding Balances

Payables  0.89  0.75  -    -   

Dividend payable  24.59  23.32  -    -   

Remuneration payable

Executive Directors  -    -    15.05  14.25 

Non-executive Directors  -    -    -    1.69 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm’s length basis.

40 Financial Instruments

(a) Capital Management				  

The Group’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term 
and short-term goals of the Group.			 

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowing as detailed in note 24 and offset by cash and bank 
balances and current investments) and total equity of the Group.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group’s risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Group on a regular basis considering 
the cyclicity of business.				  

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as follows :

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Debt*  2,252.82  2,346.92 

Less: Cash and bank balances including current investments  (1,130.37)  (1,045.40)

Net debt  1,122.45  1,301.52 

Total equity  2,895.09  2,851.30 

Net debt to equity ratio  0.39  0.46 

*Debt includes foreign currency term loans from banks and cumulative redeemable preference share capital.
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(b) Financial assets and liabilities				  

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on 
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instru-
ments are disclosed in Note 7 (g) to the Consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows :

Carrying value as on

March 31, 2019
` in Crores

March 31, 2018
` in Crores

Financial Assets

Measured at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalents	  594.86  564.83 

Other financial assets  1.54  1.52 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  461.59  447.33 

Deposits with banks  2.59  -   

Trade receivables  101.17  93.28 

Unbilled revenue  65.05  65.68 

Measured at fair value through profit and loss

Current investments  71.33  33.24 

Derivative contracts  -    0.66 

Measured at fair value through OCI

Derivative contracts  14.70  29.76 

 1,312.83  1,236.30 

Financial Liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

Foreign currency term loans from banks  1,899.31  1,994.43 

Preference share capital including redemption premium  353.51  352.49 

Preference dividend payable including dividend distribution tax  29.65  28.11 

Trade payables  93.64  98.66 

Other financial liabilities  39.48  47.93 

Measured at fair value through profit and loss

Derivative contracts  1.18  -   

Measured at fair value through OCI

Derivative contracts  2.40  0.09 

 2,419.17  2,521.71 

The management considers that the carrying amounts of above financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their 
fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by the level of the following fair value 
measurements hierarchy:
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(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3). 

Financial Assets 
and Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores
Level Valuation technique and key inputs

Investments in 
liquid mutual funds

 71.33  33.24  Level 
2 

The mutual funds are valued at the net asset 
value of the respective units.

Derivative financial 
instruments (net)

 11.12  30.33  Level 
2 

Discounted cash flows.  Future cash flows  are 
estimated based on forward exchange/ interest 
rates and contract forward/ interest rates 
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk 
of various counterparties.

(c) Derivative financial instrument and risk management				  

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate collars and interest rate swaps  to hedge its exposure to 
movements in foreign exchange rates and variable interest rates. The Group does not use the foreign exchange forward 
contracts, currency and interest swaps and options for trading or speculation purposes.  

The Group has identified certain derivative contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of firm commitments and 
interest swaps as hedge instruments that qualify as effective cash flow hedges. The mark to market gain / (loss) on such 
derivative contracts is recorded in the hedging reserve.

I) 	 Derivative instruments in hedging relationship (Cashflow hedges) : 
		  (i) Forward exchange contracts:

Details

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale

Total no. of contracts 6  -    -   12

Notional amount of foreign currency  (USD in Million) 15.98  -    -   3.00

Amount in hedging reserve gain  (` in crores) 0.28    -    -    *

Maturity period  upto  
12 months 

 -    -    upto  
12 months 

* Less than 1 Lakh rupees

		  (ii) Interest rate swap contracts:                     

Details
As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018

Total No. of contracts 14 11

Principal notional amount (USD million) 161.06 170.27

Amount in hedging reserve  gain (` in crores) 12.02 29.69

Maturity period  upto 66 months  upto 78 months 

	 	 The above mentioned derivative contracts having been entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of loan installments, 
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firm commitments and the interest rate risk, have been designated as hedge instruments that qualify as effective cash 
flow hedges. The mark-to-market  gain on these derivative contracts outstanding as on March 31, 2019 amounting to 
gain of ̀  12.30 crores [ previous year: ̀  29.69 crores ] has been recorded in the cash flow hedging reserve as on March 
31, 2019.	

		  The interest rate swaps are entered to hedge quarterly interest payments on borrowings. Fair value gains and losses on 
the interest rate swaps recognised in cash flow hedging reserve are transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
part of interest expense on settlement.

II) 	Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship :

		  Interest rate collar contracts :

Details
As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018
Total no. of Contracts 3 3

Principal Notional Amount (USD million) 26.56 28.99

Gain /(Loss) recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss during the year (` In crores) 	

(1.18) 0.65

Maturity Period  upto 66 months  upto 78 months

 		  The interest rate collar contracts mentioned under “Derivative instruments not in hedging relationship” above,  
economically hedge the underlying exposures but hedge accounting is not opted for the same.

		  The interest rate collar contracts are entered to cap the floating interest rate liability. If interest rate rises above a certain 
level this will start acting as interest rate swap. 		

		G  ains on the derivative contracts mentioned under (II) above, are transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
mark-to-market  on these derivative contracts outstanding as on March 31, 2019 amounting to loss ` 1.18 crores 
(previous Year gain : ` 0.65 crores) has been recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss.	

(d) Market risk 				  

i)  Foreign currency risk 

The Group uses forward covers to protect against the volatility associated with the foreign currency transactions.

The Group’s exposure to unhedged foreign currency is listed below:

Details

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Currency in Millions ` in Crores
Foreign currency term loans from banks

USD  261.27  309.81  1,806.71  2,019.21 

Financial liabilities

USD  6.79  5.18  46.98  33.73 

BRL  16.83  21.64  29.94  42.32 

SGD  0.99  1.37  5.07  6.80 

EUR  0.19  0.69  1.50  5.53 

GBP  0.29  0.22  2.58  2.00 

SAR  0.01  0.49  0.01  0.84 
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Details

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Currency in Millions ` in Crores

JPY  5.91  11.18  0.37  0.69 

NOK  0.02  0.49  0.01  0.41 

AED  0.01  0.08  0.01  0.15 

ZAR  1.89  -    0.90  -   

MYR  0.20  -    0.33  -   

DKK  0.00  -    0.00  -   

Financial assets

USD  23.42  20.05  161.95  130.66 

MYR  0.03  -    0.05  -   

SGD  0.12  0.30  0.62  1.51 

EUR  0.13  0.33  1.04  2.68 

GBP  0.02  -    0.14  -   

NOK  -    0.02  -    0.01 

JPY  0.32  -    0.02  -   

Cash and cash equivalents and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

USD  91.32  79.02  631.47  515.02 

SGD  0.25  0.18  1.26  0.87 

EUR  0.19  0.21  1.47  1.70 

GBP  0.09  0.05  0.78  0.48 

Net currency exposure

USD  (153.32)  (215.92)  (1,060.27)  (1,407.26)

BRL  (16.83)  (21.64)  (29.94)  (42.32)

SGD  (0.62)  (0.89)  (3.19)  (4.42)

EUR  0.13  (0.15)  1.01  (1.15)

GBP  (0.18)  (0.17)  (1.66)  (1.53)

SAR  (0.01)  (0.49)  (0.01)  (0.84)

JPY  (5.59)  (11.18)  (0.35)  (0.69)

NOK  (0.02)  (0.47)  (0.01)  (0.40)

AED  (0.01)  (0.08)  (0.01)  (0.15)

ZAR  (1.89)  -    (0.90)  -   

MYR  (0.17)  -    (0.28)  -   

DKK  (0.00)  -    (0.00)  -   

The un-hedged foreign currency exposures have been given in respect of currencies other than functional currency of the 
respective enterprises.							    

A 5% strengthening / weakening of Indian Rupee against key currencies to which the group is exposed (net of hedge), with 
all other variables being held constant, would have led to approximately a Gain / Loss of ` 54.78 crores (previous year:  
` 72.94 crores) in the Statement of Profit and Loss.		
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ii) 	Interest rate risk

The Group generally borrows at variable rates and generally uses interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges of 

future interest payments, which have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed 

rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, the 

difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed 

notional principal amounts.  

Interest rate sensitivity

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both 

fixed and floating interest rates.

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings 

of the Group are principally denominated in Indian rupees and US dollars with a mix of fixed and floating rates of 

interest. The Group hedges its US dollar interest rate risk through interest rate swaps and interest rate collars to 

reduce the floating interest rate risk. The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in  

LIBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Group by the use of interest rate swap and interest rate collar contracts. 

Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the 

most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The following table provides a break-up of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Fixed rate borrowings (Redeemable preference shares)  353.51  352.49 

Floating rate borrowings (Foreign currency term loans from banks)  1,899.31  1,994.43 

Total borrowings  2,252.82  2,346.92 

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate 

liabilities, after the impact of hedge accounting, assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end 

was outstanding for the whole year.

As at March 31, 2019, the term loans from banks amounting to ` 619.82 crores (previous year: ` 720.54 crores) 

are exposed to interest risks.	

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s 

profit for the year would have increased/decreased by ` 4.53 crores (previous year: ` 4.34 crores). 

(e)		 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to 

the Group. The credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of credit worthiness 

as well as concentration risk. The major class of financial asset of the Group is trade receivables. For credit exposures 
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to customer, management assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past 

experience and other factors.

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments 
is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statement of financial position.	

Trade receivables :

The trade receivables of the Group comprise 1 debtor (previous year: 1 debtor) that individually represented 74.23% 
(previous year: 65.38%) of trade receivables. Due to the nature of the Group’s operations, revenue and receivable 
are typically concentrated amongst a relatively niche customer base. The Group has policies in place to ensure that 
contracts are with customers of stable financial standing and appropriate credit history.   

The credit period of receivables ranges from 20 to 90 days generally without security. There has been no significant 
change in the credit  quality of past due receivables. 

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group and subject to established policy, procedures and control relating to 
customer risk management.

The outstanding trade receivables are regularly monitored and appropriate action is taken for collection of overdue 
receivables.

The history of trade receivables shows a negligible allowance for bad and doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents, derivatives and mutual fund investments :	

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group invests in deposits with banks with high credit 
ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investments in 
liquid mutual funds units from reputed funds. For derivative and financial instruments, the Group attempts to limit 
the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks and financial institutions having high credit-ratings assigned by 
credit-rating agencies.

Exposure to credit risk :

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit 
risk was ` 1,312.83 crores as at March 31, 2019 and ` 1,236.30 crores as at March 31, 2018, being the total of the 
carrying amount of balances and deposits with banks, trade receivables, mutual fund investments and other financial 
assets including derivatives instruments.	

(i)	 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired	

	 Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are credit worthy debtors with good payment 
record with the group.  							     

	 The group’s trade receivables not past due include receivables amounting to ` 14.15 crores (previous year:  
` 48.31 crores).  

(ii) 	 Financial assets that are past due and/ or impaired

	 There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or provided for except for trade receivables.  
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	 The ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the group that are past due but not provided as doubtful debts is 
as follows:	 						    

As at  
March 31, 2019

` in Crores

As at 
March 31, 2018

` in Crores

Overdue  85.59  43.73 
 - Less than 180 days  1.43  1.24 
 - More than 180 days  87.02  44.97 

	 The carrying amount of trade receivables provided as doubtful debts are as follows: 

Overdue - more than 365 days  2.50  3.38 

Less than 365 days but impaired  -    11.07 

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables			   (2.50)  (14.45)

 -    -   

(f)		 Liquidity risk							     

Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the group may not be able to meet its short-term obligations. In the management 
of liquidity risk, the group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the 
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate effects of fluctuations in cash flows.  

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the group’s non derivative financial liabilities (excluding interest 
commitment) based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows :

` in Crores
Payable within  

1 year
Payable within  

2 - 5 years
More than  

5 years Total

As at 31st March 2019
Foreign currency term loans from banks  363.81  863.37  672.13  1,899.31 
Trade payables  93.64  -    -    93.64 
Preference share capital including 
redemption premium

 -    -    353.51  353.51 

Preference dividend payable including 
dividend distribution tax

29.65  -    -    29.65 

Other financial liabilities  39.48  -    -    39.48 
Derivative Contract  -    -    3.58  3.58 

 526.58  863.37  1,029.22  2,419.17 

As at 31st March 2018
Foreign currency term loans from banks  209.46  873.38  911.59  1,994.43 
Trade payables  98.66  -    -    98.66 
Preference share capital including 
redemption premium

 -    127.96  224.53  352.49 

Preference dividend payable including 
dividend distribution tax

 28.11  -    -    28.11 

Other financial liabilities  47.93  -    -    47.93 
Derivative Contract  -    -    0.09  0.09 

 384.16  1,001.34  1,136.21  2,521.71 
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41 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Consequent to the requirement of section 135 of The Companies Act 2013, the Group has contributed ` 2.96 crores 
(previous year: ` 3.67 crores) to Great Eastern CSR Foundation and ` NIL crores (previous year: ` 1.73 crores) to NGOs 
towards CSR expenditure :

Year Ended  
March 31, 2019

 ` in Crores 

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

 ` in Crores 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year.  2.96  5.40 

(b) Amount spent in cash for purposes other than for construction / acquisition 
of any asset during the year				  

 2.96  5.40 

The areas of CSR activities as specified under Schedule III of The Companies Act 2013 are 			

1. Promoting education and knowledge enhancement, including but not limited to:

a. Establishment and management of educational and knowledge enhancement infrastructure.	

b. Provision of financial or other assistance to the needy and/or deserving students.			 

c. Providing financial assistance to any Agency involved in education, knowledge enhancement and sports.	

d. Contribution to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are approved by the Central 
Government.				  

2. Eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition.

3. Promoting health care and sanitation.

42 Segment Reporting

The Group is engaged only in offshore oilfield services segment and there are no separate reportable segments as per 
Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”. 

Revenue from Operations :	

Particulars

As at  
March 31, 2019

 ` in Crores 

As at  
March 31, 2018

 ` in Crores 

Revenue from customers outside India  66.20  91.11 

Revenue from customers within India  825.18  879.13 

Total  891.38  970.24 

Substantial assets of the Group are vessels / rigs, which are not identifiable to any geographical location. In view of this, 
geographical segment wise reporting is not applicable.
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43 Government Grants

The Group receives government assistance in the form of Served from India Scheme (SFIS) License, which are issued to 
eligible Indian service providers having free foreign exchange earnings. It can be utilised for duty-free imports of office & 
professional equipment, spares, furniture and consumables or any other items notified by the Government from time to 
time.

Following are the balances of  SFIS license held by the Group :

As at  
March 31, 2019

 ` in Crores 

As at  
March 31, 2018

 ` in Crores 

Balance at the beginning of the year  8.57  1.60 

Licenses received during the year  -    10.78 

Licenses expired during the year  -    (0.14)

Licenses utilised during the year  (6.12)  (3.67)

Balance at the end of the year  2.45  8.57 

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the above government grants.

44 Operating Lease

Operating lease commitments – where the Group is a lessee

The Group has taken premises on leave & license basis which is similar in substance to an operating lease. The lease has 
varying terms and renewal rights. The particulars of leasing arrangement are as under :

Perticulars

As at  
March 31, 2019

 ` in Crores 

As at  
March 31, 2018

 ` in Crores 

a) Total Minimum Lease payments

  - Not later than 1 year  7.95  9.34 

  - Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  4.15  12.27 

  - Later than 5 years  -    -   

b) Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.  10.06  9.77 

Vessels taken/given on time charter hire are not considered as operating lease.
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45 Contingent Liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2019

 ` in Crores 

As at  
March 31, 2018

 ` in Crores 

a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts:

i) Service Tax  418.38  304.23 

Demand pertains to jurisdictional applicability on charter hire, excess utilisation of 
CENVAT Credit, supply of fuel / diesel by the charterers* and non-payment of service 
tax under reverse charge mechanism# on various input services received from foreign 
vendors. 

ii) Customs duty  14.88 14.88

Demand pertains to wrong classification of Marine Gas Oil/HFHSD and vessels 
imported.

iii) Value Added Tax (‘VAT’) / Central Sales Tax (‘CST’)
Demand pertains to levy of Maharashtra VAT / CST on Time charter hire of Rigs / 
vessels considering the same to be a ‘deemed sale’ transaction.

 135.14  69.29 

iv) Demand for Income tax disputed by the Group.  22.92  22.77 

Amounts pertaining to points above are excluding interest and penalty.

* Service tax authorities had issued Show Cause Notices as to why service tax is not payable on value of fuel provided 
by Customers as per the terms of various service contracts. The service tax authorities have issued an Order-in-Original 
confirming service tax demand in part.

# Service tax authorities had issued Show Cause Notices as to why service tax under Reverse Charge Mechanism is not 
payable on payment made to foreign vendors towards Bareboat Charter of rigs and certain other services. The service tax 
authorities have issued an Order-in-Original confirming entire service tax demand for the period from FY 2008-09 to FY 
2014-15. Follow-up Show Cause Notice is issued for the period October 2015 to June 2017.

In both the above matters, appeal has been filed against the said orders before the appropriate Appellate Authorities.

Notes :

I) It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending 
resolution of the respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with 
various forums / authorities.

II) The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims pertaining to proceedings pending with Income Tax, 
Custom, Sales Tax / VAT, Service Tax and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and 
proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions were required or disclosed as contingent liabilities 
where applicable, in its financial statements. Considering the merits of cases under dispute, the Group expects that 
the possibility of demands getting confirmed is remote.

46 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts, net of advances paid thereon, remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for  ` 14.72 crores (previous year: ` 0.11).

47 Subsequent Events

There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements.
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48 Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
( ` In Crores )

Name of Enterprise

FY 2018-19
Net assets i.e. total 
assets minus total 

liabilities
Share in profit or loss Share in other 

comprehensive income
Share in total 

comprehensive income

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets
Amount

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount

As % of 
consolidated 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

As % of 
consolidated 

Total 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

Parent
Greatship (India) Limited 87.45%  2,531.77 (569.80%)  44.90 (22.90%)  (11.83) 75.52%  33.07 
Indian subsidiary
Greatship Oilfield Services 
Limited

0.01%  0.22 0.13%  (0.01)  -    -    0.02%  (0.01)

Foreign subsidiary
Greatship Global Energy 
Services Pte. Ltd.

3.49%  101.06 (750.00%)  59.10  -    -   134.96%  59.10 

Greatship Global Offshore 
Services Pte. Ltd.

15.41%  446.17 61.80%  (4.87)  -    -   (11.12%)  (4.87)

Greatship (UK) Ltd. 0.22%  6.38 (169.80%)  13.38  -    -   30.55%  13.38 
106.58%  3,085.60 (1427.66%)  112.50 (22.90%)  (11.83) 229.89%  100.67 

Intercompany Eliminations / 
Adjustments

(6.58%)  (190.51) 1527.66%  (120.38) 122.90%  63.50 (129.89%)  (56.88)

Total 100.00%  2,895.09 100.00%  (7.88) 100.00%  51.67 100.00%  43.79 

Name of Enterprise

FY 2017-18
Net assets i.e. total 
assets minus total 

liabilities
Share in profit or loss Share in other 

comprehensive income
Share in total 

comprehensive income

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets
Amount

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount

As % of 
consolidated 

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

As % of 
consolidated 

Total 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

Parent
Greatship (India) Limited 87.63%  2,498.70 4.27%  (16.06) 299.48%  19.24 (0.86%)  3.18 
Indian subsidiary
Greatship Oilfield Services 
Limited

 -  0.22  -    (0.04)  -    -    0.01%    (0.04)

Foreign subsidiary
Greatship Global Energy 
Services Pte. Ltd.

38.88%  1,108.53 (14.63%)  55.07  -    -   (14.89%)  55.07 

Greatship Global Offshore 
Services Pte. Ltd.

14.91%  425.10 34.51%  (129.88) (75.65%)  (4.86) 36.42%  (134.74)

Greatship (UK) Ltd. 0.69%  19.56 0.04%  (0.14)  -    -   0.04%  (0.14)
142.11%  4,052.11 24.19%  (91.05) 224.10%  14.38 20.72%  (76.67)

InterCompany Eliminations 
/ Adjustments

(42.11%)  (1,200.81) 75.81%  (285.33) (124.10%)  (7.96) 79.28%  (293.29)

Total 100.00%  2,851.30 100.00%  (376.38) 100.00%  6.42 100.00%  (369.96)
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